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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRS

I would like to present to the shareholders the audited consolidated
results of Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group
Limited (the “"Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2022. During the year, the Group
proactively coped with market challenges, making efforts to maintain
the Group's revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group's revenue amounted to approximately HK$511.5 million,
compared to approximately HK$522.4 million for 2021, representing a
slight decrease of only approximately HK$10.9 million. The decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in sales of electronic products
and equipment during the year.

PROSPECT

Looking forward, the Group will continue the development of the
Smart City located at the southern side of Donghai Avenue Donghai
Island Mazhang District Zhanjiang City Guangdong Province The PRC
(HEEEEWER).

On the other hand, the Group has an exclusive right to conducting
sand mining and export business in the Kikori Delta in the Gulf of
Papua New Guinea with a total area of 23,300 square kilometers as
well as investing and operating port and terminal facilities in the Kikori
Delta.

The Group believed that the property development and sand
mining business has good prospect and is important to our future
development.

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders, customers,
suppliers and business partners for supporting the Group over the
years and contributing to the Group’s continuous development. In
appreciation of your support, we will remain committed to moving our
business forward to achieve even greater success in the future.

For and on behalf of the Board
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, GBS, /p

Chairman

24 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$511.5 million, compared to
approximately HK$522.4 million for 2021, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$10.9 million. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in sales of electronic products and equipment
during the year. The Group’s gross profit amounted to approximately
HK$31.1 million, compared to approximately HK$57.9 million for
2021, representing an decrease of HK$26.8. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in sales of electronic products and
equipment in the PRC due to the effect of COVID-19. Impairment
losses of HK$28.4 million is mainly because of losses in the trading
business in the PRC. The profit attributable to the owners of the
Company decreased to HK$250.2 million, a decrease of HK$17.8
million from the HK$268.0 million recorded for the year ended 31
December 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Investment property
Zhanjiang

The Group owns the land use rights of five land parcels located in
Donghai Dao, Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development
Zone, Zhangjiang City, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") with total site area and total planned gross floor area
of approximately 266,000 sg.m. and 1.3 million sq.m. respectively
(the “Smart City Project”). The lands are divided into two portions: the
portion held for sale (non-commercial portion) and the portion held for
investment purpose (including the commercial and non-commercial
portion and the car parking spaces).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESmEDHh

According to the valuation report issued by a recognised valuer at
the end of the year, the total value of the lands of the Smart City
Project was approximately RMB4.73 billion. The portion of lands at
approximately RMB1.33 billion will be used for residential purpose
which are classified as properties for sale and another portion of
lands at approximately RMB3.4 billion will be used for commercial and
non-commercial building development purpose which are classified
as investment properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022.

Part of the properties for sale was transferred to investment
properties during the year ended 31 December 2022 due to the
change in business plan of the management.

Beijing

The rental income of leasing the property covers an area of
approximately 16,300 sg.m. at the Rong Ning Yuan Community of No.
60 Guang An Men Nan Jie, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC. Rental
income recorded by this Beijing property was HK$0.84 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$1.02 million).

Disposal of Beijing Project

On 5 November 2021, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire issued capital of Millhaven
Holdings Limited which held the properties located at Rong Ning Yuan
Community, Beijing (the “Disposal”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Given the prolonged delay and absence of consensus between the
Vendor and the Purchaser on the completion date of the due diligence
on the Disposal Group and the changes in market conditions of the
property market in the PRC since the date of the Agreement, the
parties to the Agreement entered into a termination agreement (the
“Termination Agreement”) on 16 February 2023 to terminate the
Agreement and the supplemental agreements dated 28 January
2022, 5 May 2022, 4 July 2022, 2 September 2022, 1 November 2022
and 3 January 2023. Pursuant to the Termination Agreement, (i) the
Agreement and all the supplemental agreements thereto shall be
terminated with immediate effect; (ii) the non-refundable deposit of
HK$8.0 million received by the Vendor from the Purchaser shall not be
returned to the Purchaser; and (iii) the parties to the Agreement will
not have any demand or claim against the other party arising out of or
in connection with the Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder.

The Board considers that the termination of the Disposal does not
have any material adverse impact on the operation, business and
financial position of the Group as a whole.

Trading Business

Trading business is mainly represented by the sales of electronic
products and equipment.

Financial Business

The revenue of financial business of the Group generated from
securities, futures and options broking business, underwriting
commission, advisory for financial management business and interest
income from securities margin loan portfolio and managed to register
profit. Despite the economic damages brought by the widespread
of Covid 19, both market and turnover increased amid the global
Quantitative Easing policy, the massive stimulus program of the US
government, the continued listing of Chinese giant companies in
Hong Kong attracting investment interests from China and other
regions. Market remained volatile as investors were sensitive to the
development of Sino-American confrontations, the fear of inflation
and the spread of Covid-19 disease. Market turnover hopefully
expected to be buoyant benefited from more listings of Chinese
companies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESmEDHh

Oil and gas business

The Group owns 100% of the exploration, exploitation and operation
rights as well as the profit sharing right of Madagascar Oilfield
Block 2101 which is an onshore site with total area of 10,400
square kilometers in the northern part of Madagascar. Pursuant
to the exploration, exploitation and oil and gas production sharing
contract and depending on the rate of liquid petroleum production of
Madagascar Qilfield Block 2101, the Group will share the remaining
petroleum profit after government royalty and recovery of petroleum
costs according to the sharing ratios in the range of 40% to 72.5% as
set out in the profit sharing right.

PROSPECT

The Group will focus its resources on the development of the
Zhanjiang project and other business segments of the Group, in
particular the sand mining business in Papua New Guinea where the
Group has been granted an exclusive operating right for constructing
and operating a port terminal and conducting sand mining and
export business in the Kikori Delta in the Gulf of Papua with a total
area of 23,300 square kilometers and the Group has established a
comprehensive strategic cooperation with China Harbour Engineering
Company Limited (FE#EE TR BREF(E A=) for carrying out
sand mining operation and the planning, construction and operation
of fairway and terminal facilities.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE s mE oM

EQUITY FUND-RAISING ACTIVITIES IN THE PAST HBE+ AR ETZIRIEESEH

TWELVE MONTHS

Set out below is the fund-raising activities conducted by the Company MU TFEHII A AT N EEARKRES BB E+

during the past twelve months immediately prior to the date of this BB RNETZEEEEF) :
report:
Actual use of proceeds
as at the date of results
Date of Intended use of announcement
announcement  Event Net proceeds proceeds (24 March 2023)
REEXMHBE
B=—2=F=HAZ+mMmA)
AfBEH EUs FRGFIETE FIRTERTERE MERRRIEERAR
10 January 2022 Rights issue on the basis of one  HK$159,600,000 Repayment of part of the  HK$159,600,000 was used for
(1) rights share for every two Group's borrowings repayment of part of the
(2) existing shares held on Group's borrowings
the record date of 24 January
2022 on a non-underwritten
basis
“ETTF BRERABE-S""F—8 159,600,000t EELEEFNEE 159,600,000/ Tt Bt B2
—B+H “+HHERERMQKIRE REFEHDEE
R ip g —(NRERERD 2
BEEZIFOHEEETHRE
20 May 2022 Subscription of new shares HK$23,150,000 Repayment of liabilities HK$23,150,000 was used for
under general mandate repayment of liabilities
“ETTF RIE— T ENRN 23,150,000 7T EER&E 23,150,000 TR ER&E
EFBEZ+H
23 February 2023 Subscription of new shares HK$14,582,000 General working capital of ~ Approximately HK$3,262,000
under general mandate the Group was used as general working
capital of the Group while
the remaining balance of
approximately HK$11,320,000
was not utilised yet
“ETZE RIE— T ENRN 14,582,000 AEEz—KEBEEE 3,262,000 THEAERN
“A”+=H —REEES MR

Save as the abovementioned, the Company has not conducted any
other fundraising exercise in the past twelve months immediately

preceding the date of this report.

911,320,000 TR E1 B

PR EPRISN » A AT R RBEARK S BHARTE
A+ EARLBRETENRMEE LS
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESmEDHh

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$511.5 million, compared to
approximately HK$522.4 million for 2021, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$10.9 million. The decrease was mainly attributable
to the decrease in sales of electronic products and equipment.

Administration expenses

Administrative expenses increase to approximately HK$59.2 million in
2022 from approximately HK$57.6 million in 2021, slightly increase by
HK$1.6 million.

Fair value changes on investment properties

The Company has appointed independent valuation companies to
determine the fair value for the investment properties. Based on
the valuation reports, the Group has recorded gain of approximately
HK$467.1 million during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$443 million). The increase in fair value was mainly in relation to the
investment properties in Zhanjiang. Fair value gain of approximately
HK$411.0 million on the investment properties at Zhanjiang was
recorded during the year ended 31 December 2022 due to the change
in business plan of the management.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
(excluding the restricted cash) were approximately HK$29.79 million
(2021: approximately HK$31.86 million). The net current assets of the
Group were HK$273.2 million (2021: HK$1.92 billion), which consisted
of current assets of HK$1.12 billion (2021: HK$2.82 billion) and current
liabilities of approximately HK$904.3 million (2021: HK$907 million),
representing a current ratio of 1.3 (2021: 3.11). The Group manages its
capital structure to finance its overall operation and growth by using
different sources of funds. As at 31 December 2022, the Group's lease
liabilities, amounts due to directors, borrowings, and corporate bonds
amounted to approximately HK$508.8 million (2021: HK$653.3 million).
The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 (defined as
total interest-bearing liabilities divided by the Group's total equity) was
0.12 (2021:0.12).

CORPORATE BONDS

As at 31 December 2022, the accumulated balance of corporate
bonds was HK$7.0 million (2021: HK$17.5 million) bearing effective
interest rate of 7.03%-11.57% per annum with maturity between 2023
to 2025. Such bonds are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method. Imputed interest of approximately
HK$1.18 million (2021: HK$1.97 million) was recognised in the profit
or loss during the year. The issuance of the corporate bonds will not
result in any dilution on the shareholding of the existing shareholders
of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESmEDHh

EXCHANGE RATE RISK

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly to
the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S. dollar against
RMB. We have not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and considering hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
such need arise.

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's finance costs consisted mainly of interest expenses
on corporate bonds, borrowings, amounts due to directors and
lease liabilities. The aggregate amount of finance costs incurred was
approximately HK$57.25 million (2021: HK$49.3 million) for the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022
(2021: nil).

PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

The Company obtained a term loan facility in an aggregate amount of
HK$250,000,000 for a term of 36 months in 2017. The loan principal
amount outstanding as at 31 December 2022 is HK$240,000,000
(2021: HK$240,000,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 90 staff (2021:
108) and the total related staff cost amounted to HK$26.7 million
(2021: HK$26.8 million). The Group’s long-term success rests primarily
on the total integration of the company core value with the basic staff
interest. In order to attract and retain high caliber staff, the Group
provides competitive salary package and other benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical schemes and bonus. The future
staff costs of the sales will be more directly linked to the performance
of business turnover and profit. The Group maintained organic
overhead expenses to support the basic operation and dynamic
expansion of its business enabling the Group to respond flexibly with
the changes of business environment.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 5,804,281,394 shares of HK$0.10 each (31
December 2021: 4,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Issue of Convertible Notes under general mandate

On 9 March 2023 (after trading hours of the Stock Exchange),
the Company and the Subscriber entered into the Subscription
Agreement, pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to issue, and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for, the Convertible Notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$100,000,000. The outstanding principal amount of the Convertible
Notes are convertible into Conversion Shares at the Conversion Price
of HK$0.25 per Conversion Share (subject to adjustments) during the
Conversion Period.

Please refer to our announcement dated 9 March 2023 and 16 March
2023 for details.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEESmEDHh

Proposed Share Consolidation and change in
board lot size

On 21 March 2023, the Board proposes to implement the Share
Consolidation on the basis that every two (2) issued and unissued
Shares of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company be
consolidated into one (1) Consolidated Share of HK$0.20 each in the
share capital of the Company. The Share Consolidation is conditional
upon, among other things, the approval of the Shareholders at the
SGM.

Please refer to our announcement dated 21 March 2023 for details.

CHANGES OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

With effect from 23 March 2022, Mr. Yiu King Ming was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

During the financial year, the Company has adopted the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction. All Directors of the
Company have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and the Code during the financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is aware of the importance that complying with the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and maintaining good
corporate governance standards are important to the effective and
efficient operation of the Company. The Company has, therefore,
adopted and implemented relevant measures to ensure that the
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements are complied with and
that a high standard of corporate governance practices is maintained.
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”), as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, throughout the accounting
period covered by the interim report except for the deviation from
code provision A.4.2. of the Code which every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. However, according to
Byelaws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allow more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EFhEREERBRB/N

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Dr. Hui Chi Ming GBS, 1P, aged 59, was appointed the Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Dr. Hui received a Doctor Honoris
Causa in Economics and IFES Doctoris Honoris Causa from the
Institute of Far Eastern Studies, The Russian Academy of Sciences in
2002. The Department of Social Sciences of The Russian Academy
of Sciences had also awarded Dr. Hui the scientific degree of Doctor
Honoris Causa in 2005. Dr. Hui had over 10 years of experience in
the investment, exploration and exploitation of oil and gas business.
He has been the chairman of the board of over 20 companies
such as Hoifu Petroleum Group Limited (FlE A hEBAERAT),
Madagascar Southern Petroleum Company Limited (F#Z &m0
7 AHAE RA ) and Madagascar Northern Petroleum Company
Limited (FS3EMETMNIEH A MBBRAE) . From 2004 to 2010, Dr. Hui
was the chairman and an executive director of Sino Union Energy
Investment Group Limited, which was subsequently re-named as
Yanchang Petroleum International Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (stock code: 346) and engaged in the investment, exploration
and exploitation of oil and gas business. Dr. Hui was a member of
the 9th, 10th, 11th and 12th National Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference. He was the chairman of
the Confucian Academy of Hong Kong, a standing committee member
of the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce, the president
of Hong Kong Xian Trade Association Limited. He is the honorable
president of the Beijing Federation of Industry & Commerce, a
standing committee member of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce, the chief president of the Federation of Hong Kong
Guangdong Community Organisation and the president of the Hong
Kong General Association of International Investment. Dr. Hui was also
the Honorary Consul in Hong Kong of the Republic of Madagascar.
All these years, Dr. Hui has been actively participating in promoting
poverty alleviation and charity, and he has been awarded the China
Glory Society Medal for Poverty Alleviation (FREYt ¥ EEH B %
) and accredited as China Top Ten Poverty Alleviation Contributor

(2 B+ KB K TT) by the government of the PRC. In recognition
of the outstanding contribution of Dr. Hui to poverty alleviation, the
International Minor Planet Naming Committee (BEIFR/NTE MR EE
=) approved permanently naming the minor planet No. 5390 as “Hui
Chi Ming Planet”.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

DIRECTORS (Continueqd)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Neil Bush, aged 68, was appointed the Deputy Chairman and
an executive director on 15 November 2012 of the Company. He is
responsible for the implementation of the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. Mr. Bush graduated from Tulane
University with a bachelor’s degree in International Economics
and from the Tulane University Freeman School of Business with
a master’s degree in Business Administration. Mr. Bush had over
30 years of experience in domestic and international energy and
real estate business development. He formed oil companies which
explored oil resources in various states in the United States of
America and overseas. Mr. Bush has engaged in various international
business development activities with a focus on the PRC and Middle
East. Since 1975, Mr. Bush has traveled to the PRC over 140 times
and worked with numerous entities on a variety of projects including
real estate development, energy, automobile parts, sheet rock
manufacturing and paint production. From 7 December 2010 to 20
July 2012, Mr. Bush was a non-executive director of China Resources
and Transportation Group Limited, a company of which the shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 269). Since 22 April
2013, Mr. Neil Bush has been serving as the Non-Executive Chairman
on the board of SGX-ST Mainboard-listed SingHaiyi Group Limited, a
Singapore based real estate company. He is also the Chairman of the
Points of Light, a national charitable organisation formed by President
George H.W. Bush in 1989 that promotes citizen service through
volunteerism in communities all across America and increasingly
overseas. Mr. Bush serves as Chairman of the Barbara Bush Houston
Literacy Foundation, and on the boards of the Houston Salvation Army
and the Bush School of Government and Public Service.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EFhEREERBRB/N

DIRECTORS (Continueqd)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Xu Jun Jia, aged 34, was appointed as an executive director on 1
January 2016. He graduated from Institute of International Relations
of Moscow University in 2014 with an expert degree. He is currently
the general manager of Siberian Energy Group, Inc. (P58 %25 A
JREEE) , the general manager of Far East Oil Group Limited (&
L HEEARAT) and the general manager of Africa Resources
Group Limited GENEREBEBRAE) . Mr. Xu is currently the
vice president of Hong Kong International Foundation for Poverty
Alleviation (HEBEIFFXBE£E), and head of the Youth Committee
of Hong Kong General Association of International Investment (&
BEIFEE 48R E) . In recent years, he has played an active role
in professional investments in a number of deals in various sectors
such as oil and chemical, metal mining and financial securities, as
well as negotiations and decision making in merger and acquisition,
equity participation and controlling deals. As a result, he is fully
equipped with relevant professional knowledge and operating
experiences. Mr. Xu is fluent in English, Russia, Mandarin and
Cantonese. He is very familiar with oil and gas businesses between
Russia and the international market. Mr. Xu is the son of Dr. Hui Chi
Ming, the Chairman of the Company. He has been appointed as an
Administration Manager of the Company since 1 September 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

DIRECTORS (Continueqd)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Cao Yu, aged 44, was appointed as an executive director on 1
January 2016, and being appointed as the managing director on 1
December 2020. He graduated from CERAM Sophia Antipolis with a
master degree in management. Mr. Cao has been the project manager
for listed companies and he was specialized in the operation and
coordination of the drilling and seismic engineering projects with
famous petroleum companies in China. Meanwhile, he was also
responsible for identifying suitable investors to establish joint venture
company for petroleum exploration projects. He has also worked in
the world's largest energy efficiency management company and was
responsible for providing energy efficiency strategy in China region for
the group. Besides, Mr. Cao was the analyst in the headquarter of BNP
Paribas in France. His main duty was to provide financial and strategic
advice in the area of energy technology and he was responsible for
the merger and acquisition activities as well as financial planning
service. Mr. Cao has been engaged in management and analytical
work for many years and possesses the appropriate and professional
experience. He has been the manager of the development
department of the Company since September 2012.

Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, aged 59. Mr. Lam is the founder of the Group.
He has extensive experience in the securities, futures, options, fund
management and financial advisory industry. His primarily focus
is to further develop the financial business in the Group. He is the
Chairman, Executive Director and Managing Director of Asia Tele-Net
and Technology Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the
brother of Mr. Nam Kwok Lun.

Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, aged 64. He is a co-founder of the Group and is
in charge of the stockbroking, futures and options broking, securities
margin financing business, fund management and financial advisory
business. Mr. Nam has extensive experience in the securities, futures
and options, securities margin financing, fund management and
financial advisory industry. Mr. Nam is also the Deputy Chairman
and Executive Director of Asia Tele-Net and Technology Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 679). He is the brother of Mr. Lam Kwok Hing.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EFhEREERBRB/N

DIRECTORS (Continueqd)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Hui Ngok Lun, aged 27, graduated from Columbia University
in the United States with a master’s degree in Enterprise Risk
Management. Mr. Hui is currently the Managing Director of Longyuan
Xintiandi Real Estate Investment Co., Ltd., the General Manager of
African Union Resources Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd., and
the General Manager of Siberian Petroleum Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Hui
is also a Member of the Henan Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, the Vice Chairman of
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Federation, the Vice Chairman of Hong Kong
Volunteers Federation Foundation, the Deputy Director of Hong Kong
International Poverty Alleviation Foundation, and the Vice Chairman
of Hong Kong General Association of International Investment Youth
Association.

Mr. Hui has overseen and coordinated various oil and gas resources
projects, in addition to the risk management in respect of investment,
development and operation of copper and gold mine resources
projects. Mr. Hui is also actively involved in the investment decision-
making and risk management of diversified large-scale real estate
comprehensive development and operation projects. With his
expertise in project investment and management, Mr. Hui has
participated in the decision-making, operation and management
of several major project investments, mergers and acquisitions.
With respect to financial innovation, Mr. Hui has also added and
commenced new businesses in the financial and securities segments
of the Hong Kong Finance Investment Group.

Mr. Hui is the son of Dr. Hui Chi Ming, the Chairman of the Company,
and the younger brother of Mr. Xu Jun Jia, an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Hui has been appointed by the Company as the Chief
Risk Officer of the Hong Kong Finance Investment Group since 11
September 2018.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

DIRECTORS (Continueqd)
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ngan Kam Biu Stanford, aged 45, holds a Master degree of Arts
in Quantitative Analysis for Business and a degree of Bachelor of
Accounting and Finance with Honours. He is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ngan has
over 15 years of experience in corporate management and finance,
accounting and company secretarial practice. He was a Financial
Controller and Company Secretary of Code Agriculture (Holdings)
Limited (Stock Code: 8153) previously.

Mr. Tam Chak Chi, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 19 August 2019. He holds a bachelor’s degree
of commerce from the University of Toronto. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a member of each
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Global Management Accountant. Mr. Tam has more than
15 years of experience in providing accounting, auditing and financial
services and has served various senior positions at various private
and listed companies. Mr. Tam is currently an executive Director of My
Heart Bodibra Group Limited (stock code: 8297), an independent non-
executive director of Wealth Glory Holdings Limited (stock code: 8269)
and AL Group Limited (stock code: 8360), which are listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ma Kin Ling, aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 10 May 2019. He is currently the chief financial
officer and company secretary of Xinyang Maojian Group Limited
(stock code: 362), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and the independent non-executive director of SunCorp
Technologies Limited (stock code: 1063), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from
City University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree of Business
Administration (Honours) in Accountancy and Law. Prior to the joining
of the Group, he worked in reputable international accounting firms
and has over 10 years' experience in auditing and accounting.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EFhEREERBRB/N

DIRECTORS (Continued)
Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continueq)

Mr. Yiu King Ming, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 22 March 2022. He graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a Bachelor of Arts (first-class
honors) degree with a major in Accountancy and a minor in Corporate
Finance. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Yiu has over 15 years of
experience in the accounting, financing, and auditing field. He was
a financial controller and company secretary of Shentong Robot
Education Group Company Limited (Stock Code: 8206) previously.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Po Eric, aged 53 (appointed on 8 February 2022), is the Chief
Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and the Authorised
Representative of the Company. Mr. Po graduated from City University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Business
Studies. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Po has over 19 years of experience in accounting, financing and
auditing field.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Lap Kwan, aged 49, is the Director of Karl-Thomson
Securities Company Limited and is responsible for the daily operations
and implementation of the internal control procedures of the
Kwun Tong branch. He holds a Bachelor of Business (Banking and
Finance) degree from University of South Australia. He has extensive
experience in the securities, futures and options industry. He joined
the Group in July 1997.

Mr. Sung Wing Yiu, aged 66, is the Director of Karl-Thomson Securities
Company Limited. He is responsible for the management and
development of internet trading services, securities, futures and
other derivatives business of the Group. He holds a Bachelor of
Social Science degree in Government & Public Administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Sung
has extensive experience in the securities and futures industry and
held senior positions in regional financial institutions in Hong Kong. He
joined the Group in February 2001.
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The Directors would like to present to shareholders their annual report
("Annual Report”) and the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are (1) the trading of electronic products
and equipment; (2) the provision of financial services; (3) property
development and investment; and (4) Mineral mining, oil and gas
business. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis set out on pages 7 to 17 of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this report of the Directors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review, financial performance and future
development of the Group’s business are set out in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section from pages 7 to 17.

An analysis of the Group'’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Five Years Financial
Summary on pages 247 to 248 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are various risks and uncertainties including business risks,
capital risks and financial risks that may have different levels of impact
on the Group's financial performance, operations, business as well as
future prospects.

The business risk faced by the Group is set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report and the capital risk and financial risk
are set out in Note 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Report of the Directors
ESERS

EEMARSREREBE_ZT _—F+-A1
“+—HEFEZFR (TFH) RIEEZKE
IECE e

FEXR

ERBDB/REZERAF - FEBZITEEHR
MEFEMmKFBES ;QRHTERRT Q)Y
EHRBKKRE , ROFRE HAREF -ARFE
EMBABD ZHBHN GG M BRRM 47 -

BRBEBLABROINKSREZFEBZETER
BrE—SmhkON (BEESAERREZE
EEBERAIEBERNRZHL UREEBER
RRAEE R/ IR AFREIE7ERR
HEEENRADMTAER LHRDHEES

BREZ Moo

e B

$BEB MBEERRAEEAEBRREEL
HERRETEUEZ (ERER BRI —
e

RAMBRARRREREAERFAREREIFEY
MR RFERF247E2488 2 B F R H#E

e

FERBRAEERR

BERABRKTHRENZCEHNEAERMBE
B EE EBARRASBETAREZEZX
B ER ~ B A< B R K B 75 LR

AEERBZEZFFRRENRE - HLERER
BERERER KRB RRED B &N GRE /M
HRRMIES 6 °

Annual Report 2022 « — = —F 53

25



Py

26

Report of the Directors
ESEHRS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We are attentive to consumption of natural resources and reduction
of pollution during the course of managing our businesses. It is our
goal to minimize our environmental impacts through recycling of
materials, encouragement of resources savings and reduce wastes.
The Group is committed to ensure our compliance with relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations. For further details on
performance of the Group on environmental aspects during the Year,
please refer to our Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group requires operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
to comply with the relevant laws and regulations in the territories in
which we operate. During year 2022, there was a possible Breaches of
Listing Rules 13.46(2)(a), 13.46(2)(b) and 13.48(1):

Background

a.  0n 28 January 2022, the Company published the 2020 Annual
Report, which was approximately 9 months after the deadline
under Rule 13.46(2)(a).

b.  On 23 February 2022, the Company published the 2021 Interim
Report, which was approximately 5 months after the deadline
under Rule 13.48(1).

c.  On 3 March 2022, the Company held the annual general
meeting and its shareholders approved the 2020 Annual Report,
which was 8 months after the deadline under Rule 13.46(2)(b)
(i.e. 30 June 2021).

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited reminded the Company
that any breach of the Listing Rules is a serious matter. If there is a
breach in the future, enforcement action may be brought against the
Company.
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On the other hand, during year 2022 (1 January 2022 to 21 March
2022), the Company failed to comply with the Listing Rule 3.10A, as
it had less than one-third of independent non- executive directors
representing in the Board. After appointment of Mr. Yiu King Ming
as independent Non- Executive Directors on 22 March 2022, the
Company is in compliance with the requirements of Rule 3.10(A) again

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Directors and other officers, for the time being acting in relation to
the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group's business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. During
the year, there were no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the
Group. The Group will continue to ensure effective communication
and maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholder.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 97 to 99 of the Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year (2021: nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years ended 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020,
2021 and 2022 is set out on page 247 to 248 of the Annual Report.

FIXED ASSETS AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in the fixed assets and investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the convertible notes as disclosed in notes 40 to the financial
statements, no other equity-linked agreement entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2021 and 2022, the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to the shareholders.

DONATION

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group's major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

—the largest supplier 20.94%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate 59.74%
Sales

— the largest customer 18.07%
—five largest customers in aggregate 50.79%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers and its five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Chi Ming GBS, 1P (Chairman)
Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. XU Jun Jia

Mr. CAO Yu

Mr. LAM Kwok Hing MH., 1P

Mr. NAM Kwok Lun

Mr. Hui Ngok Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford

Mr. MA Kin Ling

Mr. TAM Chak Chi

Mr. Yiu King Ming (appointed on 22 March 2022)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from all
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of them are independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

In accordance with Bye-laws 99 and 102 of the Company's Bye-
laws, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation (save any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) at each annual general meeting and any additional
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at the meeting.
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DIRECTORS (Continueqd)

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter
of appointment for a term of three years until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by the Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company or in accordance with the
terms set out in the respective letters of appointment. Each of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors is entitled to a director’s fee.

The Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting does not have a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical information of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 24 of the
Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a three-year term which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation. These service
contracts shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by
either party with not less than three months’ prior written notice.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration committee of the Board considers and
recommends to the Board the remuneration of all Directors is subject
to regular monitoring by the remuneration committee to ensure that
the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.
Details of the Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer's remuneration
are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company was entered or existed.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (with the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the "“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

1. Long positions in the ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company
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Dr. Hui Chi Ming 6B, 1P (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 3,818,955,112 65.8%
SFEsatEons, 1p (BYaE1) REGEE 2 R

Dr. Hui Chi Ming GBS, 1P Beneficial Owner 69,166,000 1.19%

SR 18 cBs, IP EmER A

Note 1: These Shares included 954,000 Shares held by Wisdom On Holdings
Ltd., 416,889,000 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited,
529,928,713 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity Management
Limited, 876,447,284 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance Equity
Investment Limited and 1,994,736,115 Shares held by Hong Kong Finance
Equity Holding Limited respectively.

Note 2: The issued share capital of Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited is
directly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming. The issued share capital
of Wisdom On Holdings Ltd., Hong Kong Finance Equity Management
Limited, Hong Kong Finance Equity Investment Limited and Hong Kong
Finance Equity Holding Limited are indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi
Ming GBS, LP.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (Continued)

2.

ordinary shares in subsidiaries which are
wholly-owned

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors of the Company,
chief executive or their associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, at no time during the year
was the Company, its ultimate holding company or any subsidiaries of
its ultimate holding company a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS'
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

@)

During the year, the Group received commission income and
other securities dealing income from securities and futures
dealing of approximately HK$34,000 (2021: HK$50,000) from
director Mr. Nam Kwok Lun (2021: a director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
(Continuedq)

(0)

During the year, the Group received commission income
and other income from securities dealing of approximately
HK$85,000 (2021: HK$17,000) from Asia Tele-Net, in which two
directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, have
controlling interests.

At 31 December 2022, a director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, advanced
approximately HK$51,092,000 (2021: HK$64,772,000) to
the Group. During the year, the Group paid finance costs of
HK$2,960,000 (2021: HK$2,364,000) to a director, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun.

During the year, the Group paid finance costs of HK$1,386,000
(2021: HK$2,444,000) to PAL Finance Limited (21t #B475H
BR/AE]), in which two directors Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and
Nam Kwok Lun, have controlling interests.

During the year, the Group received commission income
and other income from securities dealing of approximately
HK$952,000 (2021: HK$ Nil) from ATNT Group Management
Limited (GEMEABEEE EIRBRAE), in which two directors
Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, have controlling
interests.

During the year, the Group received commission income
and other income from securities dealing of approximately
HK$524,000 (2021: HK$ Nil) from Process Automation
International Limited (G2 NEESE2E# B RAE]), in which two
directors Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun, have
controlling interests.

At 31 December 2022, a director, Dr. Hui Chi Ming G.B.:S., J.P,
advanced approximately HK$27,993,000 (2021: HK$161,225,000)
to the Group. It is unsecured, repayable on demand and non-
interest bearing.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 May 2013, the Group leased from Gahood Holding Company
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Dr. Hui, the office space located
at Unit 9 (portion) and Units 10-12, 19th Floor, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung
Wan, Hong Kong for an initial term of two years at a monthly rent of
HK$180,000. Such agreement was renewed in May 2015 and May
2017 respectively to extend the tenancy period for two years expiring
on 31 May 2017 and 31 May 2019 respectively at a monthly rent of
HK$200,000 and HK$210,000 respectively. The tenancy agreement
was further renewed and extended with the tenancy period
expiring on 30 November 2020 and the monthly rent was adjusted
to HK$210,000 until to 31 March 2021. The tenancy agreement was
further renewed by one year commenced from 1 April 2021 and
expired on 31 March 2022, monthly rent remain unchanged. On 1
April 2022, the tenancy agreement was renewed by two years at a
monthly rent of HK$200,000.

Five of these agreements were arm’s length transactions and in the
usual and ordinary course of business of the Company and on normal
commercial terms which are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The annual cap amount for each of the financial years ended/
ending 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 are HK$2,520,000,
HK$2,520,000, HK$2,520,000, HK$2,520,000 and HK$2,520,000
respectively. The total amount of the transactions for the year ended
31 December 2022 was HK$2,400,000 (2021: HK$2,520,000).

Gahood is indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, an executive
Director of the Company. Therefore, Gahood is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

According the Tenancy Agreements between Gahood and Shiny
Future constitutes continuing connected transactions for both
Gahood and Shiny Future under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.76 (1) of the Listing Rules, such Extended
Tenancy Agreement is fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no other transaction which
need to be disclosed as a connected transaction in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and no contract of significance
to which the Company, its ultimate holding company or any
subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 December 2022, the register of substantial shareholders R-_E__F£+_B=+—H ' BELAAF®
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO  FEH RHIEKAIEIEEEZ FERBELM
shows that the following shareholder had notified the Company of  Frsd&t° THRE D BN KA B FAESR 4~ A F
relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company. BT A AR

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 MNZAAGSRKREE0.10EBTTEERZ

each of the Company RE
Percentage of
Number of the share
issued ordinary capital of the
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company
FRs B 817 AT
IR E 519 EiERkyE AT
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 529,928,713 9.13%
Management Limited (Note 1)
SEcMREESERRAR BWat1) EmEAA
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 876,447,284 15.10%
Investment Limited (Note 1)
BEETHMRERERRAR Hat1) BamEAA
Hong Kong Finance Equity Beneficial owner 1,994,736,115 34.37%
Holding Limited (Note 1)
EEERREERBIRAE (Wat1) BHEAA
Hong Kong Finance Investment Limited Beneficial owner 416,889,000 7.18%
(Note 1)
SEEMBERERLE (W:11) EmEAA
Wisdom On Holdings Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 954,000 0.02%
Wisdom On Holdings Limited (##5£7) EmEA A
Dr. Hui Chi Ming GBS, P Beneficial owner 69,166,000 1.19%
FrE#iEt6Rs, 1P EmEAA

Note 1. The entire issued share capital are directly or indirectly wholly-owned by Dr. Hui ~ #327 . 2B TRAHFEHIETEEMZEEEEE -
Chi Ming.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, no person (other than the Directors of the
Company whose interests are set out under the heading “Directors’
Interests in Shares” above) had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in business, apart from the
business of the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares were held by the public as at the date
of this Annual Report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefits scheme are set out in note
44 10 the consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHRS

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY'S SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company had complied with all the applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules during the year. The details of the Group’s
compliance with the Code is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report from pages 39 to 62 of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited Certified Public Accountants (“Elite
Partners”) resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 8 February 2022 and Cheng & Cheng Limited Certified Public
Accountants (“Cheng & Cheng"”) was then appointed as the auditor of
the Company following the resignation of Elite Partners as the auditor
of the Company. Cheng & Cheng will hold office until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution for
re-appointment of Cheng & Cheng as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the AGM.

By Order of the Board

Dr. Hui Chi Ming, 6Bs, )P
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital to
the success of the Group and sustains development of the Group. The
Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and practices with an emphasis on integrity, transparency
and independence. The board of directors (the “Board”) believes
that good corporate governance is essential to the success of the
Company and the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year of 2022, the Company has complied with
most of the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), save for the following:

1. The Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director of the
Company is not subject to retirement by rotation pursuant to
Byelaw 99 of the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure they continue to meet the requirements of the Code during
the year ended 31 December 2022. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are summarised in this
report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transaction.

To the specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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Corporate Governance Report
EEEAHRS

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises seven
executive Directors, namely, Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.8.5., J.p, Mr. Neil Bush,
Mr. Cao Yu, Mr. Xu Jun Jia, Mr. Lam Kwok Hing, MH., .p, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun and Mr. Hui Ngok Lun; and four independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Ngan Kam Biu, Stanford, Mr. Tam Chak Chi and
Mr. Ma Kin Ling and Mr. Yiu King Ming. Biographical details, which
include relationships among members of the Board, are provided
in the "Directors and Senior Management Profiles” section of the
Annual Report. The composition of the Board is well balanced with
the Directors having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate
and strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. The Executive Directors and Independent Non-
Executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of management while day-to-day
management of the Group is delegated to the management team
of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking the Board is
responsible for:

o Formulating the Group's long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

o Approval of interim and year end dividend

o Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
o Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

o Monitoring the performance of the management

o Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

o Developing and reviewing the Group's policies and practices on
corporate governance
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Corporate Governance Report

THE BOARD (Continued)
Responsibilities (Continuead)

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group’s businesses to the Executive Directors, senior management
and certain specific responsibilities to the Board committees. The
Board is committed to making decisions in the best interests of both
the Company and its shareholders.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true and
fair view of the Group’s consolidated financial position in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The statement by the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out on pages 88 to 96 in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and service of the Company Secretary to
ensure Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Composition
The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience

necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised 11
members, including 7 Executive Directors and 4 Independent Non-
executive Directors, as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. HUI Chi Ming GBS, 1P (Chairman)

Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. XU Jun Jia

Mr. CAO Yu (Managing Director, appointed on 1 December 2019)

Mr. LAM Kwok Hing MH., JP
Mr. NAM Kwok Lun
Mr. Hui Ngok Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford

Mr. MA Kin Ling

Mr. TAM Chak Chi

Mr. Yiu King Ming (appointed on 22 March 2022)

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 18 to 24.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Board complied with the Rules 3.10
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least four
independent non-executive directors, one of the independent non-
executive directors has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related finance management expertise.

Mr. Ngan Kam Biu standford remained as independent Non-Executive
Directors from 11 June 2018. Following on the resignation of Chen
Wei-Ming Eric, Mr. Yim Kai Pung and Mr. Ng Chi Kin David on 25
February, 10 May and 19 August 2019 respectively as independent
Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Chan Tsang Mo, Mr. Ma Kin Ling and
Mr. Tam Chak Chi subsequently appointed as an independent Non-
Executive Directors on the same days respectively. Mr. Chan Tsang
Mo resigned on 25 May 2020 at last. Mr. Yiu King Ming was appointed
as independent Non-Executive Directors on 22 March 2022 and the
Ccompany is in compliance with the requirements of Rule 3.10(A) of
the Listing Rules again after appointment of Mr. Yiu King Ming.

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a
specific term of three years. They are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out within Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

The Bye-laws of the Company requires that one-third (if the number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) of the Directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) shall retire by rotation each year. The Directors to retire by
rotation shall include any Director who wishes to retire and not to
offer himself for re-election and those of the other Directors who have
been longest in office since their election or re-election. A retiring
Director is eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the next general meeting
of members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting and be eligible for re-election. Any Director appointed
pursuant to the aforesaid Bye-law shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation.

Under the code provisions A.4.2. of the Code, every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. However, according to
Bye-Laws of the Company, the Chairman or Managing Director are not
subject to retirement by rotation or taken into account on determining
the number of Directors to retire. This constitutes a deviation from
code provision A.4.2. of the Code. As continuation is a key factor to
the successful implementation of any long-term business plans, the
Board believes that the roles of Chairman and Managing Director
provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow
more effective planning and execution of long-term business
strategies, that the present arrangement is most beneficial to the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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THE BOARD (Continueq)

Corporate Governance Report

Board Meetings and General Meeting

During the year ended 31 December 2022, 24 Board meetings and
one annual general meeting ("AGM") was held with details of the

Directors’ attendance set out below:

ERERRS
EFg @
EEUUBRREAR

REBEE_E__F+_BA=+—HItEEZH
TUREFEgEA—FTRBEBERT (TRE
BEAG)) BEEZZHESBHINWT

Annual
General
Board Meeting
EEg RRBFAE
Executive Directors: HITES:
Dr. HUI Chi Ming 6.8, 1p (Chairman) RSB tess, 1p (ZE) 24/24 1”1
Mr. BUSH Neil (Deputy Chairmarn) Ef e L E BIFE) 1/24 0/1
Mr. XU Jun Jia FEEE 4/24 11
Mr. CAO Yu (Managing Director) BFLL (EFHLE) 24/24 1/1
Mr. LAM Kwok Hing mH., 1p BRI TEMH, P 20/24 1/
Mr. NAM Kwok Lun EEfmLE 20/24 1/1
M. Hui Ngok Lun SFEBTE 12/24 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIFRTES:
Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford bl 24/24 171
Mr. MA Kin Ling BRELE 24/24 11
Mr. TAM Chak Chi BEZRE 24/24 1/1
M. Yiu King Ming (appointed on 22 March 2022) BRAEE (W2 °THE 16/16 11

ZAZ+HEZ®)
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THE BOARD (Continued)
Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive introduction
package covering the summary of the responsibilities and liabilities
of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the Company’s
constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued
by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the Directors with written materials, as
well as organizes seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The job nature of Chief executive officer is the same as the Managing
Director in our Company.

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director
are held separately by two individuals to ensure their respective
independence, accountability and responsibility. The Chairman is
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board and formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company. The Managing
Director is responsible for managing the Group's business and overall
operations. The day-to-day running of the Company is delegated
to the management with divisional heads responsible for different
aspects of the business.

The Chairman shall ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings.

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that Directors receive
adequate information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to the shareholders for the wellbeing and success of
the Company.

To enhance the effectiveness of the management of the Company,
the Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee to oversee corresponding aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company have defined written
terms of reference.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on August 2000 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term of
reference, which describes the authority and duties of the Committee,
as quoted under code provision D.3.3 of the Code. The written terms
of reference which describe the authority and duties of the Audit
Committee were adopted on August 2000 and revised on 1 March
2012 to conform to the provisions of the Code, a copy of which is
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange on 2
March 2012.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

o to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to
approve the audit fees and the terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of their resignation or
dismissal;

o to monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and to discuss with the external auditor
the nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations
before the audit commences,

o to monitor integrity of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements, annual report, accounts and the half-year report,
and to review significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

o to oversee the Group's financial reporting system and internal
control procedures; and

o to review compliance with regulatory and legal requirements by
the Company.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least four times each year. In 2022,
the Audit Committee held 4 meetings which include considering the
annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2021 and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended
30 June 2022, discussing with the Company’s auditor on the existing
internal control. The Audit Committee also provides in important link
between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters coming
within the scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

Subsequent to the financial year end, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2022, including the accounting #Z#iz&MHBRF > BREAEBFRMN 2Tt RE
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and recommended RIER|> TEZFEEGH o
them to the Board for approval.
There were four meetings held during the year, details of attendance ER> BIZEZEEHRTHEAZH > HEFHE
are set out below: T
Number of meetings BERH 4
Audit Committee members: BREEENE !
Mr. Tam Chak Chi (Chairman of Audit Committee) BEZLYE (BREESLE) 4/4
Mr. Ma Kin Ling EfERE 4/4
Mr. NGAN Kam Biu Stanford bl 4/4
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 27 March 2012 and is composed of
one executive director and two independent non-executive directors,
namely Dr. Hui Chi Ming, c.B.s., 1. (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Tam Chak Chi and Mr. Ma Kin Ling.

In order to comply with the Code, the Board adopted terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee on 27 March 2012 and the
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on 28 March 2012.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy; to identify and nominate qualified individuals for
appointment as additional directors or to fill Board vacancies as and
when they arise, and to make recommendations to the Board on
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession plan for directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. According to the Board
diversity policy, the Board takes into account various elements
of diversity including but not limited to age, gender, cultural and
educational background, skills, professional knowledge and industry
experience in determining the appointment and reappointment of the
Directors and proposed candidates. All Directors appointments are
based on meritocracy and due regard is given to the Board's diversity
to ensure the Company can obtain the benefits of such diversity. The
nomination committee is responsible for the monitoring and review of
the policy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

During the year, the nomination committee reviewed the composition
of the Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company'’s business, the Nomination Committee
confirmed that the existing Board was appropriately structured and
no change was required. However, the Nomination Committee also
concluded that one more independent non-executive director shall be
appointed so as to re-comply with Rules 3.10(A) of the listing rules.

Besides the consideration of the suitability of the directors' skills and
experience, the Board believes that consideration should be given
to gender diversity when recruiting new directors and employees.
The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually on the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
recommend candidate(s) to the Board. Also, both of the Nomination
Committee and the Board have reviewed the Board’s composition
from diversity perspectives and monitored the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis and consider that it
is effective during the year. The Company strives to have at least a
female director no later than 31 December 2024.

For the purpose of implementing board diversity policy, the following
measurable objectives were adopted by the Board:

The number of independent non-executive Directors should be
not less than three and one-third of the Board,

o At least one of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise;

o At least one Director has the professional or intensive business
experience of the Group's industry and operations; and

The Board shall have at least one member of a different gender.

The Company also considers diversity during the recruitment,and
selection of key management and other employees. As at 31
December 2022, the male to female ratio in the workforce of the
Group is 2.3:1 approximately.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once per year
according to its terms of reference. Four Nomination Committee
meetings were held during the year, details of attendance are set out
below:

EEEEHEY (&)
EFETZ LK (B
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Number of meetings GEAH 4
Nomination Committee members: RLZEEWE .
Dr. HUI Chi Ming, 6.85., 1P B 8G18 T, 6B, IP 4/4
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (ERZEETF/E)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi BEZRE 4/4
Mr. Ma Kin Ling ERERE 4/4

During the year, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company and the retirement and re-appointment arrangement of the
Directors in the Company's forthcoming annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 28
July 2005 with terms of reference substantially the same as those
contained in code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code. The written terms of reference which describe the authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee were adopted on 28 July
2005 and revised on 1 March 2012 to conform to the provisions of
the Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange. A majority of the members of the Remuneration
Ccommittee is Independent Non-executive Directors and members of
the Committee are listed as below.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

In accordance with the code provision B.1.2 (c)(ii) of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Remuneration Committee is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere in
the Group and the desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the
following duties:

o to determine the policy for the remuneration of executive
directors, assessing performance of executive directors and
approving the terms of executive directors’ service contracts;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration and to place recommendations before the Board
concerning the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to
the Directors from time to time;

o to review and approve the senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

o to performs an advisory role to the Board and to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management, with
the Board retaining the final authority to approve executive
directors’ and senior management’s remuneration;

o to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration on
independent non-executive directors;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

o to review and approve the compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management in connection with any loss
or termination of their office or appointment to ensure that
such compensation is determined in accordance with relevant
contractual terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive, and

o to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that such arrangements are determined in accordance with
relevant contractual terms and that any compensation payment
is otherwise reasonable and appropriate.

The overriding objective of the remuneration policy is to ensure that
the Company is able to attract, retain, and motivate a high-calibre
team which is essential to the success of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once each year.
During the year, four meetings were held to consider and approve the

remuneration of all Directors and senior management.

Four Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the year,
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details of attendance are set out below: )
Number of meetings BHERE 4
Remuneration Committee members: HNEEEME
Mr. Ma Kin Ling ERERE 4/4
(Chairman of Remuneration Committee) FWZEEE/E)
Mr. Tam Chak Chi BEZLYE 4/4
Mr. Hui Ngok Lun FrEBSTE 4/4

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the existing remuneration policies of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

()  To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i) To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(iv)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Group; and

(v)  To review the Group’s compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board approved the terms of reference of the
Board and the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, the
shareholder communication policy, shareholder enquiry procedures
and special request procedures.
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AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Group, Cheng&Cheng Limited,

Certified Public Accountants, is set out as follow:

Services Rendered

B EmRYEN =
BE_S-__F+-A=t+-ALEE B
V4 eSS PR Skt ek
A E ) ZMERFMT :

Fees paid/payable

FRiz (it AR 7% Bt EEHER
HK$'000

TFHET
Audit services EFARTS 2,100
Other assurance services HA#E R 650

The audit committee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company to the Company’s external
auditors for annual audit services is reasonable. There has been no
major disagreement between the auditors and the management of
the Company during the year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Po Eric, the secretary of the Company whose biography details
are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles” in this Annual Report, confirmed that he had attained no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 December 2022.

LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has not yet arranged insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its directors as the Board considers that the Board
adopts prudent management policy. The needs for insurance policy
will be reviewed from time to time.
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DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibilities for:

(i) overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, and

(i) selecting suitable accounting policies and applying the selected
accounting policies consistently with the support of reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates.

The statement by auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 88 to 96 of the
Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external advisor
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group's assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

o Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

o Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

o Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk or
allocate to different location or product or market; and

o Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the Group
and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The risk
management and internal control system are design to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has engaged an
external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function to
ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group. There is no significant deficiency
and weakness on the internal control system has been identified by
the external advisory firm for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
risk management and internal control system and procedures of the
Group, covering all material controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions were
reasonably effective and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

An annual general meeting shall be held in every year. General
meetings which are not annual general meetings are known as special
general meetings ("SGM") as referred to in the procedures described
below. These procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the Company,
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”) and
applicable legislation and regulations.

Convening of SGM on requisition of shareholders

In accordance with the Companies Act registered Shareholder(s)
holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit of the requisition shall have the
right to submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be convened
by the Board.

The written requisition (i) must state the purposes(s) of the meeting,
and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
Company's registered office in Bermuda, and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. To
ensure that the requisition is received by the Company at the earliest
opportunity, the requisitionists are urged to deposit also a copy of
the signed requisition at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong (for the attention of the board of directors or the company
secretary).

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene an SGM within 21 days
from the date of deposit of the requisition, the requisitionist(s) (or any
of them representing more than one-half of their total voting rights)
may himself/themselves convene an SGM, which must be held within
3 months of the date of deposit of the requisition. The SGM must be
convened by the requisitionist(s) in the same manner as nearly as
possible as that in which SGM is to be convened by the Directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward proposals at general meetings

In accordance with Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act, the
registered Shareholders are entitled to putting forward a proposal at a
general meeting if:

(@ they represent not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of the Company as at the date of the deposit of the
requisition; or

(b)  there are not less than 100 registered Shareholders.

The written requisition stating the resolutions is duly signed by the

registered Shareholder(s) concerned, accompanied by a statement

of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to

in the proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with must be
deposited at the registered office of the Company.

Upon receipt of a valid written requisition, the Company shall take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements, and the
Shareholders concerned shall be responsible for the expenses
incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the requirements
under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor standard Limited at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post, by facsimiles
or by email, together with his/her contact details, such as postal
address, email or fax, addressing to the head office of the Company at
the following address or facsimile number or via email:

Address: Units 1910-12, 19/F China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587-7807

Email: ericpo@wwri007.com
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting forward enquiries to the Board (Continued)

All enquiries shall be collected by the Company Secretary who
shall report to the Executive Directors periodically on the enquiries
collected. The Executive Directors shall review the enquiries and
assign different kinds of enquiries to appropriate division head/
manager for answering. After receiving the answers of all enquiries
from the relevant division head/manager, the Company Secretary will
collect the answers for the Executive Directors’ review and approval.
The Company Secretary shall then be authorized by the Executive
Directors to reply all enquiries in writing.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to
those with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. In
addition, questions received from the general public and individual
shareholders are answered promptly. In all cases great care is taken to
ensure that no price-sensitive information is disclosed selectively.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No significant changes to the Company’s constitutional documents
were made during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Board is responsible for ensuring shareholder communications
are adequate and appropriate and based on transparency and
sound corporate governance principles. The Company adopted a
Shareholders Communication Policy on 1 March 2012 which aims
to present a clear, balanced and comprehensive assessment of our
financial position and operational status by providing shareholders
and other stakeholders with information in a timely and transparent
manner. The Company will communicate to shareholders through
written information and electronic communication as follows:

Annual and interim reports

o Disclosures made to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

o Notice and circular of general meetings

o Annual general meeting, where the external auditor is available
to answer questions about the audit

o Corporate website: WWRIO07.com

Direct enquiry sent to the Company

To promote effective communication with the shareholders, the
Company decided to improve its Shareholders Communication Policy
after reviewing its effectiveness during the year.
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ABOUT THE GROUP

Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group Limited (the
“Company”; or together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we")
is principally engaged in (i) trading of electronic products and
equipment; (i) mineral mining, oil and gas business; (iii) financial
business; and (iv) property development and investment.

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Group is pleased to present its seventh Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Report (the “"Report”), to highlight the Group's
ESG policies, measures, and performance, and allow stakeholders to
understand the sustainable development progress of the Group.

Scope and Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, the Report covers the performance of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting
Period”). A change has been made to the scope of environmental key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) for the Reporting Period. Due to the
change in place of business operation and the materiality concern,
the performance evaluation and statistics of environmental KPIs
include only the trading business in Hong Kong. Social KPIs summarize
the performance of the whole Group.

Reporting Standard

This Report has been prepared by following the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “Guide”) as set out in Appendix
27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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RIB LB RERHRS

Reporting Principles

The following reporting principles underpin the preparation of the
Report:

o Materiality: The Group has identified material ESG issues by
considering business nature and development.

o Quantitative: The Group has disclosed the KPIs and
comparative figures quantitatively where appropriate.

o Balance: The Group has presented the performance in an
unbiased manner.

o Consistency: The Group has applied consistent statistical
methodologies for meaningful comparisons of ESG data
over time. In case of any changes in the reporting scope or
methodologies, they shall be explained for the reference of
stakeholders.

Access to the Report

This Report is available in both Chinese and English on the website of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the official website of
the Group. In case of any conflict or discrepancy between versions,
the English version shall prevail.
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SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE

Being the highest decision-making level in the ESG governance
structure, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) is principally
responsible for decision-making on ESG-related issues. The Board
identifies, analyzes, evaluates, prioritizes, and manages the key
risks of daily operations and ESG, as well as explores potential
opportunities. The Board is responsible for reviewing ESG-
related policies and targets in Board meetings. The Board also
holds full accountability for the report’s authenticity, accuracy,
and comprehensiveness. In addition, we have engaged Riskory
Consultancy Limited as an independent ESG consultant to assist the
Group in preparing the ESG Report and providing relevant advisory
services.

For the Group’s other corporate governance issues, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” in the Annual Report 2022.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Being one of the key concerns for the Group, we are committed to
continuously enhancing the performance of environmental protection
and sustainability. In addition to the adoption of environmental
policies and delivering attainable environmental objectives to
employees, we proactively encourage our staff to protect the
environment through training, education, and communication.

The Group closely monitors the updates of and strictly abides by the
national and local environmental laws and regulations, including but
not limited to the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354 of the Law of
Hong Kong).

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not violate any laws and
regulations that had a significant impact on the Group relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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Emissions

During the Reporting Period, the Group's greenhouse gas (“GHG")
emissions are mainly attributed to purchased electricity emissions
(Scope 2). Air pollutants and direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) are
generated due to the use of unleaded petrol on automobiles. The
emission data for the Reporting Period is as follows:

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

HEm

RBREHE AEENREERBHREERE
SNEBHZHEN (BE D) - ABPREANE
HWATHEELEBERREFEEREIN (BE
—) cIREMEPEREENT ¢

Emission Unit 2022
2135 &7 Efu —E__
Air Emissions

BE R B

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) Kg 1.15
Ea=RInk7) Tz

Sulphur oxides (SOx) Kg 0.03
maity Tz

Particulate matter (PM) Kg 0.08
S TR T

GHG Emissions

BERBEBER

Direct emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes CO2e 5.32
BEW (#EE-) W —E{EREE

Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes COze 2.81
AERMEIZHEN (BE D) M| tRES

Total emissions Tonnes CO2e 8.13
mHEmE W —E{ERE =

Intensity Kg CO2e/million HK$ revenue 0.02
BE Fr-_GtREE BEBTHR

The group will consider implementing relevant measures to reduce
GHG emissions in the future.

FEBRRKEEEMAERBER BHORER
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Waste Management

Since the business nature of the Group, we did not generate any
hazardous waste during operation. Non-hazardous wastes, including
domestic, food, and plastic waste, would be disposed of by the
relevant services provider. The relevant data for the Reporting Period
is as follows:

IRIF - ERERRS
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Waste Unit 2022
R ! —E-=
Total non-hazardous waste Kg 45
mEBEREYRE F5

Intensity Kg/million HK$ revenue 0.09
BE Fr/ aasxia

The Group strives to properly handle and reduce emissions and waste
by implementing several measures. To lower paper consumption,
we encourage staff to have paper-saving practices, including using
electronic documents, printing internal documents by recycling paper,
using double-sided printing, photocopying, and reusing single-sided
paper.
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Energy Consumption

Efficient utilization of resources is not only pivotal to efficient
production but also the key to the Group's attribution to the
environmental-friendly strategy. The direct energy consumption is
attributed from the use of unleaded petrol on vehicles, while indirect
energy consumption is attributed from the electricity use in the
business operation. The energy consumption data for the Reporting
Period is as follows:

RERIH#E

ENERAERTERSMEENMRE  TEE
EEBEMIRFRREBR - B RHFERE
BWERENAUR MERERHFEIREE
BEETNWENER BEHMBEREEH
=3 I

Energy Consumption Unit 2022
REIRIHFE B i ==
Direct energy — Unleaded petrol kwh 18,212
ERER B TER

Indirect energy — Purchased electricity kwh 7,200
BiEER— MRS TE&

Total kwh 25,412
e TR B

Intensity kwh/million HK$ revenue 49.68
BE FEE B8 BxlE

During the Reporting Period, we adopted several initiatives to achieve
the goal of higher energy efficiency and reduction in electricity usage:

o Switch off lights and air-conditioning in the meeting room and
computers at workstations where not in use;

o Select the best configuration for the air-conditioning control
programme, based on in-door requirements and out-door
conditions; and

o Encourage teleconference and Internet meeting practices to
avoid unnecessary travel.
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Water Consumption

As water is a precious resource in the world, the Group strives to
reduce water consumption. The Group does not encounter any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose during the Reporting Period.
The water consumption data is as follows:

IRIF - ERERRS

22/ 3

KERZHALESHNER ZEBR AL
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Water Consumption Unit 2022
AkeE =R —E-C
Total water consumption m? 90
BKiEE K

Intensity ms/million HK$ revenue 0.18
BE YHK/BEBTE

In the future, we will consider adopting several practices to promote
the water-saving message and reduce water consumption and
prevent unnecessary leakage.

Packaging Materials

During the Reporting Period, paper and plastic are the major
packaging materials used in our business. We will strive to reduce
packaging material usage in the future to achieve higher efficiency
and cost reduction during operation. The packaging materials
consumption data is as follows:
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P o BRI B HFEBERA T ¢

Packaging materials Unit 2022
BRYEMER B —E=Z
Total Kilogram 70
s T

Intensity Kilogram/million HK$ revenue 0.14
HE TR/ BEBTE
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The Environment and Natural Resources

In order to minimize the consumption of natural resources and
adverse impacts on the environment, the Group would continue to
implement green office practices as well as drive for higher-efficiency
alternatives to reduce our emissions and consumption.

Climate Change

As a responsible enterprise, we recognize the severity and urgency
of climate change. We will continuously identify the potential
opportunities and risks of climate change and improve our
environmental performance by implementing relevant measures.
To cope with emerging climate issues, we will strive to optimize our
business operations, achieve greater energy efficiency, and secure
value chain alternatives in the future.

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

As a good employment relationship is one of the keys to the
success of our business and sustainable development, the Group
prioritizes the development and welfare of employees. Competitive
remuneration packages and comprehensive training programmes are
provided to retain talents and inspire employees’ potential, as well as
ensure they are in a position with their strengths.

Employment

We value our employees at all levels. Their expertise and experiences
had a huge contribution to the Group sustaining a long-term
relationship with major stakeholders in various jurisdictions.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable labour laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance
(Cap. 57 of the Law of Hong Kong) and the Minimum Wage Ordinance
(Cap. 608 of the Law of Hong Kong). During the Reporting Period,
we were not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on our operation in relation
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 90 employees. The
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Group's workforce demographics are as follows:

IRIF - ERERRS

R ZF+ZA=+—H HxEEBHEFD
HEE -AEBRERASTEENT !

Workforce Unit 2022
B8 =R ] —E_C
By gender

RERE 5

Male Person 63
B4 A

Female Person 27
2% A

By age group

el AE BB

30 or below Person 20
30 SIA T A

31-50 Person 47
31E505% A

51 or above Person 23
SR8 £ A

By employment type

HERERES S

Full-time Person 72
2 A

Part-time Person 18
Bl A

By geographical location

& 253

The PRC Person 69
M A

Hong Kong Person 21
58 A
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The turnover rate of the Group during the Reporting Period is as
follows:

REREHE ZAEBNEERREXNT !

Employee Turnover Unit 2022
BERERE =4 —ZT-=
By gender

R E 5

Male Percentage 13.1%
B4 Btk

Female Percentage 16.8%
7% B

By age group

e be AE BB

30 or below Percentage 12.5%
30 SIA T Bt

31-50 Percentage 9.0%
31E505% Btk

51 or above Percentage 36.1%
S1sR A £ B

By geographical location

&2 5

The PRC Percentage 19.3%
H Bt

Hong Kong Percentage 17.6%
&5& Btk

The Group has adopted the practices and policies in relation to
compensation and dismissal, fair recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare, equal opportunities,
diversity, and anti-discrimination to ensure the employees'’ rights and
benefits. To protect the rights and clarify responsibilities, all of our
employees have signed the contracts that fulfilling the employment
law and regulations with the Group. The management would
frequently review the remuneration policy in relation to relevant
market standards. The Group implements a 40-hour work week. We
maintain a holiday policy and travel policy, such as annual vacation
leave, compensation leave, maternity leave, personal leave, and sick
leave.
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As an equal-opportunity employer, the Group promotes the diversity
of the workforce, including age, gender, nationality, and culture. If the
applicants are competent and willing to learn, we welcome them to
join the Group regardless of their age.

Health and Safety

To reduce workplace incidents and improve the health care for
employees suffering from occupational incidents, the Group strictly
complies with all applicable laws and regulations including but not
limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509
of the Law of Hong Kong). The workplace is well equipped with fire
and safety equipment with regular amenities checking to prevent the
outbreak of fire. In addition, the staff handbook outlines the safety
policies and instructions for employees.

With the implementation of health and safety measures, no work-
related injuries or fatalities were recorded for the years ended 31
December 2020, 2021, and 2022 by the Group. During the Reporting
Period, we were not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in relation
to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

Development and Training

The Group believes that employee growth and development is
fundamental for sustainable development. Therefore, we strive to
enhance the professional skills, knowledge, standards, and integrated
ability of staff regularly. Employees’ job enthusiasm is motivated to
face the challenge and thereby create greater corporate value and
future development.

Various internal and external training programmes are provided to
employees. For instance, new employees are provided with onboard
training for better adaptation in daily operations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group provided first-aid training to the frontline staff in the
hotel in Madagascar.
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Employees’ training data during the Reporting Period is as follows: BERRSHBNBIIEHEUWT :
Employee Training Unit 2022
EE = B ==

Percentage of the employee trained
ZiIEEFAL

By gender

g I bay

Male Percentage 62.5%
B4 B2t

Female Percentage 63.0%
2z Btk

By employee category

RESENE S

Senior management Percentage 34.0%
SHREIEE B

Middle management Percentage 43.1%
RRERE B2t

General staff Percentage 69.6%
ZEET B

Average training hours completed per employee
BRESRRZ NN TR

By gender

R 8 o

Male Hour 3
S INEF

Female Hour 2
7 TN

By employee category

RESENE S

Senior management Hour 5
=REEE NS

Middle management Hour 3
RRERE AN

General staff Hour 2
ZEET NS
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Labour Standards

Forced and child labour is strictly prohibited. Considering labour
standards may vary in various jurisdictions, we strictly adhere to
relevant national and local laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Law of Hong
Kong) and the Employment of Children Regulations (Cap. 57B of the
Law of Hong Kong).

Under our principle of zero tolerance for forced and child labour,
Human Resources Department has implemented a strict recruitment
procedure. If any forced and child labour is discovered, the person will
be immediately dismissed, and the board will follow by discussing and
reviewing the issue to avoid any recurrence.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with laws and regulations in relation to the
prevention of child and forced labour that would have a significant
impact on the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

To satisfy the customers’ demand, we strive for all-inclusive solutions
and adopt a comprehensive vertical supply chain management
system through resource integration and supplier screening and
management. The relevant policy has been established to sustain the
long-term relationship with our major suppliers and ensure a constant
supply. As at 31 December 2022, we had a total of 50 key suppliers, all
of them from Hong Kong.

We aim to strengthen the collaborative relationship with suppliers and
create a competitive advantage in the value chain to bring positive
impacts to our society and environment. The Group has adopted a
supplier screening procedure to maintain the quality of the product
and ensure the stance on sustainable development is aligned
throughout the entire supplier chain. During the Reporting Period, 15
suppliers have been reviewed.
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RIB LB RERHRS

In the future, we consider taking the environmental and social risk
into account and promoting environmentally friendly products and
services in the procedure of supplier selection. In order to improve
sustainability and minimize carbon footprint, local sourcing will be
considered and prioritized.

Product Responsibility

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly abides by all relevant
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Law of Hong Kong) and Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Law of Hong Kong). We were
not aware of any material non-compliance with laws and regulations
concerning health and safety, advertising, labeling, and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and method of
redress that have a significant impact on the Group.

Quality Product and Service

During the construction or operation phase, the building of the Group
would be assessed, maintained, and repaired to ensure safety quality
and secure the health and safety of customers and employees in the
vicinity of the Group's property.

In addition, the Group provides financial services to satisfy customers’
financial needs and adopts a specific procedure to ensure the quality
of services and products. These services and products will be tailored
to the customers’ financial backgrounds and risk tolerance levels. We
are committed to providing clear information to ensure customers are
well-informed during decision-making.

Our products strictly complied with the PRC's Product Quality Law,
which states the company shall be liable for personal or property
damage caused by product defects. The Group also requires related
parties to follow the Advertising Law of PRC by signing an advertising
contract with relevant terms. During Reporting Period, no products
were returned due to health and safety issues.
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Customer Satisfaction

We have established the procedure for handling customer complaints.
Once a complaint is received, it will be reviewed immediately, and
corrective action will be taken if necessary. During the Reporting
Period, no complaints relating to services and products were
received.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group considers intellectual property as our valuable asset.
To increase the employee’s understanding of intellectual property
protection, we will consider providing more relevant training to our
employees in the future.

Privacy Protection

During the Reporting Period, the Group had no material non-
compliance about the leakage of customers’ data. Employees are
obligated to protect confidential information obtained during their
duties, including but not limited to trade secrets, client information,
and other proprietary information.

Anti-Corruption

The Group adheres to a high standard of moral integrity throughout
its operations. We do not tolerate any unethical business conduct
including bribery, extortion, fraud, and money laundering. We strictly
comply with the relevant laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Law
of Hong Kong). During the Reporting Period, no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices were filed against the Group or
our employees, and the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud, and money laundering that have a significant impact on the
Group.
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RIF - ERESHRS

To eradicate unethical business conduct, we have established
documents and directives that clearly state offer, solicit, or accept
anything of material value to or from fellow employees, customers,
suppliers, or other associates in relation to the Group's affairs is
strictly prohibited prior the knowledge and consent of the Group. In
case of any violation being spotted, disciplinary action or termination
of employment would be considered.

Besides, we recognize that a system with good business integrity
and an anti-corruption mechanism is the cornerstone for our Group's
sustainable development. We have formulated relevant policies and
guidelines on anti-money laundering and counterterrorist financing
for the jurisdictions our business is involved in. If any suspicious
transaction is recognized, it would be reported to the relevant
government department by our relevant officer.

Online anti-corruption training is provided to senior management,
which included the potential corruption risks faced during the
preparation for company listing, daily business operations, and
mergers and acquisitions. 6 Directors have finished the anti-
corruption training during the Reporting Period.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

To fulfill our corporate social responsibility, we value the community’s
sustainable development and would seek the opportunity for
community investment. As a part of the Group’s sustainable
development strategy, we are committed to providing employment
opportunities to the locals and promoting the development of the
community’s economy.
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PSR AR 25 1%B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
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have a significant impact on the issue
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relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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RSB NIE1EB5.4 preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and  Management
how they are implemented and monitored. HEREE

HitEREHEEREESBRFRERKRBIED > LUKk
RRARITRERTT A

Annual Report 2022 « — = —F 53

85



A g

Q IRIF-HERET

Content
AE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

almS

Relevant Section
in this Report
RS HEAEE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[BEB6 : EmEIE

General Disclosure
—RE

KPIB6.1
RS AR5 1RB6. 1

KPIB6.2
RR B A 30 151%B6.2

KPIB6.3
R AN 151%B6.3

KPI B6.4
RSB AR R IE 7B 4

KPIB6.5
R AR 151%B6.5

86

Information on:
BRAFMEMERMNRENREERAZE ES
BB EN

RERILEE

(a) the policies; and
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have a significant impact on the issue
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relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
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Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.
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Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
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Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures
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Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
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Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
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procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

VR G

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
@ CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
wmom g F M OF OB A N A

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES
INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wisdom
Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 97 to 246, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

REEERREZEREBMARABTMIRKRR
(R ERZERMELIERAE])

ER

BMEBZINBENETE24EETERREE
REBERAT (EAF)) REWBAS (HE
TEER) WREMBERE LM BBREEE
RIBEZ__F+-A=+—HBMGREHHBKR
KEBREEQLFENGREEaREMEEN
TR GRAEDEPHRNGESRERER UK
FREMBRRNE BT 2t HREE -

BMRA ZEREMBRRBBESE G
2 ((BEEGHMAR)) BEH2EBRERS
ZR (TEBUMBREERN) EEMAFH K
M SEER _Z-__F#+_A=+—HNE
BHMBRANE BEEEHEZHITFENLG
EHBEREREGERENE LERRBES
NEMEGINEBEREZ AR

ERER

ZPERBEEESAMAERMGHEBESTE
A TEBHER) ETBEZ -REZFER)
HPNEEREIRE RBETLEZGR ST BR
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BMBIN BEE TEBETBITHEM
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
FSREIZEIR

Independent Auditor’'s Report
RV S GRS

RRE%EER

HMRBZFEDRERFANEEFE  RAHER
BPBREPEZGEVBERREAEENS
R BEFREERMELEBRGEMBRERK
FULEMKFNERBFETRE MEFATEH
ELEFHREHEBNER

How the matter was address in our audit
RMETEZENAEIEZEE

Valuation of investment properties
KEMEMGE

As disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment properties measured
at fair value amounted to approximately HK$4,220,922,000
as at 31 December 2022. The fair value was determined by
management with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer (the “valuer”) engaged by the
Group.

UGS BRRWEF0MFEE R 2F+A8
=+—H> BEERQATEFENEEMEINAY
4,220,922,0008c Z AT ETHEREL2E S£EE
BERVE I 2 EED (TMGERM)) EITHEETMEE

The valuation of investment properties involved significant
judgements and estimates, which mainly included the
determination of valuation techniques and the selection of
different inputs in the models.
KREMELESIRERAE R G T EBEEEHER
ERIEES RN R A B -

Our major procedures to address the valuation of
investment properties included the following:
EPEBREYELENTIERFERFUTEE

o Reviewed the valuation report from independent
qualified valuer and discussed with management
and the valuer to understand the valuation basis,
methodology used and underlying assumptions
applied and assessed the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the valuation technique and
assumptions used
BREBETEEROEMNMGERS wEEEE
KRG EMETHmUATHREEER -FMAAER
FiT & FB B9 A8 B R &% Mt 5T 1 P PR B 3 0 e (R e Y
BEEMRSEMN

o Evaluated the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer
S ERTA A 3 s BE =R M

o Obtained the underlying data including comparable
of market transactions, estimated construction costs
and development profit margin being used by the
valuer and assessed whether they are reasonable
and appropriate
ERGEMERNMER S st 825% kA K5
BRI EENAREE (BEYLERER) > WilEE
EZ‘AEEEZA ]
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B2 TR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FREZEE

RBELEE (&

How the matter was address in our audit
RPETEZENAERIEZEE

Considering the above mentioned significance of judgement,
estimates and the financial impacts of the valuation, we
considered the valuation of investment properties as a key
audit matter.

BN LA E R EFNEEEREENM BT E > PR
KREYMELERIFIBMESEZEER.

Discussed with the management and the valuer
how they arrived at the estimated percentage of
completion, the estimated market prices when they
are completed, estimated profit margin and the
estimated costs to complete, and checked to the
source data on a sample basis to assess whether
they are reasonable and appropriate
HERERHEMS R ENAEEEst=TIE
DHENETBNMGESTEE Gt BEEMEING
ST AR A > S DA B 2 AR R 58 B LAGT {5 48 B
HEREAERGE

Reviewed all the agreements and documents
relevant to the projects
& & BIE B ARRIIPT A thaE R XX

Checked land certificate, arranged land search and
performed site visit for the existence and ownership
of the investment properties
MEEMERSHFEREMBEEE L HE L
BT M EMARETEMER

Engaged another independent valuation expert to
evaluate the valuation basis, methodology used
and underlying assumptions applied by the valuer
engaged by the management
ZES—2EIGAEEFTHEEEZENGE
EMRYE(EEZE ~ PR 75 /A & PR FE AR AR R R a%

Performed sensitivity analysis to assess the
reasonableness of the valuation inputs
ETERESMLGHEGERABBEZEESIE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
R EIZEIA

Independent Auditor’'s Report
RV S GRS

RBE%EE (2

How the matter was address in our audit
RPETEZENAERIEZEIE

Assessment of the net realisable values of properties
for sale
S EY R AIRITEE

As disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had properties for sale (“PFS”) of
approximately of HK$945,559,000 as at 31 December 2022.
The Group's assessment of the carrying amounts of PFS, being
the lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV"), takes into
account the fair value of the PFS and costs necessary to make
the sale.
UGS M EmRRNE28MEE EEENR S
TZR=+—HHHFEME ((FEWE) 4%945,559,000
Broe BEBEGTEYENREE IR AR 2 FE
(MIEIREE) MEFPHNRES) B EEREFEWENL
TEBEITHEPTRRIA A

The management of the Group determines the fair value of the
PFS with reference to valuation performed by an independent
qualified professional valuer (“valuer”) engaged by the Group.
EEREEEEEREYENRTFER 2% BE£EZ

B S BESEEGEN (MHE) ETHNEEMEE

Our major procedures to address the assessment of the
NRV of the PFS included the following:
RAREGFEYENTERFETENEEZRRFBENU
T&IE:

o Evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer
S LB R~ B K AE

o Discussed with the management and the valuer the
methodology and assumptions used in determining
the market value of the properties and assessed
the appropriateness and reasonableness of the
valuation technigues and assumptions used
BEERERGEM REEWEMEREKANS
ERBRLFEMMBAHERMREZNEE TR
SN

o Sample checked for the estimated market value of
properties used by the valuer to the market prices of
comparable properties nearby the properties under
development to determine whether there was any
significant variance
HGEMEANYENTEFLBERE  WE
BEPYEWOIN AR ENEREEETT
BONETREREREARER

o Discussed with the management and the valuer
how they arrived at the estimated percentage of
completion, the estimated selling prices when they
are completed, estimated profit margin and the
estimated costs to complete, and checked to the
source data on a sample basis to assess whether
they are reasonable and appropriate
HEEERMGEMN R HNAEH4AstTIE
DHENTTRHNMESTEE Gt ABEEMT TG
ST AR > M DA AR R AR B IR B B R DA 5T A A8 B
BEESaEREE
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B2 TR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FREZEE

BEREE (2

How the matter was address in our audit
RPETEZENAERIEZEE

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the PFS
and after taking into consideration the fair value of the PFS and
costs necessary to make the sale, no write-down of PFS was
considered necessary for the year ended 31 December 2022.

REBEEEEUTFEYEIEIRFEFLHNMGE LEERE
FEMENRTERETHEMBNMARE  BRMBAR
HE_ S+ -A=+—"HLEFEBEMATEY
£

Considering the above mentioned significance of estimates
and the financial impacts of the valuation, we considered the
assessment of the NRV of PFS as a key audit matter.

EN A RHEENYBEEENEE Y RO TEE
EVEZ SR FERF-IREESZER

Compared the market value less costs to sell
determined by the valuer with the carrying amount
of the properties for any impairment

LA AT Rk 1 765 1 B BT 78 X B9 T (LR LE S AR AN B2 4D
ENREEBETLER

Checked the land certificate and performed land
search for the ownership of the properties
MYEMBHREE T B RET LS

Performed site visit for the properties
HYEEITEMER

Reviewed all the agreements and documents
relevant to the projects
BERIBEEEANPI A R R X

Engaged another independent valuation expert to
evaluate the valuation basis, methodology used
and underlying assumptions applied by the valuer
engaged by the management
ZES—ABEIGEEFTHEREZENGE
EMRYE(EE 2~ FT A 75 /A & PR FE AR O AR R R a%

Performed sensitivity analysis to assess the
reasonableness of the valuation inputs
ETEREDMLGHOGERABBRESSIE
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

BWAZR MRS

Hth=#

BERREFEFHMEN HMENSREHA
FERSWER EFRRBGEEVHBREREK
FIEIZ BB ¥R = o

BAMGEHFTRENERIERAEEME
£ BRAA GRS RERTEANERER

MEFMEZGESYBREMS  AFANEER
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CERREMBRRABMEZTZBREPEEDN
BREFEEEANT  NEFEFEERBERRLL -
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TR FLULEH RS o

ESRAEEMRESMBERRAKE
HEE

BEAREFEEREEAEHMATEMNE
BUBREERREBREFOHKERTE R
REBMAFHGEEYHRE IREEIR
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RMERNEAERRIEFIBENRNNEES

Ho
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B2 TR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

ZE ML Bz AR S I R R R B A IERN
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

BWAZR MRS
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B2 TR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Cheng & Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Cheng Hong Cheung

Practising Certificate number P01802

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023

BT AABE LR B MR R AREN
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
relEmkEMEERGER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FHEx
Revenue W 7,10 511,537 522,404
Cost of goods sold and direct costs EViEE AR BEERA (480,464) (464,527)
Gross profit Eil 31,073 57,877
Other income HAh A 8 5,287 4,905
Other gains or losses, net H e SRS 1R 2R 9 (1,088) -
Fair value changes on investment LEMEANTEEE
properties 20 467,131 442,760
Impairment losses of financial assets REENAECEMEEZ
at amortised cost, net BERIEFEE 1 (28,392) (4,738)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (1,220) (1,303)
Administrative expenses THRAX (59.226) (57,634)
Finance costs M ER 12 (57,250) (49,265)
Profit before taxation FRIR AT A 356,315 392,602
Taxation I8 13 (116,740) (116,399)
Profit for the year F A F] 14 239,575 276,203
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mEEmkHEMERRDR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FET
Other comprehensive (expense) income  EamE GZH) WA
ltem that may be reclassified HEEEMPEERE 2
subsequently to profit or loss: ER:
Exchange differences arising on REBINEFE
translation of financial statements MHBEBRERMELZ
of foreign operations PE =28 (380,262) 128,217
(380,262) 128,217
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEEMDEERRER !
profit or loss:
Fair value losses on investment in BAFESAHMEE
equity instruments at fair value WAZKREATE®REZ
through other comprehensive NFEEIE
income = (181)
Other comprehensive (expense) income  FEREMEE 2 H) WA
for the year (380,262) 128,036
Total comprehensive (expense) income  ERZ2E ZH) WA LLEE
for the year (140,687) 404,239
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
relEmkEMEERGER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-C B —F
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FET
Profit for the year attributable to: B E P EF)
Owners of the Company KNBEB A 250,227 267,895
Non-controlling interests JERERE S 42 (10,652) 8,308
239,575 276,203
Total comprehensive (expense) income B2 E R H) WA LLEE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBlHEB A (129,823) 395,848
Non-controlling interests JEPERG R (10,864) 8,391
(140,687) 404,239
Earnings per share SRER
- Basic and diluted —EARRKE#E 17 HK$0.0474% 7T HK$0.06705 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MBIRRR

At 31 December 2022 RWZZ2ZZHF+"HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-C BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FAT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB KRB 19 44,989 50,211
Investment properties KREYE 20 4,220,922 2,536,919
Right-of-use assets FREEE 21 2,203 1,351
Intangible assets mLEE 22 —* -
Investment in equity instruments BAFEESAHMEERA
at fair value through other ZREATAKE
comprehensive income 24 990 990
Deposit paid for construction BRENzE® 118,268 82,042
Statutory deposits B E 25 2,403 2,050
Loans receivable FEWE R 26 15,964 16,940
Deferred tax assets LRI E B 23 14,060 -
4,419,799 2,690,503
Current assets TMENEE
Inventories =FE 27 390 52,630
Properties for sale HFEME 28 945,559 1,981,337
Accounts receivable FE U BR =X 29 50,920 101,115
Loans receivable EWER 26 1,055 131
Other receivables, ET’@WEH&EE% TR RIBER
prepayments and deposits & 30 76,275 182,769
Bank balances IR1T#ET (BFERBILRP)
(trust and segregated accounts) 31 73,503 87,378
Bank balances IR1T#E7FE (—RERP) KIR%
(general accounts) and cash 31 29,790 31,859
1,177,492 2,437,219
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFELEEE 32 - 385,660
1,177,492 2,822,879
Current liabilities mENEE
Accounts payables FE{TBR X 33 101,359 164,807
Other payables and accrued expenses HtEN R R ETER 34 299,181 97,244
Lease liabilities HE&R 35 1,521 1,388
Contract liabilities =) =SE 36 48 6,862
Amounts due to Directors FETEEIA 37 79,085 225,997
Borrowings (Y= 38 421,160 390,616
Tax payables FETRIE 125 141
Corporate bonds NEMES 39 3,278 13,884
905,757 900,939

* Less than HK$1,000
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2022

= .AH
ARE

AN

R_E-__F+"B=+—H

2022 2021
—E-C BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b= FHET FET
Liabilities associated with assets EEMBEBENES
classified as held for sale FIEHE 32 - 5,806
905,757 906,745
Net current assets RBEEFE 271,735 1,916,134
Total assets less current liabilities EELEERTBER 4,691,534 4,606,637
Non-current liabilities JERBARE
Lease liabilities HESE 35 656 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 23 541,857 481,328
Corporate bonds NEES 39 3,716 3,598
Convertible bonds AR ES 40 - 17,846
546,229 502,772
Net assets BERE 4,145,305 4,103,865
Capital and reserves B s Rkt
Share capital [N 41 580,428 400,000
Reserves Bt 3,563,174 3,691,298
Equity attributable to owners of PN/NEIEZ DNy
the Company 4,143,602 4,091,298
Non-controlling interests JEERR R 42 1,703 12,567
Total equity g k] 4,145,305 4,103,865
The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 104 were HFI7EHE1MAEMNGEEHMHFREN _ S _=ZF=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson24 B _+ N BEEEEZSHERBET > WH UL
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: THREREE
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, 6Bs., JP Mr. Cao Yu
HFE#tEes, 1P BEFLiE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
ARaEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRARBAERE
Nor- Capital Convertible Currency Non-
Share Share distributable  Contributed  redemption FVTOCI  hondsequity translation Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve eamnings Sub-total interests Total
BAPEIA
Et2EUA  TREES
(2 ROEE  FIRREE BHRE ELEERG (1] RikE  SMRERE REER it JEERER L
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tin Tin Tin TiEn TiEn TiEn TR ThEn TEn ThEn TEn TEn
(noied) (noied) (ot ) (nore ) (note ) (notee)
g mE) KR BE) B G

At31 December 2020 WoB-BELZA=+-B 10000 1578317 1260308 31,504 5587 6 - (7308) 18070 3692454 417 369630

Profitfor the year FERF - - - - - - - - 2%78% 2%7.8% 8308 276203

Exchange differences EREE S S o o o o o 128046 o 128046 u 8217

Fair value loss on investmentin - A TAKEZ ATEGHR

equity instruments - - - - o 9 - - o %3 (88) (181)

Total comprehensive (expenses)/ EARTE (1) /ALE

income for the year - - - - - (93) - 128,046 267,895 395,848 8391 404,239
Recogniton of equity component BT R ESERDS
of convertible bonds - - - - - - 29% - - 29% - 29%

At31 December 2021 WZF-£+ZR=+-8 40000 1578317 1260308 315 5587 (157) 29% 80738 151965 4,091,298 1,57 1103865

Profitfor the year EEER S = o - - - - - 20227 2027 (10652) 29575

Bxchange differences ERZE S S S = = = = (380,050) - (380,050) (212) (380262)

Fair value loss on investmentin - AT B E 2 ATESHE

equity instruments - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ £ (Ti) /AR

income for the year = S = = = = = (380,050) ®2 (19823) (10864) (140687)
Early redemption of REBETARES

convertible bonds S S S S S S (1.49) o 1497 S 3 o
Derecognition of KIRDERES

convertible bonds - - - - o o (1.499) o S (1499) s (1499)

Alotment ofrights-issue HRES 161,083 (676) o o o o o o o 160377 - 160377

Subscription 0s shares SRR 19375 3874 - - - - - - - 23219 - 23019

At31 December 2022 Wo$-2%+-B=+-8 58048 1581515 1260308 315 5587 (157) 2 2931 703689 1143602 1703 4,45305

notes: k=3

(a) The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate of deemed contributions  (a) AR kFEEEEE_Z—N\F+B=+—HIHF
by the controlling shareholder in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries during ERMBEREADRIFERRRIEEE
the year ended 31 December 2018.

()  The contributed surplus represented the aggregate of: (i) the difference of (b))  BEERRIE TR BEEN (()FFENRBAIRMDEE
HK$29,140,000 between the nominal value of shares of the acquired subsidiaries BARABRAEESHEGREME T 2RO EER
and the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition H 2 Z%829,140,000 7T ; (MR IBEA A B RENR - ——
at the time of the reorganisation of the Group; (i) the credit arising from the FE+BEZHHETZRRERIAG LB BZERZE
reduction of shares premium of HK$359,162,000 transferred to the contributed 22 BIR AR (D iR B &£ 2 # R %8359,162,0008 7T (A
surplus account of the Company pursuant to the special resolutions passed RAFBHBEGR ; MW _B2—ZF+—BtH%S
by the shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting held on 20 KB B A B B& 119 76,758,00078 7T ©
October 2012; and (iii) a distribution of shares of a subsidiary of an amount of
HK$76,758,000 on 7 November 2012.

(© The capital redemption reserve arose from the repurchase of shares. The amount  (c) BABELORERBERMERL ZEBIEMMELRN 2@
represents the nominal amount of the shares repurchased. Be

(d) FVTOCI reserve represents gains/losses arising on recognising financial assets  (d) BAFEFAEMEIERAREERRIDBEARZA
classified as investment in equity instrument at fair value through other TEFAHMEARAZEATELEZEMEEM
comprehensive income. EEZRE /BB

(e) Currency translation reserve represents exchange differences relating to the  (e) N E R EIE R AEE BN ER CEEFERHE
translation of the net assets of the Group's foreign operations from their functional MEEEBMEARER 25|51 Q8T REE ZE
currencies to the Group’s presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollar) are REF BERHM2EBAPRBENINEBE#E
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the R -RINEMERERT 2 BMEREZBENHES
currency translation reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in the INEBRFERDEEEG R
currency translation reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
foreign operations.

6) Convertible bonds equity reserve represents the equity component of the — (f) MR ESEEEREEN _ S-St ANBEETH

convertible bonds with a total principal amount of HK$20,000,000 issued on 9 July
2021. There were early redemption and derecognition of convertible bonds during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

75 48 §54320,000,00078 TTHY FHR AR (B 5 20 0 o 1Y
BE_T_ S+ _BA=+—HLEFERRAERKR
RIS PR R &S -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 %

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FRIRERER
ECECCF+BA=+—HILEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Operating activities KEEE
Profit before taxation PRIR AT A 356,315 392,602
Adjustments for: TS IBEEHAZE ©
Impairment losses of financial assets at FRENA 2 EMEBEZ
amortised cost, net AERIEFER 28,392 4,738
Written-off of property, plant and equipment Y R R sk 5 2 MiEH 895 -
Fair value changes on investment properties B EYE N\ EEE) (467,131) (442,760)
Interest income FEUA (2) 4)
Finance costs &R 57,250 49,265
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1%  BE KRR i E 4,748 4,892
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEITE 2,159 2,656
Debt settlement expenses BFEERS 193 -
Operating cash flows before CEESEIMZRERERE
movements in working capital (17,181) 11,389
Increase in properties for sale FEY LM - (121)
Increase in statutory deposits VEE I (353) (120)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories EFEERL, (Em) 52,240 (51,843)
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivable FEWERRL (18 10) 52 (1,181)
Decrease in accounts receivable FE UL BR SR 25,569 10,846
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, HMEWER BT IE R
prepayments and deposits BEREL (8m) 84,394 (74,477)
Decrease in bank balances IRITAEF R
(trust and segregated accounts) (EERBEIERP) 13,875 4,977
Decrease in accounts payables FE{TER TR (63,448) (150,538)
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities BHERE (R /18 (6,814) 4,994
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and HnE R EE R
accrued expenses GreZl) /18 (66,889) 53,472
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & Fri8, (FrA) IR& 21,445 (192,602)
Tax paid BHRIE (6,956) -
Interest paid BEAHE (36,595) (45,024)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBFRARE R (22,106) (237,626)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EE@/}ILE'IEE

n\7|'\

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &E_Z_——

F+A=t—HLEE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Investing activities KREEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVME -BEASRE (490) =
Release of/(placement in) pledged R, (F8) BIRBTEHHER
fixed deposits - 171,058
Interest received on bank deposits IRITERBEUWFIE 2 4
Net cash (used in)/generated from ’&EE FrA) FriS8RE 5
investing activities (488) 171,062
Financing activities REEE
Proceeds from rights issue HRTERRIE 160,377 -
Proceeds from issuance of convertible bonds 2517 BJ# fRE 5 Fr S IE - 20,000
Drawdown of borrowings EREE 75,970 57,000
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (42,500) (66,500)
Repayment of corporate bonds BELEMRES (11,000) (11,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities Eg%ﬂ% aE (2,226) (2,712)
Repayment of convertible bonds BB ES (10,613) =
(Repayment to)/advance from directors (fBIB) REESNBENR (149,440) 80,055
Net cash generated from MEEEFIEIRE R
financing activities 20,568 76,843
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HEKRZERREEEHZ
cash equivalents L) IR AR (2,026) 10,279
cash and cash equivalents FYZzRERERREIEF
at beginning of the year 31,948 20,610
Effect of exchange rate changes SNESERNE Y & (132) 1,059
Cash and cash equivalents FRZAERERRETIER
at end of the year 29,790 31,948
Analysis of balances of cash and HERERREBEERI N
cash equivalents
Bank balances (general accounts) R1T4ET (—RERP) RIRE
and cash 29,790 31,859
Bank balances (general accounts) and cash DRAFFHEBEENRITER
classified under assets held for sale (Note 32)  (—fRERE) RIRE (Kf:#32) - 89
29,790 31,948
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

GENERAL

Wisdom Wealth Resources Investment Holding Group Limited
(the “Company”) is an exempted company incorporated under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate
controlling party is Dr. Hui Chi Ming, G.B.S., 1.p. who is also the
Chairman of the Company. The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the corporate information section to the annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”). The Company is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of the
Group are (1) the trading of electronic products and equipment,
(2) mineral mining, oil and gas exploration and production, (3)
the provision of financial services and (4) property development
and investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") or thousands of units of HK$ (“HK$'000"),
which is also the functional currency of the Company:.

—RREIH

EEERREEREEBRAR (AR
) LREBEERE—NAN—FRQAE X (B
AR EMRIIAZTRERAT  HRHG
REBHMERZFAARLAR (THZFTI)
FIREFT -EREES A ATEHREL
GBS, P (FAEATER) ° &A BB
MEERTESEMBNMU BN EAER
NEER—EIRIEE -

rERRE_E__F+°"A=+—HL
FEZRAGVBRROBEARAIREWES
RE (BB TAERE)) - ARBABREZER
REl AEBZFEXEBANEFERR
HREES QEFEBE -G HAXARYIER
SEQIEHEESMBBERONEZRERE
=

mEMBRERLET (FBx) AT BT
(TF#ET) RBAZ7) HTFEAERRTZ
2

EEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSS")

(A) Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group'’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

2.

F&F

RAE T BRI R G ER

(MEEMBHREER)

(A)

AEERFERZEETER
MEBHRSER

REAFE AEBEERERTYH
SRR ((EBEHMAAE))
B EBMBREERN T %
ZEBIN_B-__F#—HA—ABxZ
BRIAZ TR RS E N URR
IREMEERE .

ERMBREER BRERZREL
35 (1B5])

EEMBREEN —BT-HXA=+H
F165% (12]) #&MCovid-1948RA7A

SEH
EBEHER NE BERRE—#
F165% (B3]) ERBRNFEA
BB ER BREGH-BITEN

375k (1837) 9 A 2
EEVBREEN DEUERSENZZ
(1:T) —\EE_E_ZF
MEE

REFEERBEBYBREENZ
EBIIHAERREAEERBEEE
MPBERRAKRERR, AZEES
MBEBRTMERBIEEAZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZEZ_ZE-_"F+_HB=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs") (Continued)

(B) New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including Insurance Contracts’

the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or

Joint Venture?

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback?

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and

related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°
Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and HKFRS Policies!
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates'

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 1 January 2024.

2.

ERKIE]ERMBREER
(MEEMBREEN) @

(B) EARMHEMK L2 5T RA
14T BRI TS & 2R

AERTEREEAUTERME
MWARERZHE] RIEETBEBY
WEER

ERUBRSENS
175 (BEZ2ZF
FHARZZZCE
ZBNEBHBRE
R E175 (1B:]))

ERAYBREEN REEHHEY
B0RREEEH  HEEAR
ERE20% (BF])  BEWHES

]]ﬂ]i
E'I

S&qé‘;‘s

I

EEMBREEN  SRUEDNES

F165% (5] BE
EREHENFIR RABIEARY
(&3]) YFRBREBR
BE 2 EREL]
(ZBZFH)°
BEEAF IR G RREE'
é%ﬁ?fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁu%

(1351)
EAGHENENS RB-RZEENE

(1&:T) EREERHAN
EIEFRIE'
L RIEZ=F—A—HIZBHEBZF
EHRm AR

2 RRSE BRIz B EEHRR A -

: RZB_ME-—B-—HHAZRAWLZEF
AR ER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. FEAKE:TIE BB EER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (TEBIIZREER)) &)

(“HKFRSS") (Continued)

(B) New and amendments to HKFRSS in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

The Company'’s directors have performed an assessment
on these new and amendments to HKFRSs, and have
concluded on a preliminary basis that the adoption of
these new and amendments to HKFRSS is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group's financial
performance and position.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis except for certain
properties and financial instruments that are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period. Disposal
group classified as held for sale are stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair values less costs to sell.

(B) EARMHEMK L2 5T RAT

EIERBMBREER (B

ERBDEZEHREN REES]
ERMBHREERETHE WD
BRI ZENE] RGBT EBY
BREZENRAPISHAEBRBMFH
RERAREEEREE

3. BNGAMBRRZEERTIE
WA

3.1 RRGREMBHRZEBE

REMBERERDREESESSMAQ
CREMZEBM B RS ERRK -
MRmREEHHREMS  HERE
HeERRerETE2®RAEFL
BURE  IERMBERBRGEREKR UL
I IREMBREREEERAMERS
PRERABES EHRA (TEHRE
A1) ® & B R EME B B I B8 Z KPR
MEZBRRBEFR

REMBRRERELENAFEZRR
MEFTREREMRELAFEAE
ZYEREBIT ARSI - DERFFF
HENHEMRIRREEEREAF
B HERABBREET R

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FRIRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3. MUGEMBRERZBERTIE
SR (@)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The Group has net current assets of approximately
HK$271,735,000. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, it is expected that the current assets of
properties for sale of approximately HK$945,559,000
will not be completed in the next twelve months
from 31 December 2022 and the current liabilities
of the corresponding construction cost payables of
approximately HK$235,867,000 are not required to be
paid in the next twelve months from 31 December 2022.
In considering the impact of the properties for sale, the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
excluding the properties for sale of approximately
HK$945,559,000 and the corresponding construction
cost payables of approximately HK$235,867,000; by
approximately HK$437,957,000. The Group had overdue
balances in respect of borrowings of approximately
HK$341,272,000 as at 31 December 2022. Part of the
overdue borrowings with an amount of HK$270,202,000
are secured by the equity capital of Millhaven Holdings
Limited, which is holding the investment property
in Beijing with fair value of HK$380,334,000 as at 31
December 2022.

3.1 RBVGEMBRRZEBEE (B

FE S Rl A — AR 12 73 AN P mm R AR 75
mitHzABZAFEFE

FTEBEBNRBEEZTENS
271,735,000 7w e R A B EEH T
%> FEERENE E 49945,559,0008
THHFEMERFAER_EZ
+ZB=+—HEEstRKkR+ZEA
RBTREENECSERREDN
235,867,000 Tt REBAER A
W_E__F+ZA=+—HiE
FARFETZMEAARNZNT K5t R F
EVMENEER AEBNRHE
EBHERIEE (FEEFEY
¥ 49945,559,0003 7T /& 18 FE B9 FE
1J SR A 49235,867,0005 75) 49
437,957,0008 - R ZF+ =
B=+—H A"EENEEARE
BR#%341,272,000% 7T o 26 4> 4 £
f&E270,202,0007% 7t HMillhaven
Holdings Limitedsy & #E /K 7 > 5%
RARERFEREYME NZZE
T THE+“B=+—HBWAFES
380,334,000 7 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Nevertheless, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on the going concern basis because
the directors of the Company are of the view that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations in the next twelve months from 31 December
2022, after taking into consideration of the following:

1) The substantial shareholder, Dr. Hui Chi Ming, has
confirmed his intention to provide continuing
financial support to satisfy the Group’s working
capital and other financing requirement through
continual renewal of borrowings or continual
provision of additional financing to the Group;

2)  One of the executive directors of the Company,
Mr. Nam Kwok Lun, has confirmed that he will not
demand the repayment of the outstanding amount
payable to him in the next twelve months from 31
December 2022;

3. MUGEMBRERZBERTE
SR (B

3.1 RBGEMBHRRZBE (B)

A REBUTEHR FEUH
BRERDLDBEFESCEEERE R
AEXAABEERALERABERE
HWE BB AR _E__F+_-18
T+ —HESRETF_BAZKE
REES

) FTERRAGTHEBELIEHED
REBBEBETHEBEENF
meAEEIRHEBEIIE LR
MEEM B /EMmE &
EENEEETREMRER
X

2) FIRBEP-—RATEFEH
MAELEE®RB BT
T A=+ —HENRKR+TZ
BER RASEREERM
TAIREZERIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

3)

On 7 September 2022, Karl Thomson Financial
Group Limited ("KTFG"), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a loan facility
agreement (“Loan Facility Agreement”) with PAL
Finance Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Asia Tele-Net and Technology Corporation Limited
("Asia Tele-Net"). Mr. Lam Kwok Hing and Mr. Nam
Kwok Lun, executive directors of the Company, are
an executive director and the ultimate controlling
shareholder of Asia Tele-Net, and an executive
director of Asia Tele-Net who has an indirect
interest in Asia Tele-Net respectively. Pursuant to
Loan Facility Agreement, the Group provides an
unsecured revolving loan facility of HK$80,000,000
bearing interest at prime rate as announced from
time to time by The Hong Kong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited for lending Hong Kong
Dollars (“"Prime Rate”) for a term of three years
commencing from the loan effective date and
ending on 20 October 2025,

On 9 March 2023, the Company announced the
issuance of convertible bonds with a total principal
amount of HK$100,000,000 for a cash inflow
of HK$100,000,000 for repayment of liabilities
and general working capital of the Group. The
convertible bond is under the approval by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong and will be issued once the
approval is confirmed,;

The Group has planned to dispose of the entire
issued share capital of Millhaven Holdings Limited, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which is
holding an investment property with a fair value of
HK$380,334,000 as at 31 December 2022.

3. RN

3.1 RH

MERBRRZBERTE
SR (@)

REMBRRZEBEE (&

i =y I = b wll = P /N
HNEeERBABESEEMER
BRRB (SEERER)) M
MEAR B R B (M58 M5
M NEERBATmEMNEE
MBBERAB I IIERME M
(TERMEWREL) - ATH
TESERELE MEE ML
ERR AT MNBANMITES
R B 4% 125 B B BR LA TR B2 N B 4
BHITES (BEE 2N AR i
D) - RIEBERRMERR
EEEHEERBRERRE
80,000,000 75 > i B B E N
HEHEE_E_aF+H -+
Bt =FHEELHET ZEHE
BLEESRITERLAA K
RENREBEMNE (TREEFR
)R

RZEZ=ZH=ZANALH &
REEMBOTASTRES
100,000,0007 7t 2 AJ AR & 25
LU B3R & 7t A 100,000,00078
THAREEEERBELAER
H—REEEE A RRESIE
FEBHAFTHL A WA FHLE
ERREET;

TERRLEARTAZENS
‘A BMillhaven Holdings Limited
NEEPEEFTRAE ZABRZ
T __F+_RA=+—HFAE
NF{E #4380,334,00074 7T B %
B
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/ J}' Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
0 FEEMIEHmERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REEEUMBRRZEERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS K &)

AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technigue is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technigue equals the transaction price.

3.1 RBVGEMBHRRZEBE (&

AFEDRGEBRTHE2RER
RAEKRFR S HEE E P REL S
BEEEAXNZER Mm% E
EERYERBERNSHAIER
HihfhERM G - REAEERE
BNAFER AEEEERZREZD
L2RERGEARREENER
EERMEENEENEENTM-
RZEREHBREPEAERS
UWBREZATFENDRILEREE
EoHBREBMBREERF25
REZNBBZREZNRS RIE
EAMBREENE16RTRZE
EXRG  URBEAFEFEETHEE
ZBRBILIIFAFEZFE BIUWES
Gt ERE2RTFEZ A EEFEN
BEBEHEREICREEREBEZE
FREE) koo

FEMEEZATESESFRTS
SREEBRARECRZEEE
NREARAEERZEEHET
REARECHZEEERRER
BZA—THSHEEELEEENT
ZHES e

R BERABZRAFERRERTR
DHREABBEFEQAFTENGE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate

the financial statements of the Company and entities

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Details of the Group's performance obligations for revenue for
contracts with customers resulting from application of HKFRS 15
are setoutin note 7.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
fixed assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of fixed assets is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties also include leased properties which are
being recognised as right-of-use asset.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
trading rights is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effective of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the assets are
derecognised.

AR MBRRZBEERTE
gEtEER (B

BERE
EBUIEZ ER A E

BRWEZARIEAFHNELEER
Bl 7 5 2R 5 8 8 R A2 A R 5 E S 18 A
R ZRZBHBREGEEREMGA
ERFHER et ERFEMREHES
ERBEREPREBS > TG ERNEE
NE ERAIEEESIR

REBCHREZ BELEE

REBEHWBZETEEZERAR B RE
BERDTRBEBHZATE KESE
PR 7S) BESR o M A F HERR 1R » B HFT UK
BAGARNERFHZELEERNAE
R RERRREBREIR £
HEHBBNBZEBTVEENER-

RILREEIE B E

BREENHERNESHRERANHE
ZEENGEELEN MK & IERER &
LHEREVEEEZBRa U EEREMRR
MIRFHAREmE ZEE  WRALE
BREEZHABERSES -

Annual Report 2022 « — = —F 53

119



Py

120

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible asset are estimated individually.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or, its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make the
sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the sale
and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
the sale.

Properties for sale

Properties under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development and properties for sale are
classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in accordance with
the accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties for sale
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a specific identification basis including allocation
of the related development expenditure incurred and where
appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for the properties less
estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale, except for freehold land, which is always
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for
the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible
temporary differences.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continueq)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interest as appropriate).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combination, the
Group assesses Whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date
or acquisition date as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both leasehold
land and non-lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continueq)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of leasehold properties that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option.

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease liabilities
resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continueq)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a
lease modification as a separate lease if:

- the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

- the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions
are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions (Continued)

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

- there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised
in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

AR MBRRZBEERTE
BEHER (B

HE &)
KEFEAABN (&
Covid-191FF 182 &8 (&)

- MHEESHZAMALCEZZEREE
HA_SE__F#XB=+tH=zH
B &

- MHEZHEHMERRFHLESEESZ
o

EAATEER ZRESRRERZEE
TREE ARMABEA > HUR—H
EREBMBREERNF16RNEE AL

(HEFBHWIIFEELS) - HENRZR
RNBRIEADTEEENRAK - E/AM
EEREHABURMERNB R
W ZE LB N B R A R

o
FTEEERBHBAA
HEZ D ERFE
AEEFREHBAZEAE ARBENE
EHE - SEHERNRBEREEHEE
Byes 2 ABABD 0 ELRR K O 3R % = AE A

R AN EAMERE -FrAEHEMME
BRIAIAKERE-

Annual Report 2022 « — = —F 53

131



Py

132

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

The Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect
to its investment properties to other parties.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRSs requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for accounts receivable arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

3.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term;

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

() Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will be transfered to retained
earnings.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI (Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group'’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the other income
line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including statutory
deposits, loan receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables
and deposits and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The ECL are assessed by the Group on annual basis. The Group
applies simplified approach to measure ECL on accounts
receivable (except for dealing in securities-cash clients and
loans to securities margin clients); and general approach to
measure ECL on accounts receivable arising from dealing in
securities-cash clients and loans to securities margin clients and
other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

J existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continuea)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Margin clients use the number of days past due and loan-
to-collateral value (“LTV") to determine significant increase
in credit risk.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of “investment grade” as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continuea)

The estimation of credit loss under all stages is taking
into consideration of forward looking information. The
Group identifies the key economic driver impacting credit
risk and ECL to be the growth rate of Gross domestic
product (“GDP"). The Group applied the probability
weighted scenarios for incorporating the forward looking
information. The growth rate of GDP has been used in
determining the probability-weighting of each of the
optimistic scenario, base case scenario and pessimistic
scenario. These probability-weighted ECLs are determined
by running each scenario through the relevant ECL model
and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower'’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider,

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of accounts receivable, when
the amounts are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group'’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on accounts receivable from trading
business property investment and financial advisory
service using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For margin clients, the Group determines the probability
of default by the internal credit ratings while loss given
default is determined based on factors including the
realization value of collateral and the estimated volatility.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the external
and internal credit ratings and related probability of
default are taken into consideration. Loss given default
is determined based on assessed publicly available
information from credit-rating agencies.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain accounts receivable are
considered on a collective basis taking into consideration
past due information and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

- Past-due status;

- Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

- External credit ratings where available.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continueq)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or l0ss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
receivable where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual cash
flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative
factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group
considers the terms are substantially different if the discounted
present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
any fees paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different
from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows
of the original financial asset, after reducing gross carrying
amount that has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial assets will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial assets and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial asset is
recognised in profit or l0ss at the date of modification.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other payables
and accrued expenses, borrowings, corporate bonds, debt
component of convertible bonds and amounts due to Directors
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the
bonds into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the date of
issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using
the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible
debt. The fair value of any derivative features embedded in the
compound instruments is included in the liability component.
The difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair values assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded option for the holder to convert
the bonds into equity of the Group, is included in equity as
convertible bonds equity reserve.

The liability component is carried as a liability at amortised
cost using the effective interest method until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The derivative components are
measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised in profit
or loss.

If the identifiable consideration received by the Group appears
to be less than the fair value of the convertible bonds issued,
the Group measures the unidentifiable services received
(to be received) as the difference between the fair value
of the convertible bonds issued and that of the identifiable
consideration received, and the difference is recognised in profit
or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds based on their
relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion
relating to the equity component is charged directly to equity.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REEEUMBRRZEERTE

150

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or 0ss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange
or modification is considered as non-substantial modification
when such difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial liabilities and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. MNGFOMBHRRZBERTE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SR (&
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Related parties FEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: WHEE NGRS B —FamEalAsE
B & Ra g
(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@ MHBUTAL BIZALHEZALZ
related to the Group if that person: B ARE BB R
(i)  has control or joint control of the Group; (h HEERHBEEEFEIHEE
4 ;
@iy  has significant influence over the Group; (il HEAEEHRBEAZEN;
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (il BEAEEREZSLABDFTESE
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or ABZRE ; &
(b)  Anentity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of (b) WULTERMEEER B —EEfEHA
the following conditions applies: NER REEH) B .

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same (i)
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i)
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i) the entities are joint ventures of the same third (iii)
party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv)
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group;

(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the reporting entity or to the parent of
the reporting entity.

Close members of the family of person are those family
members who may be expected to influence by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after
the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving disposal
of an investment, or a portion of an investment, the investment
or the portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are
met, and the Group discontinues the use of the equity method
in relation to the portion that is classified as held for sale from
the time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

AR AMBRRZBEERTE
gEtEER (B

FIEHEZIERBEE

HWIERBEE (RHEMR) 2 RABETE
BRLERZMIFFEERBUWE - RDHE
HEFFLE-RAZEE (RLEMER) 7
HUERRENRHE W RREMEE S
S4B I — AR RIBEIRRATIR > BZEMH
ENREESE S ERESNTE LM
H-BEEEUANHEFL AL HEAH
BROBEMES —FRNAERERRE
FERBIH & o

EXAERAEZHEF B RAENBA
Bl ER TmAEEETHNEE
BREBEEWEAS 2 FERE D &M
BABZFAEERGERT G LMEMF
REDEBFIELE-

EXEEAGZHESEIIRHE R
RENZRREZ B 55 LHAF
HF AR TFHEZZBEREAZBEREZ
BoPBRF/IELE MAEEFBEZEA
RE (HZRBEREZHD) nEAFEHE
ZHRE TBROEAFFHEZERE
DIERREmA

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continuea)

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent re-measurement while held for sale, are recognised
in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is classified as
held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's significant accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the

4.

R stFIE R st A EERER
ZEBEKR (&)

MR g 5T R 2 EAFI R
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Group have made in the process of applying the Group's X) RSN U REHGEMERREER
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect Z2EBEABREAZTE-

on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Measurement of ECL FEFREIIEERE R

A number of significant judgements are also required in
applying the accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such
as:

= Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Selecting appropriate models and assumptions for the
measurement of ECL; and

- Establishing the relative probability weightings of forward-
looking scenarios.

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL of different financial assets is measured by the Group on
either a 12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether they
are significantly increased in credit risk or credit-impaired.
In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has
significantly increased, the Group takes into account qualitative
and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information with significant judgements involved.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Models and assumptions used

The Group uses various models and assumptions in estimating
ECL. Judgement is applied in identifying the appropriate model
for each type of financial assets, as well as the assumptions
used in these models. Please refer to Note 6 for more details on
ECL.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in determining the deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group is
subject to income taxes on the rental income of its investment
properties in the PRC and deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the investment properties are recognised on the same
basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
each reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period.
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UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continueq)

Measurement of ECL

Impairment assessment under ECL for trade and other
receivables (except for cash clients and margin clients)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
accounts receivable (except for cash clients and margin clients)
that result from transactions within the scope of HKFRS 15. The
provision rates are based on debtor’s aging as groupings of
various debtors that have similar 10ss patterns. The provision
matrix is based on the Group's historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable and available without undue costs and effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
is considered. In addition, accounts receivable with significant
balances and credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL is disclosed in Note 6.

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable (including loan
receivables, cash clients, margin clients, statutory aeposits,
other receivables and deposits and bank balances)

The impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost (including loan receivables, cash clients, margin
clients, statutory deposits, other receivables and deposits and
bank balances) is an area that requires the use of models and
assumptions about future economic conditions and the credit
risk of the respective financial instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continueq)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Impairment assessment under ECL for financial assets at
amortised cost other than accounts receivable (including loan
receivables, cash clients, margin clients, statutory deposits,
other receivables and deposits and bank balances) (Continued)

(i) Inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques

ECL is the discounted product of expected future cash
flows by using the Probability of Default (“PD"), LossS
Given Default (“LGD") and Exposure at Default (“EAD"),
of which PD and LGD are estimates based on significant
management judgement. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the management perform individual assessment
for each client by considering various factors, including
the realisable value of securities or collaterals from
clients and their guarantors which are held by the Group
and subsequent settlement and additional collaterals
received.

(i) Forward-looking information

In measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS 9, it should
consider forward-looking information. The calculation of
ECL incorporates forward-looking information through
the use of publicly available economic data and forecasts
based on assumptions and management judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors and through the use of
multiple probability weighted scenarios.

Details of the impairment assessment of financial assets
at amortised cost is disclosed in Note 6.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continueq)

Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by the independent professional valuer.
The valuer has determined the fair value based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on
the valuation report prepared by the valuers, management
has reviewed the valuation including the assumptions and
estimates adopted.

Changes to these assumptions, including the potential risk of
any market violation, policy, geographical and social changes
or other unexpected incidents would result in change in
the fair value of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Details of the fair value measurements of investment properties
is disclosed in Note 20.

Estimates for net realisable value of properties under
development

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of properties
for sale for the Group are approximately HK$945,559,000 (2021:
approximately HK$1,981,337,000). During the year ended 31
December 2022, no impairment 10ss (2021: Nil) was made for
properties for sale. The Group assesses the carrying amounts of
properties for sale according to their net realisable value based
on the realisability of these properties. Net realisable value for
properties for sale is determined by reference to management’s
estimates of the selling price based on prevailing market
conditions, less applicable variable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists
of equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, retained earnings and other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a continuous basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with capital. The Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
issuance of new shares as well as the issuance of new debts or
the redemption of existing debts. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

Certain group entities are regulated by the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission and are required to comply with
the financial resources requirements according to the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules
(the “SF(FR)R"). The Group's regulated entities are subject to
minimum paid-up share capital requirements and liquid capital
requirements under the SF(FR)R. Management closely monitors,
on a daily basis, the liquid capital level of these entities to ensure
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirements under
the SF(FR)R. The Group's regulated entities have complied with
the capital requirements imposed by the SF(FR)R throughout
both years.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ERTH
Categories of financial instruments ERtTAER
2022 2021
—E-CF =2 —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Financial assets THEE
Investment in equity instruments BRFEFT AEHM
at FVTOCI ZHBAZERATARE 990 990
Financial assets at amortised cost BEIE AT E SREE 215,955 329,583
216,945 330,573
Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEBIEN AT 2 EREE 907,779 913,992

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group's financial instruments include investment in equity
instruments at FVTOCI, statutory deposits, loan receivable,
accounts receivable, other receivables and deposits, bank
balances and cash, accounts payables, other payables and
accrued expenses, amounts due to Directors, corporate bonds,
convertible bonds and borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. The Group'’s overall strategy
substantially remains unchanged from prior year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

As the Group’s monetary assets and monetary liabilities are
mainly in functional currency of respective group entities, the
currency risk resulting from daily operations is considered
not significant. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to loans receivable, corporate bonds, convertible bonds and
borrowings. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate of bank balances, loans
to securities margin clients, amounts due to Directors and a
borrowing. The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong
Kong Prime Rate arising from the Group's variable-rate loans
to securities margin clients, amounts due to Directors and
borrowings.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continueq)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate loans to
securities margin clients, amounts due to Directors and
borrowings mentioned above at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of assets and
liabilities recorded at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2021: 50
basis point) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point (2021: 50 basis point)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$392,000 (2021: the
Group’s loss would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$209,000).

The effect on bank balances has not been taken into account in
preparing the sensitivity analysis because the effect involved is
not significant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTOCI. For equity
securities measured at FVTOCI quoted in the Stock Exchange,
the management manages this exposure by closely monitoring
the risk. The Group will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date. For sensitivity
analysis of equity securities the sensitivity rate is remained as
20% in current year.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 20%
(2021: 20%) higher/lower, the other comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2022 would increase/decrease
by HK$198,000 (2021: increase/decrease by HK$198,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of investments at FVTOCI.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to
accounts receivable, loan receivable, other receivables and
deposits and bank balances. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets, except that the credit risks
associated with loans to securities margin clients included
in accounts receivable and loan receivable of HK$26,678,000
(2021: HK$50,808,000) (net of allowance for credit losses)
and HK$17,019,000 (2021: HK$16,940,000) (net of allowance
for credit losses) is mitigated because they are secured over
properties or listed securities.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group's credit
risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and the
related impairment assessment, if applicable, are summarised
as below:

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
over the customers to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts for customers of trading electronic
products and equipment, securities cash clients, securities
margin clients and advisory for finance management. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual significant debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate allowances are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on accounts balances individually
or based on provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the credit risk is significantly reduced.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable from cash clients arising from the business
of dealing in securities

As described in more details in Note 29, the credit risk on
cash clients arising from the business of dealing in securities
are managed through daily monitoring of the outstanding
exposures from individual clients and realisable values of
individual client’s securities. The Group has concentration
of credit risk to the largest cash clients’ exposure and five
largest cash clients’ exposure representing 72% (2021: 42%)
and 81% (2021: 66%) respectively of the total cash clients as
at 31 December 2022. The balances due from the largest cash
clients and the five largest cash clients were approximately
HK$12,309,000 (2021: HK$8,339,000) (net of allowance for
credit losses) and HK$13,961,000 (2021: HK$13,223,000)
(net of allowance for credit losses) respectively. Apart
from the exposures to five largest cash clients’ exposure
mentioned above, the directors of the Group consider that the
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base
being large and unrelated.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable arising from loan to securities margin
clients

As described in more detail in Note 29, the credit risk on loan to
securities margin clients is managed through daily monitoring
of the outstanding exposures from individual clients, margin
values and realisable values of individual client’s securities.
The Group has concentration of credit risk to the largest
securities margin clients’ exposure and ten largest securities
margin clients’ exposure representing 28% (2021: 15%) and
54% (2021: 72%) of the total loans to margin clients as at 31
December 2022. The balances due from the largest securities
margin clients and the ten largest securities margin clients
were approximately HK$7,545,000 (2021: HK$7,432,000)
(net of allowance for credit losses) and HK$14,465,000
(2021: HK$36,765,000) (net of allowance for credit losses)
respectively as at 31 December 2022, of which the amount is
secured by clients’ securities with an aggregate fair value of
HK$20,300,000 (2021: HK$12,261,000) and HK$64,899,000 (2021:
HK$99,552,000) respectively as at 31 December 2022. Apart
from the exposures to ten largest margin clients’ exposure
mentioned above, the directors of the Company consider that
the concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer
base being large and unrelated.

Accounts receivable from the business of advisory for financial
management

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the directors of the
Company consider that the concentration of credit risk on
business of advisory for financial management are limited due
to the customer base being large and unrelated.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Accounts receivable from trading business

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 60% (2021: 50%)
and 100% (2021: 99%) of the total accounts receivable due
from the Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors
respectively within the trading business. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

Loan receivable

As described in more details in Note 26, the credit risk on loan
receivable is managed through regular analysis of the ability of
borrowers to meet interest and principal repayment obligations
and by changing the lending limits where appropriate. Exposure
to credit risk is also managed by obtaining collateral. As at 31
December 2022, apart from the exposures to the concentration
of credit risk from one independent counterparty amounting
to HK$17,019,000 (2021: one independent counterparties
amounting to HK$16,940,000), the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk on loan receivable.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Accounts receivable arising from HKFECC & HKSCC

The credit risk of accounts receivable from HKFECC & HKSCC is
considered as not material taking into account the good market
reputations and high credit ratings of the counterparties.

Bank balances

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by authorised credit-
rating agencies.

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the directors of the
Company make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables and deposits based on
historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. The directors of the
Company believe that there are no significant increase in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-month ECL.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment comprises
the following categories:

Internal
credit rating
A EB1E E 5T 4R
Low risk

R k2

Doubtful

2]

LOsS

1R

Written-off

Description
it

The counterparty has a low risk
of default and does not have any
past-due amounts
RZEFHENRERER
i dE T3 AR RN IE

There have been significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition
information developed internally or
external resources

B ARSI SSNERE TR E A 2 BRI EE R
EE R B YRR LR EE LN

There is evidence indicating the asset is
credit-impaired
BREBETAAEELREERE

There is evidence indicating that debtor
is severe financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic prospect of
recovery
BEENETSABAREY RS
BASET &ER AU EFEHA

6. ERMTAH #@

HHRREEEEREE (&)

EE R B ETE ()

AEBAEHE SRR FEEE T 58

ll

Accounts
receivable
FE U BRTR

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired

EHIAREERE -
RAHEREERE

Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired
THEREERE—
KRBT EEGRE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
S HRTEAE ERE—

HIREERE

Amount is written off

185 A RARIE

Other
financial assets
HthEmMEE

12-month ECL
A ENEREEE
EEBIE
Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired
SHTEREERE—
RAEREERIE
Lifetime ECL -
credit-impaired
ZHTEREERE—

HIREERE

Amount is written off
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. TFITH #)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAREEEEREK &

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERFEEFFL (&)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s TRFMAEB BETEBESEBRTE
financial assets which are subject to ECL assessment: ZEMBEEZEERRKRO
2022 2021
12-month Gross Gross
External Internal  or lifetime carrying carrying
Notes  credit rating credit rating ECL amounts amounts
1288 5
biN:i PER PHEYW —S-"F _"T_—F
MisE H-GE H-GE 5858 AR E EEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Financial assets at REHMAHEZ
amortised cost TRHEE
Statutory deposits EERE 25 N/A Low 12-month ECL 2,403 2,050
B & 12BBBEH
(note 1) EEBE
(zt1)
Accounts receivable BRRERARS 29 N/A Low 12-month ECL 17,142 20,047
arising from dealing FrE L 2 FEURER R RER & 12EBTESR
in securities-cash clients (note 2) =88R
(Hyz22)
Loans to securities BYESREERRR 29 N/A Low 12-month ECL 26,694 50,836
margin clients pd=£ @R & 12BFEH
(note 2) EEBE
(Hiz22)
Accounts receivable ETEMRRHBES 29 N/A (note 3)  Lifetime ECL 4,703 26,032
arising from business EBFELZ RER (#3#3) - not credit
of trading electronic products ~ FEUERFR impaired
and equipment 23BN
FEEE
—KHHE
EERE
Accounts receivable ERBEHER 29 N/A Low Lifetime ECL 2,407 4,614
arising from HKFECC & HKSCC BB EREE RER & - notcredit
2 MR (note 2) impaired
(Wia22) 2 HEATEHA
FEEE
—KHHE
EERE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables
and deposits

Loans receivable

Bank balances
(trust and segregated
accounts)

Bank balances
(general accounts)
and cash

LS

RITHER Btk
BIUKRF)

RITEEE (—RIRR)
ERE

Notes

fiysE

30

26

31

31

External
credit rating

9
ERFR

N/A
~EA

N/A
TEBA

Aa3 or above
Aa3Ei M b

Baa2 or above
Baa2g Ll L

For the year ended 31 December 2022 %

4 A
e 1

i c——

EMIA @

HHERREZEEEREE (&

EE R B ETE ()

Internal
credit rating

A
SR

Low

(53
(note 1)
(rzz1)

Low

&
(note 2)
(mzt2)

(note 4)
(Hyzz4)

(note 4)
(Hyzz4)

12-month
or lifetime
ECL
12{8 B =
e L
EEH#E

12-month ECL
12{8 8 B
EEBE

12-month ECL
12@EREH

EEBE

12-month ECL
12{8 3 B
FEBE

12-month ECL
12{8 8 B
FEBE
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2022
Gross
carrying
amounts
g
IR (E
HK$'000
FERT

46,350

17,038

73,503

29,790

/=

2021

Gross
carrying
amounts
BT &
MEERE(E
HK$'000
THET

90,374

17,090

87,378

31,859
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BT ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_"ZE " "F+_H=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERITH &)

Financial risk management objectives and MBERMEEEERBEK (&

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERFEEFFL (&)

notes: BaE -

(1) Included in other receivables and deposits are amounts representing (1) HtEKREFARESOERLCEESBEEL
other receivables and refundable deposits for operating securities dealing RERBRZ G FEEEREREHRE B
business and for using trading system which the Group is entitled but held i g ERPREE BARAMKEEES
by SEHK, SFC, HKSCC, HKFE and suppliers from trading business. The Group B2 HERFR) FRES 2 HhEWER IR B]
assessed the loss allowance for these other receivables and deposits on BOEE AEEIZI2ELBHEERBEEEN
12-month ECL basis. In determining the ECL, the Group has taken into EZEHMERERIRES 2 EBREE NE
account the historical default experience and forward-looking information ERACEEBEER AEECH RELEORL
as appropriate. There had been no significant increase in credit risk since BRATEEER ER) - BVBRmEEUK 5
initial recognition. During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was BRI EBEEN - REE_S""F+_8
additional impairment allowance for other receivables on individual =+—HIEFE Eﬁ_ﬁ_ ZFERPEZES
assessment due to the trading business in the PRC was significantly HFEZCOVID-198 K B BRI 2> A LbRER
affected by COVID-19 and the lockdown of Shenzhen during 2022. Some 18l B1) 5 1k ik L th FE W FR B .:HEEE MR B o
customers and suppliers had been liquidated and the Company was BB RBEAEER  WAATEERE
unable to recover part of the deposit paid to suppliers with an amount of 3,766,000 7T (ZZTZ—4F | ) NED BIHE
HK$3,766,000 (2021: Nil) and the amount was impaired. miRE ZEBEERE
Other receivables are recoverable on demand as at years ended 31 HtEWRRERBE S - RS °—F
December 2022 and 2021. +ZA=+—HIFEEZRERKE-
Movement in the loss allowance for other receivable is as follows: B ARZ ETR R EZ EB T .

2022 2021

=i —T-—fF
12-month Lifetime ECL 12-month Lifetime ECL
ECL (credit-impaired) ECL (credit-impaired)
12EREH 28BHEEFR NEAES 2HBEHEESE
FEFR (LREERE) FEBEE  (LBREERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR THEx THT
Balance at beginning of the year FAESER 264 - 264 -
Addition for the year AEEEM 3,766 = 3 =
Balance at end of the year FRAEER 4,030 - 264 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZEZ_ZE-_"F+_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERITH #BE)
Financial risk management objectives and MBERMEEEERBEK (&
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERERFEEFFL (B&)
notes: (Continued) Wizt (@)
For accounts receivable arising from dealing in securities-cash clients, 2) MBS RERRARGESE ZRINER BT HE
loans to securities margin clients and loan receivable, the Group has FRESFAZERKERERMS  ~5£EE
applied the general approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance. FEREBMBREERRRZ —MALFTERS
The Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by BEE AEEEAENTHEEZEEEZE
individual assessment. HEEEE-
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed At BEEDNIRBEBAKRERAZIEFAIH
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and borrowers are FHZELPERENET UG B BGH
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without undue BEMARE A ES AT REEREHSB
cost or effort. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group B REEZZ_F+-A=+—HILFE"
provided HK$10,000 (2021: HK$24,000), HK$16,000 (2021: HK$28,000) AEBERBENTGEDNMBSREELR
and HK$19,000 (2021: HK$19,000) impairment allowance for accounts GEEEZEBET HATESERERERLZ
receivable arising from dealing in securities cash clients, loans to ERREWER TR A ERF10,0008 T (ZF
securities margin clients and loan receivable respectively on the individual Z—1F 1 24,0005 7T) ~ 16,0008 7T (ZEZ—F !
assessment. 28,0007 7T) K 19,0007 7T (ZZ = —4 1 19,0007
JT) ©
The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for TRITRE—R G EZHREBIRESZ PR
accounts receivable from cash clients under the general approach. Rz EH o
Movement in the loss allowance of cash clients R EFEEREZ EE)
2022 2021
—B-Cf —E--k
12-month Lifetime ECL 12-month Lifetime ECL
ECL (credit-impaired) ECL (credit-impaired)
12EREH 28BHEEFR PEAEE 2HEHEEER
FEFE (HRGEEHE) FEERE  (LREERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THER T THT
Balance at beginning of the year FAEEER 24 - 40 -
(Reversal)/addition for the year KEE () /i (12) - (13) -
Transfer to credit-impaired BREEERE (2) 2 @) 3
Amounts written off as uncollectible MR e el IE = (2) = @)
Balance at end of the year FREER 10 - 21 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_"ZE " "F+_H=+—HIEEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. ERITH #E)
Financial risk management objectives and MERAREEEEREK &
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuead) EERERFEEFFL (&)
notes: (Continued) Wizt (&)
2 (Continued) ) #)
The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for TRINTREBE—RAEHRERESREEER
accounts receivable from securities margin clients under the general IRARER 2 B o
approach.
Movement in the loss allowance of securities margin clients SR T E PR 2 2E)
2022 2021
—EC-CF e S
12-month Lifetime ECL 12-month Lifetime ECL
ECL  (credit-impaired) ECL (credit-impaired)
12EARNE 2WEMEEHE PNEAEH 2HBEHEEFR
FEFE  (HREERE) FEBE  (HREERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT THER FHT FHT
Balance at beginning of the year FEEER 28 - 31 -
(Reversal)/addition for the year AEE (TH) /0 (10) = &) =
Transfer to credit-impaired BREEEREA 2 2 - -
Amounts written-off as uncollectible b NI (g = (2) = -
Balance at end of the year FHRESER 16 - 28 -

In determining the recoverability of the loans to securities margin clients,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the accounts
receivable from the date credit was initially granted, subsequent
settlement and the fair value of pledged marketable securities up to the
reporting date. In the opinion of the Directors, there is no further credit
provision required in excess of existing loss allowance.

FERAREERTESRETTRZERZA
WEHER  §EREMRABRHEEAREERR
BEARLEZEURREEER  HREEKR
REERRBESFZ ATEZERNEE -EFER
7 BAGHRAEGEBHEMIIZE-TEER
fo
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZEZ_ZE-_"F+_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

notes: (Continued)
2) (Continued)

The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for
loan receivable under the general approach.

EMTHE @
HHBRMEEBERREEK (&

EE B e BB ¥ 1 ()
Wiz - (4
@ @

TRITIRE— RS AR ERE RS Z 28 -

2022 2021

—E--F B &

12m ECL 12m ECL

128 AFH 12185 EHR

FEFR ==t

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FER

Balance at beginning of the year FEEEL 19 19
Addition for the year REEEM = -
Balance at end of the year FRERR 19 19

(3) The following table shows the movement that has been recognised for
accounts receivable from business of properties investment under the
simplified approach.

@)  TRITRBEBLEHEZNERBYERERESE
ZFEWERTFER Z EF) o

2022 2021

—E-CF —T-—F
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) (not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
2HEREERR 2HEHEEESR 2HEREERR 2HEHEEESR
(REREERE) (HBEEHE) (REREERE) (HBREERE)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TET TR TET TR
Balance at beginning of the year AR - - 143 -
Addition for the year AEEEM - - 4,750 -
Transfer to credit-impaired BEZHREERNE - - (4,893) 4,893
Transfer to assets held for sale BEERFHEEE - - = (4,893)
Balance at end of the year FRER - - = =

For accounts receivable arising from business of properties investment
the Group determines the expected credit losses on these items by using
a provision matrix, grouped by past due status.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

MYEREEBREEZ BUERRM S ~&H
BRERAEBEERELRARR RO EEEZSE
BEZBRAEERE

A BEXDREEFAZRSAIBERZE

SERBENRT UL W BATHBZRE
LN R ER Z RIS ERFH AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_"ZE " "F+_H=+—HIEEE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) (S04
notes: (Continuec) st (&)
€) (Continuea) (3) (%)

ERMTH @
HERABREERBRREE (B

HEE ()

The following table shows the movement that has been recognised
for accounts receivable from business of trading electronic products
and equipment under the simplified approach. During the year ended

TRITREBELENETFERRRBES
EBTELEZERUIRRER 2 EH - NEE_Z
“THE+ZRA=+—HLEEE> EEEC:?::EF

31 December 2022, there was additional impairment allowance with
an amount of HK$24,648,000 (2021: Nil) for account receivables on
the individual assessment due to the trading business in the PRC was
significantly affected by COVID-19 and the lockdown of Shenzhen during
2022.

Some customers had been liquidated and the Company was unable to
recover the amount receivables with an amount of HK$24,648,000 (2021:

RPEZEREHEZCOVID-19BEARFER
- R IR IR B B 5715 7 FE U AR R
& #24,648,00058 7T (=

T

sl
stie @E%ﬁ

) -

BOEREFR WA A B EEWE EWRE
24,648,000 7T (ZE - —4F !

) ZTHEHR

Nil) and the amount was impaired. Ee
2022 2022 2021
—E-CF —E-CF T
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit-impaired) (credit-impaired) (not credit-impaired)
2HALEERR 2HRBEERR ZRBEERE
(REBEERE) (HREERE) (REBREEREB)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
THEx TER TET
Balance at beginning of the year RS 362 - 358
Addition for the year AEEEM 24,648 - 4
Transfer to credit-impaired BEREEEERE (25,010 25,010 =
Written-off during the year FREE - (25,010) -
Balance at end of the year FREHS = = 362
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZEZ_ZE-_"F+_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 6. ERITH #E)
Financial risk management objectives and MBEEMEEEERBEK (&)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continuea) EERBRRAEFL (B)
notes: (Continuecd) st (#8)
©) (Continued) (€) (%)
The following table shows information about the group’s exposure to credit TRIWTEHMAEENETERMRIEES X
risk and ECLs for accounts receivable from business of trading electronic HREWERmEN EESELBHEERERE
products and equipment. Ik o
2022
—E-CF
Expected loss rate  Gross carrying amount Loss Allowance
BHEEER REAE BERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FRT FER
Current ) 0.0% 4,703 -
2021
—E--F
Expected lossrate  Gross carrying amount Loss Allowance
BEEER REAE EERE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% THET TR
Current BNER 0.0% 25,327 -
Past due over 270 days HER270H M £ 51.3% 705 (362)

(4) The credit risk on bank balances (including segregated and general
accounts) are limited because the counterparties are with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. Majority of bank
balances are deposited in reputable large commercial banks with credit
rating of Baa2 or above issued by Moody's and Aa3 issued by China
Chengxin respectively.

HRRZHFEBREETIRRBLATSEE
TR BMIRTTAET (BIEEILK—MIRE) 28
BB A2 IRITEF TN DR ERBA
FBaa2si M L IEE TR LUK HE4AFABEE
TR IEERFZ AR EmERIT
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Impairment assessment policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on
individual circumstances or market condition.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, the risk management department
is responsible in developing and maintaining the processes for
measuring ECL, the impairment requirements under HKFRS
9. The ECL are assessed by the Group on annual basis. The
Group applies simplified approach to measure ECL on accounts
receivable (except for dealing in securities-cash clients and
loans to securities margin clients); and general approach to
measure ECL on accounts receivable arising from dealing in
securities-cash clients and loans to securities margin clients and
other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost. Under
the simplified approach, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings, corporate
bonds and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group's liquidity position is monitored on a daily basis
by management and is reviewed monthly by the Directors.
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

EMIA #@
MBERBEEBERRER (&

EE R AE S ()
BEFIEE R

AEBZHREXREVSRAAERERER
SRR T T 58 A% 4R B it ¥ 18 Bl R 4E B K
RETER

RERMEBMBRESERNFIRE BRE
ERXMEaStERERRETSEMBRS
ZERBIORBE T ZREERGFBRRARGE
BRZEF - AEEESFHREBESS
BIEHT - AERRBBIET A EE
WEE™R (BHFREER X5 RIETESFRF
BEERZEMMGIN 2EBEEEIE
MERB—RT A EESFREE R RS
EEZRBRBER - BTFEFRESTRZ
ERRZBHENATRZEMEREEL
BHEEBEE RE[EDE FEBELU
ERERRREEBREZERAEERR
o

REBEZ R

EERPETRARE FEBERKIER
EEBRAEAZNEEREE MR
ERERDTEMBZRERERREIA
BT -EEEERBERRBRSFZE
BB Rk EFRETEREE-

rEBZRBEETATBHEEESHE
RONTHEESHBER  TRFALLTEE
REZEENPREZEHMEBEZHTE
WEPEN -ZRENEAEB AT/
BRZEFOHREBMAGRZRAMERRE
MEBARH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZEZ_ZE-_"F+_HB=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continueq) 6. ERITH #E)

Financial risk management objectives and MERAREEEEREK &
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) BB (&

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. The ZREEMNERASRERE -FIEAR
interest payments are computed using contractual rates or, if EENFMER (HAEIZE) SmEPRZ
variable, based on the prevailing interest rate at the end of each BITREFH

reporting period.

Weighted  On demand Total
average  and 3 months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate orless  3-6months 612 months 1-2 year 25years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
HERR
mE  R=ERF AR
TR MA ZExfBR  AE+IER -EfE MELE BENE  REREER IkEE

HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
Fin Fin Fin FiEn TiEn TR TR TR

Financial liabilities

t 31 December 2022

Accounts payable = 101,359 = = = = o 101,359 101,359
Other payables and accrued expenses - 299,181 - - - - - 299,181 299,181
Amounts due to Directors 0.00%-5.00% 79,085 = = = = = 79,085 79,085

Borrowings
- Variable rate 5.00-8.41% 69,470 = = = = = 69,470 69,470
- Fived rate -E8 0.00%-15.87% 331,385 38,306 - - - - 369,691 351,690
Corporate bonds REfE 7.03%11.57% 3278 - - - 4,555 - 7833 699
Lease liabilties EEaE 5.00%11.33% 266 532 91 665 = = 2,260 2177
884,024 38,838 797 665 4,555 - 928,879 909,956

Weighted On demand Total
average  and 3months undiscounted Carrying
interest rate orless 3emonths  é-12months 12 year 25years Over5years cash flows amount
HERR
mg  R=@R% R
THhE byl ZENER AETZEA —EmE WERE BENE  RERSHE KEE
HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000
TFhn Thn Tin Tin Tin Thn Thn Thn
Financial liabiities ERAR
{31 December 2021 RZB_-#+ZA=+-A

Accounts payable iR - 164,807 - - - - - 164807 164,807
Other payables and accrued expenses Et R R ER - 97,004 - - - - - 97,04 97,24
Amount cue to Directors 0%-5.00% 25991 S S S S S 9 291

Borrowings
-Variable rate 5.00% 684 692 36,852 = = S 38228 36,000
- Fived rate 1357% 360,744 = 2314 = = = 383,887 354,616
Corporate bonds NAES 7.03%11.57% S 4100 10635 20 4275 = 19.290 17482
Convertiole bonds maRES 1060% - - - 20800 - - 20800 17846
Lease liabilties HEaE 513%-11.33% 675 688 53 o = = 1416 1388
850,151 5480 70,682 21,080 4275 = 951,668 915,380
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair values

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are
not measured at fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair
values.

Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

EMTA #
AFAE

UHBATEHEZEBEEREBELM
ZATHE

TREERTHEBRZATERAR
BEEAEARMBEREAEINEE -E %
R M B RERANIZEBIER AT RIS
MEERETRMEENREEEZEATER
o

BEBRNTEABZFEATHEERE
MEEZATE

S M BREMS » A FEFERE

AFEFEHABBEZIEREERAT

@%%ﬁﬁ]\%ﬁFEEﬁﬁQZ% MDER
BF—MBRABS =R FHEUT

s F—MBAMENSERNFELN
BB ZHEREENERN GRS
BZHRE CREREB)

s B RBABBNEENGRZE
BREEEBE ﬁﬁu)\%@fﬁ (55 —#RFR
BIERBEFRIN) ;

s BZRBABBNEENERZA

liability. P ER SR A B o
Level 2 Level 3 Total
. B4R =Ea3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2022 RZE__F+-F=+—H
Investment in equity AT ESFAEMER
instruments at FVTOCI WAZBRATAKE = = 990
As at 31 December 2021 A\ZE—&F+"A=+—H
Investment in equity }?c’&ﬂﬁ STAEMZEE
instruments at FVTOCI WAZBRATAKE = = 990

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A RS ER R M5

E_E__HF+_A=+—HILEFE

4 A
e 1

For the year ended 31 December 2022 %

REVENUE 7. W=
2022 2021
—E-= —ET—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with TEE BB REERNEI5THE N
customers within the scope of BT EELRBRIEER S
HKFRS 15, disaggregated by major B E AU
products or services lines:
Trading Business: B .
Sales of electronic products and HEBTESREE
equipment 489,486 493,958
Financial Business: B E N
Commission and brokerage income 1 R &4 A 14,139 17,766
Advisory and consultancy fee RRARG B 1,619 2,265
505,244 513,989
Revenue from other sources outside TEEMEREARE155 S E I
the scope of HKFRS 15: B E AR S
Financial Business: TRAZETRS
Interest income arising from SEVEERES TR BUTA
financial business 5,455 7,399
Property Investment: MHERE
Rental income that are fixed EEREUWA 838 1,016
6,293 8,415
511,537 522,404
For revenue from contracts with HNEEAMBREERH1SRBERN
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15: HI&E R &4 ¢
Time of revenue recognition WSt 2 e 5% BRE 5]
Ata pointin time B 505,244 513,989
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

7. REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

(1

)

3

Dealing in securities and futures

The Group provides broking and dealing services for
securities and futures dealing. Commission income is
recognised at a point in time on the execution date of the
trades at a certain percentage of the transaction value
of the trades executed. The Group also provide handling
service for securities, futures, customer accounts. Fee
income is recognised when the transaction is executed.

Corporate finance advisory

The Group also provides corporate advisory services
to corporate clients for their corporate actions. The
corporate finance advisory income do not provide an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date to the Company as it is unlikely that a customer
can obtain benefit before the Company completes
all its services according to the contract terms of the
agreements signed with customers, the corporate finance
advisory service are recognised at a point in time when
the relevant services are completed.

Sales of electronic products and equipment

Revenue from trading of electronic products and
equipment are recognised at a point in time when the
goods have been delivered to the customer’s specific
location.

7. W= )

BERIIIANZENERE

(1

)

3

BEESRHE

FEEABFRPERZRHEEL
R FRE - BEWATIIN R Z8IT
Bz R -—KBMEFARTISZ
REBEZ-EBDEEDB -AEER
Tz HE -FRRPEMHEE
R BRUWATI IR ITR 5 K

230

e e ]

FEBTREERTFREHEEES
R UM MERMEETES X
MEBBRALERZES THRIE
MBI R B AR BRH A R FITT
B REAREA AT RERAT AR
5] BY 1 5% BY & A9 1% 7k 5T B HL PR B BR
B2 ZERAKRAIESESH m
ik F R E R RN ARSI
PR EITHESE o

REHETEMRRBRHZWmTY
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e FRIRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

OTHER INCOME Hithr A
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Interest income from bank RITH EWA 2 4
Sundry income FEIEWA 3,639 3,530
Handling charge income FEEWRA 956 1,371
Government subsidies (rote) BT #EBh (BaE) 690 -
5,287 4,905

note:  Government grants mainly represent subsidies received in connection
with the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

contingencies relating to these subsidies.

OTHER GAINS OR LOSSES, NET

izt BISHBEEEMEBRAITHREBFHZ
NMEESEBREN R o 2 S MBI MR ER

BIRGF R ARE -

H W e SRS 1R 7P 8

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Written-off of property, MEEYIZ BB M sk
plant and equipment 895 -
Debt settlement expenses B FERYS 193 -
1,088 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

114 AS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the nature of the products provided and services
rendered.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group is
currently organised into four operating and reportable
segments — (1) trading business, (2) mineral mining, oil and gas
business, (3) financial business and (4) property development
and investment. These revenue streams are the basis of the
internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors in order to allocate
resources to segments and to access their performance.
Trading business - sales of electronic products
and equipment

Mineral mining, oil =
and gas business

exploration and production of
mineral, oil and gas

Financial business - provision of financial service,
including stockbroking, futures
and options broking, mutual funds,
insurance-linked investment
plans and provision of corporate
financial services and securities
margin financing

Property development —
and investment

rental income and sale of property

10.

DEER

MRAARNEFE AMETBEERRE W
i%ﬁ DEERATED ﬁ%ﬁzﬁﬂ’

EREFMRHERKRFIGTREBEZ1E
TﬁﬁﬁO

BHE_Z__HF+-A=+—HILFE"
AEEHAREUEKLERATZ2HKN ;Eﬁﬂ
M—(MEBZER > QE RHRER(
%E%%%&(A)%%Fﬁéé&&ié:o&t%u&%ﬁﬁ
HREE e THERN AL ERSXKA
AlZAMREZEE BURSESE
BRI EZAEI R

BREH - HEEFERRRE

B BRRR AR
RREE

R HRES =

RESHES OER
IR VG R ERER
L BEEE REH
B E B REHE
EMERT URES
HEME

THES -

MERERRE -  HSRARMEHE
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

10. FEEH &
DEWERFEE

MR EERTERDBREREEZD
#r

BE_T__F+"_A=+—HLEE

Property
Mineral development
Trading mining, oil and Financial and
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
BREH HRER EAES Y Rkin#E 3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TART TAET TAT TAET
REVENUE Wi
Segment revenue DEWE 489,486 = 21,213 838 511,537
RESULTS £
Segment profit/(loss) DR/ (518) (33,570) (104) 2,892 450,210 419,428
Corporate administrationand ~~ AB{THRHMEEH
finance costs (63,113)
Profit before taxation BRI AR 356,315
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iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continuead)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. DHEER &
DHEWERES (&

HE _ T _—&F#+_B=+—HIEE

Property
Mineral development
Trading ~ mining, oil and Financial and
business gas business business investment Consolidated
g MERRE
BRER HRER ERER Rk&E Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TiET TERT
REVENUE s
Segment revenue HEWE 493,958 = 27,430 1,016 522,404
RESULTS E4
Segment profit/(loss) DR/ (518) 27,809 (64) 6,390 430,414 464,549

Corporate administrationand ~~ ARTERBEE
finance costs

Profit before taxation IR AR

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit/
loss represents the financial results by each segment without
allocation of corporate administration and some finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the Board of Directors for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

(71,947)

392,602

EENBZESBREAERG T BR
HE - D EEEFBSIRIET RO ART
HRETHEERBER IS 0B ZMBE
B-ERMAEFEE2REMNZAN UR
EERkHERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable segments:

At 31 December 2022

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

10. SERER &
PEEERER

NMIAETERIERDBEERERZD
#r

R-ZE__F+”"A=+—H

Property
Mineral development
Trading mining, oil and Financial and
business  gas business business investment  Consolidated
g MERER
BREH HRER EAES Y BE 3]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAT TAET TAET TAT TAET
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEBE 16,077 4 168,171 5,388,695 5,572,947
Unallocated assets REBEE 24,344
Consolidated total assets REEERE 5,597,291
LIABILITIES aff
Segment liabilities DEEE 44,262 465 113,362 888,991 1,047,080
Unallocated liabilities REEEE 404,906
Consolidated total liabilities REaBEEE 1,451,986
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e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_"ZE " "F+_H=+—HIEEE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continuea)

At 31 December 2021

10. DHEER &)
NEBEEREE B

W2 —%+_"HB=+—H

Property
Mineral development
Trading ~ mining, oil and Financial and
business gas business business investment Consolidated
g MEREK
BRER HRER ERER RE& Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TiET TER
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEEE 137,208 3 209,619 4,743,571 5,090,401
Assets classified as held for sale DiEABIELEE 385,660
Unallocated assets REBEE 37,321
Consolidated total assets GRBEERE 5,513,382
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities DEEE 109,888 465 157,090 582,862 850,305
Liabilities associated with assets AR EHE
classified as held for sale EERENEE 5,806
Unallocated liabilities REEEE 553,406
Consolidated total liabilities REEREE 1,409,517
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and /‘i’jE XD BRERDEERTEDEM
allocating resources between segments: = !

- all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
assets of the investment holding companies and assets
classified as held for sale.

- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments, other
than amounts due to Directors, corporate bonds and
liabilities of the investment holding companies and
liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale.

BREZERADNEERDEAR

T’Fﬁ‘iﬂﬁﬁ}:’%% CFIBEEERET
EE A EEo

BRREZERATNEMNEERE QA
BESAREEUREDBEAFELY
EEEFMNARIIN FIEREED
ETEEDE-
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B FEER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 %

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuead)

Other segment information

nV-F

10. DHEEF &

Hith D EEH

=i ——

F+-A=+—HLFE

Mineral Property
mining, oil development
Trading and gas Financial and
business business business  investment Total  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
8 NELER
BA%H BRER SRER & EE & ga
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FER TER FEn TER FEn TER FEn
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BEZRCET-AST-HIEE
Amounts included in the measure of HENE BB /ERRNBEESA
segment (ossprofitor segment assets: 288!
Addition of property, plant and equipment RENE BRARE - - - 490 490 - 490
Addition of investment property RERENE - - - 171,156 171,156 - 171,156
Fair valug change in investment properties RENELTEES - - - (467,131) (467,131) - (467,131)
Written-off of property, plant and equipment HisnE BEREE 895 - - - 895 - 895
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 1% BRERRETE 45 = 3 4,700 4,748 = 4,748
Depreciation of right of use assets FREEERE 152 - 1,843 164 2,159 - 2,159
Finance costs YHER 184 2 1,983 8,971 11,140 46,110 57,250
Interest income FIEMA - - (5,455) (2) (5,457) = (5,457)
(Reversal of impairment lossesy/impairment losses  Z&SA At B2 2BEEL
on financial assets at amortised cost, net (RAESEDR) /AEEE 38 28,414 - (22) - 28,392 - 28,392
Mineral Property
mining, oil development
Trading and gas Financial and
business husiness business investment Total Unallocated ~ Consolidated
3R NELRR
B5%% BRER SRER b aft FAE &8
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEn TERT TEn TERT TEr FERT TEr
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ--FFR=T-HUEEE
Amounts included in the measure of HENE (BB /NN EEENA
segment (loss)/profit or segment assets: bk B
Fair valug change in investment properties RENEATEES - - - (442,760) (442,760) - (442,760)
Depreciation of property, plantand equipment 1% BERR & E 106 - 85 463 4827 65 489
Depreciation of right of use assets FREEERE 187 - 2301 168 2656 - 2656
Finance costs HHER 23 - 3200 % 3528 45737 49,265
Interest income FIEHA S = (7,39) (@} (7,409 S (7403
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment losses  B& M A Bz SREEL
on financial assets at amortised cost, net (RESEDR) /AEEE 38 4 - (16) 4750 4738 - 4738
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iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10.
Geographical information

All of the activities of trading business are based in Hong Kong
and the PRC (2021: PRC). The activities of oil and gas business
are based in Madagascar. All of the activities of the financial
business are based in Hong Kong. The activities of property
development and investment are mainly based in the PRC.

The Group's revenue and its non-current assets, other than
financial assets at FVTOCI, statutory deposits, deposit paid
for construction, loans receivable and deferred tax assets, by
geographical location of the assets regarding its operations are
detailed below:

SERER (&
1th & B

EREHBz—EHHEEBERTE (T
T —F I E) BT ORREBEHES
EMFNMET EMEFZ—VESHHEHE
BERET - VEEREREETHTEAER
BT ©

BREATESFAREMEARAZERE
EEERT - BNRERE BRERK
EIEMBEEN > ZEEIREEZ I
B NHEHKEZ W RHEIFRBEESE
mE:

Revenue Non-current assets
Uy &= ERBEE

2022 2021 2022 2021
—EZ"F —EZ—F —EZCHF —EZ—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET FAET FET
Hong Kong &8 507,757 27,430 2,229 1,107
PRC # 3,780 494,974 4,221,434 2,538,614
Madagascar EE T - - 44,451 48,760

511,537

522,404 4,268,114 2,588,481
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iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZEZ_ZE-_"F+_HB=+—HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from customers for the years ended 31 December

2022 and 2021 contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are generated from trading business as follow:

10.

DEEN (&
BFREERERZEHN
BE-S-__H#R-S°-—F+48

=t —HIEFEMEAERBUmI0%U L
BI= R W XEE%%?QDT

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHT
Customer A ZEA 87,883 N/A B *
Customer B ZFB 71,654 N/A B *
Customer C BAC N/A RiEF 158,198
Customer D EFD N/A FiE 148,899
Customer E ZAE N/A RiEF 67,209
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total * B FE WS 2 T A AR B 4B U 2 19 10% A b o

revenue of the Group.

There is no other single customer contributing over 10% of total
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

BHE_Z-_"_F#R-_ZE”-Z—F+ZAH
:+— HIEFETEAME TR {hARE
48K 5 F10% L o
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iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

11. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF FINANCIAL

1. RBHRASEZERBEEZR

ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST, NET (BEE1EFER
2022 2021
—E-—F —EZ—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
Impairment losses/(reversal) of BN E BT ESE 2 FEURERRR
impairment losses on accounts ZRERE,ORERE (B8 .
receivable arising from:
— cash clients —REER (12) (13)
- margin clients —RBEEL (10) (©)
— trading business —BS%E% 24,648 4
- property investment —EKE = 4,750
Other receivables H fih & I AR =X 3,766 -
28,392 4,738
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. A EH
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Corporate bonds NEMESS 1,181 1,972
Borrowings B8 51,941 43,921
Amount due to a director B —%EEHIE 2,528 2,364
Convertible bonds AR ES 1,494 842
Lease liabilities HEaE 106 166
57,250 49 265
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e FRIRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

13. TAXATION 13. 1RIE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT

Current tax: BPEAFRIA -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax RE TR - 6,956

Under/(over)-provision in prior years: BEFERERE/ (BF) !

Hong Kong Profits Tax FAFER = -
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax FRE (2 FT1RR 33 (1,247)
33 5,709

Deferred taxation: PFEIEFRIA
Charge for the year REENER 116,707 110,690
116,740 116,399

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the relevant group
entities have no assessable profits or the assessable profits are
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both
years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. No provision for profits
tax is made in other jurisdictions as the subsidiaries operating in
other jurisdictions have no assessable profits for both years.

HRBE_T-_"FR-F-_—F+°A4
St -HLEFERMERERIIEBRR
mH D R EF] B2 BMBRAIRIE
BEEE RUERZMEFESREESR
M o

RBEREAREMBEAREEMBRZE
72 (ThEMBRE) REEMSREZE
K& PENB AR R ZMEEEZR
T 525% °

REMBEEEELE ZRIBERBAEER
BRITHREFAB HREHMBEREE
B2 B AR ZmEEE T ETAER
MoamA o WA ESHRAM B A EE ZF T
o
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iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &E_Z_——

13. TAXATION (Continueq)

F+A=t—HLEE

13. 18 (&)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before FERBHEHASEGMEMEERGERZ
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and PRI EDEF RO -
other comprehensive income as follows:
2022 2021
—=E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit before taxation BRAR A A 356,315 392,602
Taxation charge at the Hong Kong EAFERE16.5%E
Profits Tax rate of 16.5% ZHRMIESZH 58,792 64,779
Tax effect of income not taxable BIAEFRUA
for tax purpose 2B (873) (1,757)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses RSB IR AR
not recognised 2B 1,050 1,867
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ENGIE Rb
for tax purpose ZHRBE 18,589 13,859
Tax effect of temporary differences not ~ REERE R EZREZ B E
recognised 7 7
Utilization of tax losses previously not AR R IBE 8
recognized (488) (1,108)
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERERE (B%) 33 (1,247)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FREMBEEZEELE 2B A S
operating in other jurisdictions ENGEi a2 39,630 39,999
Taxation for the year FEMRIE 116,740 116,399

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FRIRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. FE&RH
2022
—E=-=
HK$'000
FEx
Profit for the year has been FE M BHNEFETIRIE
arrived at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration 12 BREM BN & 2,750
Depreciation of property, ME- -BERREITE
plant and equipment 4,748
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE 2,159
Staff costs including Directors’ BINE (BIEESHS)
remuneration 26,720
Contributions to retirement benefits IRRTRFFT B R
scheme 627
Cost of inventories recognised as expense HEERAR > 2 7 E/M 478,308
Rental income from investment property B EYEREWRAFEE S H
less direct outgoings 828

2021
—E-—%F
HK$'000
FHT

1,900

4,892
2,656

26,768

567
463,207

993
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

15. EERFTETHASME

2022
ECCEF
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees HER BIREF  remuneration
s H{thigF HE BN T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TERT FTERT FHET
Executive Directors HWITEE
Hui Chi Ming HEH - 1,200 18 1,218
Neil Bush Ef e i ft = 654 - 654
XuJun Jia HlEE = 900 14 914
CaoYu EF = 1,260 18 1,278
Lam Kwok Hing ERE = 2,808 18 2,826
Nam Kwok Lun ERfR = 984 18 1,002
Hui Ngok Lun o = 1,260 18 1,278
Independent Non-Executive  BiJERITES
Directors
Ngan Kam Biu, Standford kil 120 - - 120
Tam Chak Chi BEZ 120 - - 120
Ma Kin Ling BERE 120 - - 120
Yiu King Ming (note) g (i) 93 - - 93
453 9,066 104 9,623

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FRIRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

15.

EERTETHAESME @

2021
—EC-F
Contributions
Salaries and to retirement
other benefits
benefits scheme Total
Fees Hek BRIRER remuneration
e Hiti@# AR 1wl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT FET FET
Executive Directors WITEE
Hui Chi Ming HE B 1,200 18 1,218
Neil Bush Ef e it - 640 - 640
XuJun Jia HlEE - 200 3 203
CaoYu EF - 1,200 18 1,218
Lam Kwok Hing EREE - 2,808 18 2,826
Nam Kwok Lun B - 984 18 1,002
Hui Ngok Lun e - 1,200 18 1,218
Independent Non-Executive — BiJERITES
Directors
Ngan Kam Biu, Standford kil 120 - - 120
Tam Chak Chi BEZ 120 - - 120
MaKin Ling BiE 120 - - 120
360 8,232 93 8,685
note:  Mr.Yiu King Ming was appointed as independent non-executive director Wiz EGAEER S =B+ _HESF
on 22 March 2022. RAEIIERITES-
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15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has
waived any emoluments during the year (2021: Nil).

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons’ services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Emoluments of the independent non-executive directors
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

15. EERFTETHASME (2

AABWET U AAEREFAR M
AT EFHEABERETHEAERE
m BRAFERNAFERTAEED
RBEBZERRG - LHREGH -

PREEER AEEREQTANESX
TEEME URSIEMAXREBRRES
BEEEE RAFERN BMEEERER
S (CEZ—F ) o

AEMATEENZHE 2HKREY
B —RAMZEALTEELARATRHE
MBARZEBARMZRT T HAEIR
ZME e EMBIIFRATESFHNNEEE
PHEREER/ETADEFRERBHIME -
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iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group
included four (2021: four) Directors of the Company for the
year, details of whose emoluments are included in Note 15. The
emoluments of the remaining one (2021: one) individual are as
follows:

16.

EEME

REEER AEEZALRSHMAL
BENEG (CE-Z—F . [W4a) AAFE
B HEMEIBE N 15 Hig—% (=
T —F %) ALZMEN T

2022 2021

—E-CF B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Salaries and other benefits e REMET 1,300 2,358
Contributions to retirement BRIRBEHET TR

benefits scheme 18 18

1,318 2,376

The emoluments of one (2021: one) individual with the highest
emolument is within the following band:

—% (CE—F ! —R)RsHATZH
ENFTIIEER :

2022 2021

Emoluments band [l —E-=—f&F —T——
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
AE A#
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7t £ 1,500,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 75 £ 2,500,000 75 - 1
1 1

During both years, no emolument was paid by the Group to the
above-mentioned individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

RWEFEER > FEBBER LRATZ
RS LRSI EMARERHMA
Ry ol 1E 23 BERRL AR 8 o
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/ ,!}' Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
0 EEMEHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE 17. EREF
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to BNBHEEANEEEREABATLZTY]
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: R E
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Earnings: BH
Profit for the year attributable to owners  FBLUGTEEREARFIZ
of the Company for the purpose of NABVEB ANEIEERRET
calculating basic earnings per share 250,227 267,895
Number of shares
i & R
‘000 ‘000
The T B
Number of shares: Rin&E :
Weighted average number of ordinary BLUEESRERRHZ
shares for the purpose of calculating ZimR NI
basic earnings per share 5,280,232 4,000,000
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the BUGESRERRN 2 EBRMETEH
purpose of basic earnings per share has not been adjusted for BUAMNKR ST _FHA+—HE&ETZ
rights issue that took place on 11 April 2022 because there is no HEEEHBE RRRWEAN TR
bonus element.
For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, BHE_Z-__F+-A=+—HBHKRZZ
the diluted and basic earnings per share are the same as the ——F+ZA=1+—HULEFE SKE#EE
convertible bonds are anti-dilutive to the earnings per share. BAHASRKREARBRAMER L5 AKR A KR

RESHERENAERBEER-
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18.

19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for both years.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

nV-F
For the year ended 31 December 2022 %

18. HQI%\

=i ——

BB R M

F+-A=+—HLFE

EETEZNZMEFEIRGTRARE

19. ME - -BERRZE

Leasehold Computer Furniture Motor
improvements  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Property Total
HEMERE ERE GAREE pa: mE aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT FERT FERT FERT FERT
COST D%
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—5—HA—H 1,535 7,556 1,949 2,740 130,000 143,780
Exchange adjustment ERRE - 34 4 29 - 67
At 31 December 2021 and RIBZ-E+ZA=+—-AK
1 January 2022 R_E-_"&—-F—H 1,535 7,590 1,953 2,769 130,000 143,847
Additions HE - - - 490 - 490
Written-off ] (287) (2,985) (525) - - (3797)
Exchange adjustment ERRE - () (12) (96) - (113)
At 31 December 2022 RIEZ“HF+-A=+—H 1,248 4,600 1416 3,163 130,000 140,427
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION E3tiERRE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 RIEZ—%—F—H 1,495 6,266 1,806 2,270 76,883 88,720
Provided for the year FEEE 40 222 38 235 4,357 4,892
Exchange adjustment ERRE - 4 2 18 - 2
At 31 December 2021 and RIEZ—F+ZA=1+—-0BkK
at 1 January 2022 iy = R 1,535 6,492 1,846 2,523 81,240 93,636
Provided for the year FEEE - 67 25 306 4,350 4,748
Written-off HisH (287) (2,083) (525) (37) - (2,902
Exchange adjustment ERRE - 11 39 (53) (@) (44)
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF+-A=+—H 1,248 4,517 1,385 2,739 85,549 95,438
CARRYING AMOUNTS REfE
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZHF+"HA=+—H S 83 31 424 44,451 44,989
At 31 December 2021 RZB-—F+-A=+-H = 1,098 107 246 48,760 50,211

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method at the

following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 20% — 33'/3% or lease term,
whichever is shorter

Computer equipment 20% - 50%
Furniture and fixtures 20% — 40%
Motor vehicles 20% — 30%
Property 3%

TENBERERUTERSHE

HEYEE

Bk E
R EEE
AE
LS

35

20% — 33'/3% 3% 2 HA
UABREE R %)
20% — 50%
20% — 40%
20% — 30%

3%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

20. IREME

HK$'000

FHT

At 1 January 2021 N2 —F—F—H 2,368,672

Fair value change N EED) 442,760

Exchange adjustment b 25 22 79,698
Reclassified to assets held for sale EMOBEEREHEERE W232)

(Note 32) (354,211)
At 31 December 2021 RIE2EZ—-—F+ZA=+—H 2,536,919
Addition for the year FEAIE N 171,156
Transfer from properties for sale HAFEYE 945,559
Reclassified from assets held for sale B EHESESHNE WWat32)

(Note 32) 354,211
Fair value change //_\\IFTE A5 467,131
Exchange adjustment bE A (254,054)
At 31 December 2022 RIB_Z_F+"A=+—H 4,220,922

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

Investment properties comprise of (a) commercial units and car
parking spaces located in Beijing, the PRC and (b) commercial
units and car parking spaces located in Zhanjiang, the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
changed the intention for part of the properties for sale to rental
purpose with an amount of HK$945,559,000 and transferred to
investment properties.

RNEEERBEEEEFFEURNRES N
EXREENYEEDIRBATERNAG
2> URDBA/RARIREYE -

REVESFE@QUNPREIER ZEEEAL
KB RO PEE I EmEENRE

i o

REE_ZE__&+_BA=+—HILE
B> AABERBATENENBERNLS
H7H > £2EA945,559,00058 7 0 I8 A %
ER/E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Property-located in Beijing, the PRC
(Reclassified from asset held for sale during
2022)

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2022 have been determined based on a valuation
carried out on that day by Roma Appraisals Limited (2021:
Masterpiece Valuation Advisory Limited), an independent
qualified professional valuer that is not connected with the
Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Direct Comparison
Method”, where the value is assessed by assuming sale in their
existing states with the benefit of vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales evidence as available in
the relevant market.

Property-located in Zhanjiang, the PRC

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2022 have been determined based on a valuation
carried out on that day by Roma Appraisals Limited (2021: Jones
Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited), an
independent qualified professional valuer that is not connected
with the Group.

The fair value was determined based on the “Residual Method”,
where the value is assessed by reference to the comparable
sales evidence as available in the relevant market and have also
taken into account the expended construction costs as well as
the costs that will expend to complete the developments.

20. KEME &)

ME-URPEIER (R-TZZ
FEFEHEEEENDH)

AEBRZEF+2/A=+—Hz%
EMERLAFEICEARER T RAE S
UEEREXEGHEMESHAEFHERA
B (CEZ—F FNFAEHBHERAE)
BEHZHEEE-

AFEDHZETERLEBEI BE MEEE
DBIREUAEFE IR ST HERSRAMTS
AR Z A E LB EEBEMTE

ME-IRPEET

AEBRZE_F+2/A=+—Hz%
EMERLAFEIDBAARER T REAE B
UEEREXGEMBEERRIEERA
B (CEI—F  hEMTEETHKRESN
BERAR) HEBZEEEE

AFEDRETRELAEE MAEBEDLS
REMTHEA RSB LLRIFER/EMT
Bt kB Z B A KT
RS H Z PR o

Annual Report 2022 « — = —F 53

205



Py

206

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continuea) 20. IEME @)
Properties-located in the PRC ME— (I E
The carrying amounts of investment properties shown above i EYEREMERE
comprise:
2022 2021
—=E=-= —EZ—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
Properties in the PRC: REZE
Medium-term lease RS 4,220,922 2,536,919
The fair value measurements for all of the Group's investment AEEFMEREMEZ ATENEEDEE
properties are categorised as level 3. The following table BEZHTRIEVNAETKREDER
gives information about how the fair value of the investment 2+ ZA=t+—HZAFEZE
properties as at 31 December 2022 are determined (in K (R B ERMRTE 2@ AR »
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as UEREBATEFEBABBE 2 THRERE
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements ERHBEATEAEMBATESRAE=
are categorised level 3 based on the degree to which the inputs Ao

to the fair value measurements is observable.
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20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 %

nV-F

20. KEME &)

=i ——

BB R M

F+-A=+—HLFE

Fair value Fair value
asat asat Valuation Relationship of
Fair value 31 December 31 December  technique and Significant unobservahle
Properties hierarchy 2022 2021 key input unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
RIBZZ RIB--&
+ZB=+-Bz +IZR=t-Hz fEKHER EXFAER FOBRHABE
F/ES ATERR ATE ATE TEBARE BAHE BATEZME
Property - located in Beijing, Level 3 HK$380,334,000 HK$354,211,000  Direct comparison method ~ Price per sqm using market direct comparable  An increase in the price per sqm wil
the PRC and taking into account location and other increase significantly the fair value, and
The key input is price per individual factors such as age and location vice versa.
sqm and per car park of the property, approximately RMB34,000-
space RMB71,000 (2021: RMB42,000-RMB85,000) per
sqm and approximately RMB704,000 (2021:
RMB563,700) per car park space as at 31
December 2022.
WE-RFEIER B 380,334,000%7C 35421100087 EfRtLEE HAETRERTELRMEL R BREM STAHRERLARARENATE
ERER GIMENRRENY) BEZE  RZTFA.
TZHNEES FRABE IRE2E+ZB=1—
STHAREREBMER BETAHRNARE3M,000E ART1,000
T (CEI-F ARBLRI0TEARE
85,00070) REEE A ARE704,0007 (2
T \EH563,70070) °
Property - located in Zhanjiang, ~ Level3 HK$3,840,588,000 HK$2,536,919,000  Residual method Market unit rate, taking into account Asignificant increase in the market unit
the PRC the recent transaction prices for similar rate used would result in a significant
The key input is price per properties adjusted for nature, location and increase in fair value, and vice versa.
sqm conditions of the property, which RMB8,000-
RMB13,000 (2021: RMB9,000-RMB14,000) per
sqm as at 31 December 2022.
Estimation of construction cost of RMB2,157- Asignificant increase in the construction
RMB5,257 (2021: RMB2,318-RMB3,818) per sqm  cost used would result in a significant
as at 31 December 2022. decrease in fair value, and vice versa
Expected developer profit margin Asignificant increase in the expected profit
at 15% (2020: 15%) as at 31 December 2021, would result in a significant decrease in
fair valug, and vice versa
WE- R PEET £=4 3,840,588,00087% 25369190007 EHEA THEE @ REUNEFHNENE HER MRAZTREEARLARERAT
RREHERZARAER RIT2Z  EAEEN RZM7%e
TZHNUEASTAK F+ZB=1- Es?E#AE%wwﬁi
B ARB130007 (CBZ—F 1 AEH9,0007

There has been no change from the valuation technique used in

prior year.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into

or out of level 3.

ZAEH14,00070) ©

RIBZZE+ZA=+—B BEMAME

ABTHK AR 157TE ARES, 57T
(CZZ-%: \EM23BTEARE3S1S
)

RZF--F+-A=+-BN BEREEE

FIE15% (CEZTE 1 15%) o

EFHRBIGES A

BE_B__§k_
=t+—HUEFE BERE R

BENAABRIRERATENAR
A RZTA

BEA KBS BRATEARH
1 RZI%e

IR

T o s
P55 — 4R

lw—_

Z B8 WEARERE =4
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21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

21. FRAEEE

Office
WMAZE
HKS
BT

COST s :
At 1 January 2021 RZE2Z—F—HF—H 7,797
Exchange adjustment bE A 28
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 M_ZE_—F+_A=+—HBK-_ZE-_"_£—HF—H 7,825
Addition for the year FNRE 3,030
Written-off for the year F s (6,903)
Exchange adjustment PE R AR (73)
At 31 December 2022 W_E2-_—_F+"“HA=+—H 3,879
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2021 N2 —F—F—H 3,809
Charge for the year FARZH 2,655
Exchange adjustment R 10
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R ZE-_—F+_A=+—HK-_ZE-__"F—F—H 6,474
Charge for the year FRLZH 2,159
Written-off for the year F A (6,903)
Exchange adjustment PE oA EE (54)
At 31 December 2022 N2 F+ZA=+—H 1,676
CARRYING AMOUNTS: ARMEE :
At 31 December 2022 RIEZ-_F+-"F=+—H 2,203
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+"F=+—H 1,351
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

21. FHEEE &

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Expense relating to short-term leases BRAEHEENRY 2,970 2,633
Total cash outflow for leases (including HERERHEEE (BEEEHEE

short-term leases) 5,302 5,511

For both years, the Group leases offices for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 1 to 2 years (2021:
1to 2 years). It carries interests ranging from 5.00%-11.33%
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 5.13%-11.33%).
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

PREFERN AEEBHRERA=ZAN
HESTUBERRABIE2E (ZEZ—
FEF) 2HEAHN - REEZZZ
F+ZA=+—HLEFE HANENTF
5.00F11.33% (ZZE_—4% ! 5.13% %
11.33%) - HEMMRMRTHIZE R B EEER > W
B8 & BREIN RN G R EE R
KGR PR REER  RERERE
AENERTLEBEE S ARG NITHE
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR MEERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

22. B, EE

Mineral Trading
mining right rights Total
PRUEE RatE a4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FAET FAET
COST X 25
At 1 January 2021 RW_E-_—F—H—HB->
31 December 2021, E—HF+ZRA=+—H>
1 January 2022 and 2 F—F—HK
31 December 2022 2 HF+ZA=+—H - 50 50
AMORTISATION #an
At 1 January 2021, A _E_—F—H—H-
31 December 2021, 2 —HF+ZHA=+—H~
1 January 2022 and 2 _F—-HB—HK
31 December 2022 —E"HF+"HB=4+—H = 50 50
CARRYING AMOUNTS IREE
At 31 December 2022 RIE2EZ-F+ZHB=+—H S S =
At 31 December 2021 RIE-_—HF+"A=+—H = = =

Trading rights represent two trading rights in the Stock Exchange
and one trading right in Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited.

The Group had one mining right under the License 253 in
respect of Kenya Mine 253, an area of approximately 1,056
square kilometers situated in Kitui District Eastern Province,
Kenya.

The License 253 of the mineral mining right has been fully
written off.

R BEMIFAZMERZEREBHE

RBMERABDZ—EARXZ#E-

AREEREEBMERELEH23RKEIZZH
253SRET B MR —IEIRER > ZEIG U
K5 E R ES & &M & (Kitui District
EREAI1,056F FAE °

Eastern Province) »

PR BEME R 5525358 5 7J 55 B A BUMEs -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TEERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 BZEZ_ZE-_"F+_HB=+—HIFE

23. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES 23. IRIEFRIE (BE) &E
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for UTAMMBREMs BERIBELRR 2D
financial reporting purposes: #r:
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E (14,060) -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIRE R 541,857 481,328
527,797 481,328
The following is deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised and UTFBREBEE_Z "% E’z =%
movements thereon during the years ended 31 December 2022 +ZA=+—BLEFERIDZIRLERIE
and 2021: (EE) aERrEEES:
Fair value
changes
on investment
properties
KREME
NEEEH
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 January 2021 RZZE-_—%—H—H 328,906
Charged to profit or loss 75"%; 5 0B 110,690
Exchange realignment R 11,814
Reclassified to assets held for sale (Note 32) %%’“ﬁi%ﬂ’ﬁﬁ%é}% (H1z#32) 29,918
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 N B2 —F+"RA=+—HkK
—E-_H#—HF—H 481,328
Reclassified from assets held for sale (Note 32) BREHEEEENDE (Wat32) (29,918)
Charged to profit or loss PBm AR 116,707
Exchange realignment P % (40,320)
At 31 December 2022 RN_E__F+"_H=+—H 527,797
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

23.

24.

DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$58,557,000 (2021:
HK$55,695,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
unused tax losses as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Approximately HK$5,490,000 (2021: HK$5,699,000) unused tax
losses will expire in 5 years and approximately HK$53,067,000
(2021: HK$49,996,000) unused tax losses do not expire under
the current tax legislation.

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Investment in equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise:

Listed investments: EHRE
— Equity securities listed on Hong Kong

Stock Exchange

23. IEERIR (BE) & @

RBEHRR ZREEBNABHGIRE
53849 7458,557,0008 T (T _—F :
55,695,000 7T) R K8 R HOHEF) o AL
RRAERERREF T ARIKHE A A
MBEEE R ER DI REARBEER

RIRIEMRMIBE E - RIBVITRB A
#95,490,000% 75 (ZZT = —£ : 5,699,000
BIm) REARBEEERSFREISARLN
53,067,00058 70 (Z & Z—4 : 49,996,000
BT KRB ARBEEIE R

24. BRFESFARMEEBAZER

AITAKRE

BATEFAREMEERAZRETAR
BEEE:

—REBFT L ZRAESF

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
990 990

The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares
of an entity listed in Hong Kong. These investments are not
held for trading, instead, they are held for long-term strategic
purposes. The directors of the Company have elected to
designate these investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI
as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations in these
investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent
with the Group's strategy of holding these investments for long-
term purposes and realising their performance potential in the
long run.

aitl

LHRBEARESNBEALTERBZ LA
o ZERELFRRXZMER - MR
AEHRBENMES - HRARRE
EHE ERIARFRERBRRRZA
FEZEHRPEAKRESREBENTEE
ZERERBRARREBEERE ZRBET
o ALEEEBZSERATARERTE
RN FEFAREMEEEA -
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26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e FRIRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

STATUTORY DEPOSITS

25. FERE

2022 2021
—E-F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Deposits with: EHR TIEE 2 7B
The Stock Exchange of EEMERZMBRATE
Hong Kong Limited 350 350
HKSCC 5B%E 553 200
Reserve Fund Contribution to HKFECC ERPEEE BT HR 1,500 1,500
2,403 2,050
LOANS RECEIVABLE 26. FENERR
2022 2021
—E-CF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
Fixed-rate loans receivable MINpEE A TIE
denominated in functional ZEBEWER
currency of Hong Kong dollars 17,019 17,071
Carrying amount analysed ARG ZREE
for reporting purposes: DT
Current assets (receivable REBEE (JERSHEX
within 12 months from B+ 1@ 8 mURED
the end of the reporting period) 1,055 131
Non-current assets (receivable EREBEE (TBHRSHR
after 12 months from the end B+ 1@ B B UKED
of the reporting period) 15,964 16,940
17,019 17,071
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

114 AS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

26.

27.

28.

LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Loans receivable with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$17,019,000 (2021: HK$16,940,000) is secured by properties
located in Hong Kong. The Group is not permitted to sell or
repledge the property in the absence of default by the customer.

The effective interest rate (which is equal to contractual interest
rate) on the Group’s loans receivable was 6.50% (2021: 6.50%)
per annum. Interest rate termis fixed at the time when entering

26. EIRE= (&

IREEA217,019,0008 (ZEZ—F ¢
16,940,000/ 7T) 2 BWERMUUNRERZ
MEFERF - EZRALEENZBERT
AEENSHENBRERZDE -

FEERRERZBERIX (ZRAEGHR
) #BF6.50% (_’g:—i 16.50%) ° F
RIERNETLEMR B EZRETE - ERHR

into loan agreement. The period of the loans was 1 to 5 years —ERE(ZE :—fﬁ —FERF) o
(2021: 110 5 years).
INVENTORIES 27. 78
2022 2021
—E=-= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Finished goods arising from business HEBEFEMMRBEBESE
of trading electronic products and BB AL G
equipment 390 52,630
PROPERTIES FOR SALE HEW=
2022 2021
= — = —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
1 January —H—H 1,981,337 1,921,997
Addition for the year FRRE 64,711 =
Transferred to investment properties EERENEY (945,559)
Exchange realignment R (154,930) 59,340
31 December +—HA=+—H 945,559 1,981,337

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has five lands
located in Zhanjiang Economic and Technological Development
Zone in Guangdong Province, the PRC. The Group plans
to develop residential properties for sale and the relevant
development plan had been approved by authority in the PRC.

RIB__ErRZSE_—F+_HA=+—
B> x&EBEAUNPREERE&IER
TR &~ o iR i o A& B 51 8 f &
FEMEUMBE  BRFAREAICE
HEE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

29. FEURERTR

2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Accounts receivable consist of: FEWERRBIETFIIER !
Accounts receivable arising from BTFERMARBEZEBMEEZ
business of trading electronic [E U AR =X
products and equipment 4,703 26,032
Less: Loss allowances for ECL Hikk  TREAEE BRI BB E = (362)
4,703 25,670
Accounts receivable arising from the BERSSFEFMELE 2 EWERER
business of dealing in securities:
— cash clients —BEER
—other —HAth 17,142 17,001
- directors —E= - 3,046
Less: Loss allowances for ECL HIkk : FERREERmBZ BRE S (10) (24)
17,132 20,023
- Hong Kong Securities Clearing —BBPREFERAE
company Limited (“HKSCC") (MEAREE)) 1,479 4,232
Accounts receivable from Hong Kong EEREaNEBRIELEY
Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation ~ EWEBHESEEARAT
Limited (“HKFECC") arising from the (TEEHEEE)) RN
business of dealing in futures contracts 928 382
Loans to securities margin clients BT FRESERZER 26,694 50,836
Less: Loss allowances for ECL Hikf  TREAEE BRI BIEEE (16) (28)
26,678 50,808
50,920 101,115
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29. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continueq)

Accounts receivable from the business of
trading electronic products and equipment

The credit period based on dates of delivery of goods for
accounts receivable from trading of electronic products and
equipment is 90 days. The aging analysis of accounts receivable
arising from trading of electronic products and equipment
based on the invoice date of the reporting period is as follow:

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

FEURERTR (2

REEFERRRBEZEBZE
U AR TR

REBFEMMRHBES ZBBIRMIER
NEmBHFtEZEENR0B - REE
FERERBEEZNRESHBRERDH
2z BUERRZREDTOT ¢

2022 2021

—E=-= —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T T

0-90 days 0ZE90H 4,703 25,327
Over 365 days #B83B365H - 343
4,703 25,670

Loans to securities margin clients

Loans to securities margin clients are repayable on demand
and bear interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank plus
3% equivalent from 8.50% to 9.13% per annum for both years.
In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is disclosed
as the aged analysis does not give additional value. The loans
are secured by pledged marketable securities at fair value
of approximately HK$115,039,000 (2021: HK$209,926,000).
The average percentage of collateral over the outstanding
balance as at 31 December 2022 is ranged from 86% to 5,190%
(2021:118% t0 10,617%). The fair value of pledged marketable
securities of the individual margin clients is higher than the
corresponding outstanding loans. The Group is permitted to
sell or repledge the marketable securities if the customer
default the payment as requested by the Group. The Group had
provided the loss allowance for securities margin clients with
reference to the portfolio held and the subsequent settlement of
each customer.

MTEFMRETERZEM

HYBESRESETPRZEREAREXRE
BERERBITMBREEREIFZM3I%
(MEFEHDBEERFFENFL.50%E
9.13%) st B - EER A > ANRERE DM
TERZE AL ERIEEFHEAKE-
BR AT EL115,039,0008 7T (ZF
——1%F :209,926,0005 T) 2 BRI RS
BEFER - RIBE_—F+_"_A=+—
B REEARZERAZFEHESET
N F86%ES,190% (ZE_—4F  118%=E
10,617%) ~ERIREBEEEF 2 BEF A
BHEZATEERERREEENR IE
BEENERERNAEBMERNIERS
HHABIREFRBEES AEEBER2EEE
FREZEREMAEREBESE R B
SREEEPIREEREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 29. FEURBRFR (&

Accounts receivable from cash clients, HKSCC,
HKFECC

The settlement terms of accounts receivable from cash clients,
HKSCC, HKFECC are usually one to two days after the trade
date. Except for the accounts receivable from cash clients as
mentioned below, the accounts receivable from HKSCC and
HKFECC aged within 30 days.

The Group offsets certain accounts receivable and accounts
payable when the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the balances and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the balances simultaneously.

The settlement terms of cash clients are usually one to two days
after the trade date. The aged analysis of accounts receivable

arising from cash clients is as follows:

Accounts receivable from cash clients

0-90 days 0&90H

REREER -FERGEEREEN
B Z BIRARM

REEP EBGEEREBHEEERK
ERRZERHREEAXZAHE—EM
HeBRTXAIREWIREE R RMIN &
WEBEEREBHEGEHERMZARERE
#30B R

EAERERAKER NITRIITHG R
W LR BRE E G R R R R G RRE
AEBEGIHEE TRUGRRR B IR -

REFRPZEERBEERXNZARR—=
MA-REFRELEZBBERRZRE D
frans

FEURIR & & B BRTX
2022 2021
—E_-— —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
17,132 20,023

OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND  30. EfthfEULBESR « FE(TSRIE RIS

DEPOSITS
2022 2021
—E=-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Other receivables and advance to HhERETRREZEREEDN

suppliers arising from trading business mEREE B (WaE1)

(note 1) 33,873 92,400
Rental and other deposits (note 2) e kEMEZS HF7F2) 42,320 90,110
Prepayments FARIE 82 259

76,275 182,769
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e TR RMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

30. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND

31.

DEPOSITS (Continued)

All of the other receivables and advance to suppliers
arising from trading business, rental and other deposits and
prepayments are expected to be recovered within one year.

note 1: Amounts mainly represent advance to suppliers for trading business and
advance to an independent third party.

note 2: Amounts mainly represent prepayment made to constructor, value-added
tax recoverable and rental deposit.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances (trust and segregated
accounts)

From the Group's ordinary business, it receives and holds
money deposited by clients in the course of the conduct of the
regulated activities. These clients” monies are maintained in one
or more segregated bank accounts and bear prevailing market
deposit rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.1% (2021: 0.01% to 0.1%)
per annum. The Group has recognised the corresponding
accounts payable to respective clients. However, the Group
does not have a currently enforceable right to offset those
payables with the deposits placed.

Bank balances (general accounts) and cash

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and short-
term bank deposits carrying prevailing market deposit rates
at 0.01% (2021: 0.01%) per annum with an original maturity
of three months or less. Included in bank balances (general
accounts) and cash are approximately HK$1,121,000 (2021:
HK$746,000) and HK$744,000 (2021: HK$4,087,000) and which
are denominated in US$ and RMB respectively.

30. EthEURARRR ~ FRIGTRIBR &

31.

(#)
P EL{ A U BE 20 R 68 50 S S 7 AR B T 4
EREBS e R EMEe RN RS
BB IR —EAUE o

REREIBIENEZEBRHREERKRE
—RBIUE=FBNRC

GEIE

ZERATEIERATHEANRIE TR OE
ERREERE -

IRTHEERRE
IR1THE7F (G RIBILERP)

52 -

AEERABXEBETREEEH MU
THEERZER - ZFERZRIEBFA
— AN ZEBIRITRALIRRITHER
RHMENFEF0.01%E0.1% (ZT - —
F:10.01%=E0.1%) 5t 8 - AEHHEDEN
ERE R ZBERMR AT » A& EIRE
WEAANTEN R ERBHEZFRAK

=+
o

IRTEF (—RERP) RER=

It BEEAEEFE RS RIERT
T ERMNEEE0.01% (T - —%:
0.01%) st EBERFIHHA=ZBRERIUATZ
SHSRITEM st ARITHEE (—RERF)
RIBEE£241,121,0008 7T (2 - —F :
746,0003 7T) K& 744,000 T (Z B - —4F !
4,087,000 7T) DRI ET R AR EYE -
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32. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/

LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 5 November 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, an independent third party, and the Company have
entered into an agreement, pursuant to which the independent
third party has conditionally agreed to acquire, and the wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company has conditionally agreed to
sell the entire issued share capital of Millhaven Holdings Limited,
for a consideration of HK$338,000,000, which will be settled fully
in cash.

The disposed group is wholly relevant to property development
and investment segment.

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for
sale are as follows:

32. DEAFFHERE HIES

FIEHEBEEERNARE

N ZEZ—F+—AREB > ARE—E2
ENBAR —2BIUB= A RARE]
Uz B BUE=FEBRHERR
WERAABZENBLAEEERERE
HEMillhaven Holdings Limited 2 & &
B {TRR A - {18 %4338,000,000% 7t » i
BELRSEH-

TEERENANELRARENTE
RH o

DESFFHENTERIEERERN
T~

31 December

2021

s

+=A

=+—H

HK$'000

FET

Investment property (Note 20) KEWZE Hz320) 354,211
Deferred tax assets (Note 23) IBIEFRIBE E (f15423) 29,918
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HEWRIE - BN RIBRIES 1,442
Bank and cash balances IRTT IR B 45 5R 89
Total assets classified as held for sale NEABEHENEERE 385,660
Other payables and accrued expenses HthEARIE KR ET X 5,806
Total liabilities classified as held for sale NEAFEHENSEREE 5,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

32.

33.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (Continueq)

As at 31 December 2021, the accumulated currency translation
reserve relevant to the disposed group is HK$39,371,000.

Due to the prolonged delay of the due diligence on the disposal
transaction and the changes in market conditions of the
property market in the PRC since the date of the sales and
purchase agreement, the Company and the potential buyer
were negotiating to terminate the transaction since November
2022. The disposal is no longer considered as highly probably
to sell and the relevant assets and liabilities were reclassified to
the corresponding financial line items as at 31 December 2022.
A termination agreement has been entered into subsequently
on 16 February 2023 to terminate the sale and purchase
agreement (Note 48).

ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

32. DEAFEHERE HYER

FIEHEBEEERNGR (&)

A B —F+_H=1+—H HEPBEE
B AR E NS B E 4 # 439,371,000
BT e

ERNHUERZETERBEETNTKE
BEAER UKBEEWZBHRERER
BHMEMSN M REE XA KEBEETE
FEZEIZH+—ARESERLERS-
HEEZEFABERABENRHE  ERE
ERBER_E__F#+_BA=+—HE
MOBEEEMBEE SHBBERIE
T=F R+ ABEET—ERILEHEMUL
IFEE W (Mi5E48) ©

33. FEfIERRR

2022 2021
—E-_= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Accounts payable: FE{TERER
Accounts payable from trading of BETEMMNRBEZER
electronic products and equipment FTE £ FETRR TR 5,116 54,481
Accounts payable from properties MR EFTEEENIRR
investment 6,555 7,116
Accounts payable arising from the EEBSEBMELEMIER
business of dealing in securities:
— Cash clients —REER 80,807 96,394
- HKSCC — BB 1,687 2,077
Accounts payable to clients arising from EBBHEANERAEEZ
the business of dealing in futures ERERER™M
contracts 1,377 1,081
Amounts due to securities margin clients fEN B A RBESET A NIE 5,817 3,658
101,359 164,807
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

33. ACCOUNTS PAYABLES (Continueq)

The settlement term of accounts payable to cash clients and
HKSCC is two days after the trade date and aged within 30 days.

Accounts payable to clients arising from the business of dealing
in futures contracts are margin deposits received from clients
for their tradings of futures contracts on HKFECC. The excess
of the outstanding amounts over the required margin deposits
stipulated by HKFECC are repayable to clients on demand. In
the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is disclosed as the
aged analysis does not give additional value.

Amounts due to securities margin clients are repayable on
demand. In the opinion of the Directors, no aged analysis is
disclosed as the aged analysis does not give additional value.

The accounts payable amounting to approximately
HK$73,503,000 (2021: HK$87,378,000) were payable to clients
or other institutions in respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients in the course of the
conduct of regulated activities. However, the Group does not
have a currently enforceable right to offset these payables with
the deposits placed.

33. FE(IERTR (2

BUNREERREBEERRZEEHR
»RHAMEMA > HREB30HM -

BEEMECNETMELEZRAERE
FoNB/RRERREAEEEHNESN
MERRBRZFEEEZ RMEEMBBLESE
BHEEEMRERES ZBEBRANENX
REETER EFRNA BRKREDHT
WEE S AL SR F R E R EE -

BUESRETE A RBEANERKE
B-ZEFRR ANKRERONTEEER
G 0 458 UG A'F H AR eI 4R BB o

RETZRETHERPRE A YWENLF
BEARBURTHEETNENEANEM
1 1% 2~ FE T BR N 49 473,503,000 75 (Z &
——% 87,378,000 7T) © fAT > ANEEEIR
B S A MAT R U ERGR S Z SR TR

=+
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

33. ACCOUNTS PAYABLES (Continued) 33. FE{IERFR (&

REEFERRRBEZEBZE
{1 AR R

Accounts payable from trading of electronic
products and equipment

HEBSRTFHNEERROB -REBEFE
mhRBESEBZEBNERRIZEZAH

The credit term granted by the suppliers is 90 days. The aging
analysis of accounts payable from trading of electronic products

and equipment presented based on the invoice date is as

2 ZEREDHAOT

follow:
2022 2021
—E=-= —EZ—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAETT
0-90 days 0ZE90H 5,063 37,308
91 -180 days 91&180H - 6,735
181 — 365 days 1812365H 53 10
Over 365 days 365 £ - 10,428
5,116 54,481

REMEREZBARR

Accounts payable from properties investment

The aged analysis of accounts payable from properties REMELEZ BARMRZRE 27U

investment is as follows: s -
2022 2021
== T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
91 - 180 days 91&180H = 7,116
Over 365 days 3658 L E 6,555 -

FRERNERREMARN —FRAEERNE
KREFEE - BNRFEEBFERBHEN
By 2l HA o

All of the accounts payable are expected to be settled within
one year or are repayable on demand. The accounts payable are
normally due immediately from the date of billing.
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34. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 34. HiWEF IR RESTER
EXPENSES
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Accrued construction cost (note) FESTIREER K (BY22) 235,867 -
Other payables HAE = IE 36,884 82,509
Accrued expenses fESTE B 26,430 14,735
299,181 97,244
note:  Accrued construction cost with an amount of HK$235,867,000 are payable ftsE - & 88#A235,867,000/8 THIFE st BEM AR Y
upon the completion of the construction of properties and it is expected EELTRBEIM BRBEYERASATIER
that it is not required to be paid in the next twelve months from 31 e HE+_A=+—H®8XEKX+_ERARN
December 2022 as the corresponding properties are not expected to be SR EF ZREAERN 22 2F+ A4
completed in the next twelve months from 31 December 2022. =+—HRERER+_EARERZ e
35. LEASE LIABILITIES 35. HE&AR
The exposure of the Group's lease liabilities are as follows: AREEBHREEEZ ARBONT :
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current mEn 1,521 1,388
Non-current JETRED 656 -
2,177 1,388
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

35. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

35. A5 &E E

Minimum lease Present value of
payments lease liabilities
RIERELT HEAaRRAE
2022 2021 2022 2021
g ~“F--&F ZE_Zf "E°-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT THET FTET
Minimum lease payment due: RUTKBIEzREEEMHR:
- Within one year ——FR 1,595 1,416 1,521 1,388
—more than one year but not ——FRERERN
more than two years 665 - 656 -
2,260 1,416 2,177 1,388
Future finance charges RRRERY (83) (28)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaERE 2,177 1,388
Amounts due for settlement within one year —ERZIEA 2 B
(shown under current liabilities) (PRI BEE N IT) (1,521) (1,388)
Amounts due for settlement after one year —E%B B (2B 656 -
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to BRANEE&REZ MEFIGEEMERH R
lease liabilities range from 5.00% to 11.33% (2021: from 5.13% NF5.00BEEM3BE (ZTE_—F I NFE

t0 11.33%).

5.13EZE11.33E) ©
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36. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 36. §9AE
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Trading electronic products BEFERES 48 6,862
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised TRITHRAFERINNEPEEES
in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities HWEBEANBTFHBRERNENSETERM
and how much relates to performance obligations that were HIELEE ©

satisfied in prior periods.

Trading electronic

products
BFERES
2022 2021
- BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January ®—B—H 6,862 1,739
Decrease in contract liabilities as aresult of ~ RUTREMEEZ SHNBERD
—revenue recognised that was included — ST AFVIENEREERN
in the contract liabilities balance BRI =
at the beginning of the year - (665)
- return to customers —REBERER (6,862) -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of RAUTEEMEEZ GHE/EIEN
— receipts in advance of trading electronic —BTFEmEZZERFIE
products 48 5,788
At 31 December K+ZB=+—H 48 6,862
The Group will recognise the expected revenue in future when FERRNRERRXNEZERFEERHEBZ
the goods are delivered to customers, which is expected to AW TEET RN R RI12ER (T2 Z—
occur within the next 12 months (2021: 12 months). F12E8) REE-
The Group receives a certain amount of the contract value as AEERERFEEZEEEHEFHHEIWE
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and purchase —EEENEREEFAEES -BEES
agreement. The deposits result in contract liabilities being LR ENEaBE BEERPESETE
recognised until the customers obtain control of the electronic mn B EEGIRE o
products.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

37. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

Amount due to a Director of which approximately
HK$51,092,000 (2021: HK$64,772,000) is unsecured, interest
bearing at Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank (2021: Hong
Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank) and are repayable on demand.
The remaining balances are unsecured, repayable on demand
and non-interest bearing.

The directors confirmed that they would not demand
repayment of the amounts due to Directors of approximately
HK$79,085,000 within one year from the date of this report.

37. BYEEMIE

FE{SE B RIAE F4951,092,0008 7T (=&
T —1F 164,772,000 7T) A EIKIF IR
TPRNERREENE(CEZ—F R
TFARNEERBENR) St ERERE
KREZ-BFTEHARILH BAREXRE
BRAEE

EEED O HEFATERBARE HERE
—EREERENEFHIEL79,085,000
Broe

38. BORROWINGS 38. & E
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Borrowings B8 421,160 390,616
Secured BiL#R 270,202 255,435
Unsecured but guaranteed EIRRERER 29,970 22,037
Unsecured KR 120,988 113,144
421,160 390,616
Current portion BNHEAER > 421,160 390,616
Non-current portion FERDEREL = -
421,160 390,616
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38. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group’s borrowings are repayable as follows:

38. B8 (@)

FEBZEEEEENT

2022 2021

—E-CF B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within 1 year or on demand —FARNIZER 421,160 390,616
The movement of borrowings is as follows: BEEZHMT

2022 2021

—=E=-= T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

At 1 January R—B— 390,616 395,082

Proceeds from new borrowings MEEREHRIE 75,970 57,000

Recognition of borrowings HWREE 10,419 -

Accrued interests FESTHI 2 51,941 43,921

Interests paid BENHE (35,820) (41,192)

Repayment B (42,500) (66,500)

Settlement via subscription of shares BERERNESE (23,249) -

Exchange realignment b O F (6,217) 2,305

At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 421,160 390,616

Annual Report 2022 « — = —F 53

227



Py

228

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n\7|'\

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_"ZE " "F+_H=+—HIEEE

BT ERRMIEE

38. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a borrowing of
approximately HK$270,202,000 (2021: HK$255,435,000) which
is secured by the entire registered capital of Millhaven Holdings
Limited, Gold Shiner Holdings Limited, Guangdong Tak Hoi
Wai Yip Investment Management Limited and Beijing Yinghe
Real Estate Comprehensive Development Co., Ltd., all these
companies are indirect owned subsidiaries of the Group, and
the personal guarantee from Dr. Hui Chi Ming. The borrowing is
interest bearing at a fixed rate of 7% for the first year and 8%
for the period after 1 year. The default effective interest rate of
the borrowing is 15.87% per annum respectively. The borrowing
of approximately HK$270,202,000 has matured during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has an unsecured
borrowing of approximately HK$19,500,000 (2021:
HK$36,000,000) from PAL Finance Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Asia Tele-Net, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with its shares being listed on the Stock Exchange in which
two Directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and Nam Kwok Lun,
have controlling interests. The borrowing is interest bearing at
Hong Kong Prime rate of 5.00% (2021: 5.00%) per annum and
repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has
unsecured borrowings of approximately RMB63,000,000
(2021: RMB63,000,000) (equivalent to HK$71,070,000 (2021:
HK$77,143,500)), from three independent third parties with fixed
interest rates range from 0%-12% per annum. The borrowings of
approximately HK$71,070,000 (2021: 55,103,000) have matured
at the end of the reporting period.

38. fBH (&

RIEZZF+ZRA=+—8" K%l
ZEE#270,202,0008 T (& - —%F
255,435,000/ 7T) Jh U A& E F &%ﬁ bt /25
‘A E]Millhaven Holdings Limited ~ Gold Shiner
Holdings Limited - BEEREBH|EXRKREEER
RABIRIIRBNEMEGERERRA
Bz 2 MEAREIRIR > 1 LIFFE $51E
TZEABREER- BEREFRZETE
FZET%sT R M—FBIZ8%T R - EEZ
BNBRFEFNEA1587% - HEZZTZZE
F+ZA=+—HLEFEECIHEENS

270,202,000 75 ©

A

E\_v__i‘f— B=+—HB &x&H
ZEE#19,500,0008 T (Z & - —4F:
36,000,000/ 70) A& MK A NB A —/
2EMBATEMNEEHRBERAT RE
REFMARIZAE] ERGIPBRF L
T MLEREEELENERARIER
BHERKER) RE - ZEERSERES
FERZE500% (ZE-—F :5.00%) st B &

BER—FRNER

R A s R e o = e S
B ANEBEB=2BIE=HHNEEKHE
BEH A R63,000,0007t (ZBE=-—4F :
AR #63,000,0007t) (18E7#271,070,0007%
TT(CTEZ—4F 177,143,500 7)) LUEE
FEFNENF0BE12%5T B o RIEHR» 4
71,070,00038 75 (Z &~ —4E : 55,103,0005&
7T) B BB RIH -
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38. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has unsecured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$ 20,000,000 (2021: Nil) and
guaranteed bank borrowings of approximately HK$29,970,000
(2021: Nil) from a bank. The borrowings are interest bearing and
determined by The Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR")
plus 3% at 8.41% per annum (2021: Nil) and determined by
HIBOR plus 1% at 5.57% per annum (2021: Nil) respectively and
repayable within one year.

As at 1 December 2022, the Company has entered into a
supplemental agreement to early terminate the convertible
bond agreement with a principal amount of HK10,000,000 and
replaced by a new loan agreement with the same principal
amount. It is interest bearing at 12% p.a. and repayable on
or before 31 May 2023. The outstanding balance and its
corresponding interest were derecognised.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has an unsecured
borrowing of approximately HK$22,037,000 from an
independent third party with a fixed interest rate of 15% per
annum. The borrowing is guaranteed by the personal guarantee
from Dr. Hui Chi Ming and was fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Borrowings with an amount of HK$341,272,000 (2021:
HK$332,575,000) were default as at 31 December 2022. The
Group has negotiated with the lenders to extend the repayment
terms and as long as there are cash inflows from the events
mentioned in Note 3.1, the borrowings will be repaid.

38. fBH (&

WZIEZZFE+ZA=+—H &A&H
EXB—METHERBETEEY
20,000,000 7T (ZZ2Z—4% | #) RBER
R1T18 E4929,970,0008 7T (Z T ——4 :
M) cZESEEHE DRREBRTHEE
R (TEBIRITRERSL) M3% - FF=E
8.41% (ZZTZ—% : ) REBIRITEER
BE1% F£FFE557% (T _—F ) B
B MBR—FEREERE.

RZEZZFE+ZA—H > ARBBEIIL
7R LUR AT 1L 4~ %10,000,0007
ﬁE’JT%ﬁJH&ﬁ%Tm%}niuﬁawﬁaﬁ%ﬁ

ABE BN o Z B UERNZE12%5T B
IE/EEC:_\,__EEE +—HZza1E
BoRBEERNEMBET SR IR

N B —F+ZA=+—H ' Kx&H
RKE—SBIE=ZFNEEREED
22,037,00078 7t A & & FF F] Z15% 5T B 0 5%
EEBRTE B ETRENEABFRERR
TERBEE_E_“F+"HA=+—HIt
FEXRHGEF

341,272,000 75 (& Z—4 : 332,575,000
BT WEEER B2 _F+-_B=+—
HEN AEECHAERAEBIERIEN
R LB IFMMEHEELIRSRA
Tﬁ“HfJTE@

Annual Report 2022 « — = —F 53

229



Py

230

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mm

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_"ZE " "F+_H=+—HIEEE

BT ERRMIEE

39. CORPORATE BONDS

39. AEIES

2022 2021
—E-CF B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Unsecured corporate bonds IR R BES 6,994 17,482
The Group's corporate bonds are repayable as follows: REBMZEEBENBESUT .
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
Within 1 year —FR 3,278 13,884
After 1 year but within 2 years —EmMF -
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREF 3,716 3,598
6,994 17,482
The movement of corporate bonds is as follows: NEESFEHUWT .
2022 2021
lol = Sl —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
As at 1 January w—HB—H 17,482 30,176
Accrued interests FEETF] 2 1,181 1,972
Principal repayments BELRE (11,000) (11,000)
Interests paid BNFE (669) (3,666)
As at 31 December K+ZB=+—H 6,994 17,482

The effective interest rates of the bonds range from 7.03% to

11.57% per annum (2021: 7.03% to 11.57% per annum).

F%ZQB’XE%MM F7.03%E11.57% (—
——F  FEFET 03%E11.57%) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

40. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company issued
2% coupon convertible bonds with a total principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 for a cash inflow of HK$20,000,000 as general
working capital of the Group. The effective interest rate is
10.60%. The exercise price of the conversion option is HK$0.98
and exercisable anytime on or before the maturity date. The
coupon will be paid on the maturity date.

The convertible bonds will be matured on 9 July 2023 originally.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
repaid HK$10,000,000 and the corresponding interest. Other
terms of the convertible bonds agreements are remained
unchanged.

For the remaining principal amount of HK$10,000,000 of
the convertible bonds, the Company has entered into a
supplemental agreement to early terminate the convertible
bond agreement with a principal amount of HK10,000,000 and
replaced by a new loan agreement with the same principal
amount. It is interest bearing at 12% p.a. and repayable on
or before 28 February 2023. The outstanding balance and its
corresponding interest were derecognised from convertible
bonds.

40. AR ES

BE _E_—F+_-_B=+—HL=EE"
NABEITAREHEEEA20,000,0008 7T
F2%Z S AR ES > UWIRRIBE R
20,000,000 T EARERN—REEE
o BEAEK510.60% o G EZ R ITE
EA0.988B T AR EI R N Z AR 1T
F-ZEHNEPHSI

AR EERAEBNR _E_=Z=F+t A
Ip-#E"_T_"F+-_A=+—HIL
FE > AT EE#10,000,0005 75 5 8 FE
FME - AIHMEBESHBANEMERRTR

fho

$110,000,00078 Tt A MR E S AR A &
RABB AR HE  UIRRT R IEARE
#10,000,0008 cH MR E S HE > I
MNEBAESHNHERBREB L ZERU
FMEI2%HE O MAR_E-_=F_"H
ZHNAHHZAMEE REEEHRREM
FEFIEE Bl il EHL LT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

40. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 40. AR ES (&

BE_T__F+_RB=1+—HLFEN
PR ESFEHE D ESHEIWT ¢

The movement of the debt component of the convertible bonds
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below:

232

2022 2021
—E-—-F —ET—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
As at 1 January w—E—H 17,846 -
Issuance of convertible bonds RZEZ—F+tANH
at 9 July 2021 BT ES - 17,004
Effective interest expense for the year FREBEMNEMZ 1,494 842
Debt settlement expenses BEREERYS 193 =
Repayment during the year FRER (10,613) -
Derecognition of convertible bonds BT R IR E S (8,920) -
As at 31 December m+ZA=+—H - 17,846
41. SHARE CAPITAL 41. fgZ&
Number of
shares
R A
‘000 HK$'000
B FHET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREEI10EB T @R
Authorised: ERE
At 31 December 2021 and 2022 N_E _—FER_E__F
+—HA=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRBRE
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 C:;:—EE—E—E S
and at 1 January 2022 2+ "HA=+—HK
— Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each B _#—HF—H
—SREE0. 1B T EER 4,000,000 400,000
Allotment of rights issue during the year — FRFEZESHIBIS 1D (H1527)
(note 1) 1,610,531 161,053
Subscription of new shares under RIE— AR R EMRD (Ba22)
general mandate (note 2) 193,750 94375
At 31 December 2022 A _F+-_HB=+—H 5,804,281 580,428
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41. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

42.

#

For the year ended 31 December 2022 %

41.

note 1: buring the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has allotted
rights issues with an amount of approximately HK$161,053,000 which was
utilized entirely for repayment of part of the Group's borrowings.

note 2: During the year ended 31 December 2022, subscription of shares under
generate mandate was made with an amount of HK19,375,000 for

repayment of liabilities.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

42.

The details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group that
have material non-controlling interests are shown as below:

2 NG

Vo=

=i ——

F+-A=+—HLFE

BHE_Z-F+ZA=1t—HIEFE &Q

Bl FC 3 £ 204 %9161,053,000%8 T A% A& 15 >
EE AR EEREEE D ERR

=7

BE_T__F+-_A=+—HLEE RE

— IR R T EE 419,375,000 7T HI IR 15 A

BiEaEe.

2232 5

BmEEAFERER

12 AEEFEEWEB

ABZFBIRAT

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interests
principal and voting rights held (Loss)/profit allocated
place of by non-controlling to non-controlling Accumulated
Name of business interests interests non-controlling
Subsidiary MMt ES JEERERFEZ DECFIEIEAGHE RS interests
B AT %S FEE MBS PR RS R IGRELL A (#518) /& F RetIFiEmRER
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C “E-—F ZE-C EI—F ZEZC —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THERT FHET
Shenzhen Qianhai Jiameijing PRC/PRC
Industrial Co., Ltd.* FEFE
AR B REREE
BRRAE 40% 40% (10,615) 8,299 1,499 12,328
Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests
BREIFERER
ERIFEEARWBAR (37) 9 204 239
(10,652) 8,308 1,703 12,567

English name of this company is for identification purpose only
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) — 42. IE3ER R (&

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the EREBERIFERERZAEEZNE
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests NEZHMETHFERHINMT - UTHE
are set out below. The summarised financial information below MHEENAEBRRNARMBIEHEA 2828

represented amounts before intragroup eliminations.
As at 31 December m+=ZB=+—H
Shenzhen Qianhai Jiameijing

Industrial Co., Ltd.
FhAl B RFEE

BRAE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&T FHET
Non-current assets JERENEE - 932
Current assets MEBNEE 141 139,655
Current liabilities GIEI=NE = (112,810)
141 27,777

Equity attributable to FN/NEIEZZS DN
owners of the Company FE{L S (1,561) 15,449
Non-controlling interests JEIERE T 1,702 12,328
141 27,777
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42. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

42. JE¥ERetER (2

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEFE

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Revenue & 2,942 493,958
Other income Hag A 21 1,105
Expenses S H (29,499) (474,316)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B8 mH (26,536) 20,747
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income EEHME2mE GZH) WA
for the year (536) 507
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income FEZ@E ZH) /WA 4E%E
for the year (27,072) 21,254
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE(E (B518) i&F -
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZF SN (15,921) 12,448
Non-controlling interests JEVER R R (10,615) 8,299
(26,536) 20,747
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income  FELEE ZH) /WA LEEE :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZiN/NSTEZ F DN (16,243) 12,752
Non-controlling interests JERERR (10,829) 8,502
(27,072) 21,254
Net cash outflow from: KEUTEBZEHEEME .
Operating activities KESEE) (2,619) (168,857)
Investing activities KREES = -
Financing activities MEEE) (159) (210)
Net cash outflow BEMHIFEE (2,778) (169,067)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. BAEGH
2022 2021
—=E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Capital commitments (contracted but BA K (BET418 15 kB E)
not provided for):
Construction costs of properties for sale 54y % LIS B Y % B A4
and investment properties 1,945,348 2,965,739
Capital commitments (no contracted BARAS (kT4 B MR B
and not provided for):
Construction costs of properties for sale & &ty % BBy R EFR A
and investment properties 2,460,976 1,219,969
4,406,324 4,185,708
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

44. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

45.

The Group has operated a pension scheme under the rules
and regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance after the implementation of the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately in an independently managed fund. The Group
has followed the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant aggregate income with a
cap of HK$1,500 (2021: HK$1,500) per employee per month. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as incurred. The are
no forfeited contribution for both years.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the
Group participates in a defined contribution basic pension
insurance in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group makes
contributions to basic pension insurance plans based on the
applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated by the government.
Basic pension insurance contributions are charged to profit or
loss as the related services are rendered by the employees.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with related parties

Save for disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties:

(@  During the year, the Group received commission income
and other securities dealing income from securities
and futures dealing of approximately HK$67,000 (2021:
HK$56,000) from a director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun (2021: a
director, Nam Kwok Lun).

44.

45.

BRIKEFETE

Rt AREstaRAETR  A5H
ERBRGIMEABEE ST ENFRG 2 R R
PIRIBAREE -BREEHEZEE
BDoRARBLEEREESAR A c&EEE
BTRBEZEHRRE MEEREES
BB ASHIER MR LIRABRETS
B1,5008 T (ZEZ—4% 1,500 7T) o #
MREERREBEDNR mEFEHTER
W R BYIEN ©

RBEPEBRRERER  2EE2S HBF
WERUIKEENTEREBEATHNER
HRELBEEZRRE -cEBRBHRARE
NEREERERNELAREREEIH
o BAREFRBRMERN BB IRHAERR
B ERm R

BRERaMBRRAMBOMKESE
Sy REBZRABALIRRZUT

@ REFEER AEEMZESRHEEE
B REFTEHMLE (CTT—
F—HEFERMELE) WRAR
WA B B heE 5 B B A £967,00058
T (Z2BZ—4 56,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z - "F+_"HA=+—HItFE

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(o)

During the year, the Group received commission
income and other income from securities dealing of
approximately HK$86,000 (2021: HK$18,000) from Asia
Tele-Net, in which two directors, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing
and Nam Kwok Lun, have controlling interests.

At 31 December 2022, a director, Mr. Nam Kwok
Lun, advanced approximately HK$51,092,000 (2021:
HK$64,772,000) to the Group. During the year, the
Group accrued finance costs of HK$2,528,000 (2021:
HK$2,364,000) to the director, Mr. Nam Kwok Lun. The
amount is interest bearing at prime rate 5.00% (2021:
5.00%) per annum and repayable on demand.

At 31 December 2022, a director, Dr. Hui Chi Ming,
advanced approximately HK$27,993,000 (2021:
HK$161,225,000) to the Group. It is unsecured, repayable
on demand and non-interest bearing.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
made minimum lease payments under short-term
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$2,769,000 (2021: HK$2,520,000) to Gahood Holding
Company Limited, a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Dr. Hui Chi Ming, a director of the Company. The
transaction also constitutes a continuing connected
transaction under Appendix 14A of the Listing Rules.

45. FAEANTR S &

FMEALRS (@)

=
=

ID:E

ﬁAZ!KfH“W 7 £ B 5L a8

DNEE (WMEESEBRERERE
B i S LE A H I fl i m) WA=
WA R B UE A %986,0008 7T (ZF
— —4F 118,000 7T) °

ﬁé_v__EJr BA=+—B &%

BE [ il o1 A 1A A B B ER 451,092,000
BT (T —F 1 64,772,000 7T) °
FROAEBOERER MBI ERS
BA TS 8 FR2,528,0008 7T (T2 - —4F :
2,364,000787T) > BRAFIEZS5.00% (=
T —4F :500%) REEEFEHE
R B EREEEIE

A _E__F+ZA=+—8"
BEEHERBLIALSEIBRRY
27,993,000 T (Z&2Z—4&
161,225,000/ 70) c ZEB R A EIK
FBEREERAFTE

BE_Z-—F+"A=+—HIF
B> AEERMAEYEEHAOH
AANBEBEEHEHIETHELER
EZ?%%EBE@?EM?%&E%H%
IR#2,769,0008 T (ZEZ—F .

2,520,000/ 7T) ° ZIEL %ﬁffﬁﬁﬁziﬁi
HAMIERAAE N 2 ISEBRAER F o
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45. FEANLTRS @)
(Continued)
Transactions with related parties (Continued) FEALTRS (&)
() At 31 December 2022, a related company, PAL Finance Hh MIE__F+-_B=+—H =&
Limited ("PAL") a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asia Tele- NEIEMNEEMBERRE (MEMNE
Net, a company incorporated in Bermuda, in which two ) (ENHEZZERB AR 1R
directors of the Company, Messrs. Lam Kwok Hing and BREFMNMII AR MBERE
Nam Kwok Lun, having controlling interest advanced Bl S 4 R BE Bl fm o A R EL A
HK$19,500,000 (2021: HK$36,000,000) to the Group. ) B ASEE B #®T19,500,0008 7T (8
During the year, the Group paid finance costs in total of T —4F 1 36,000,00077T) © FER A EE
HK$1,819,000 (2021: HK3,121,000) to PAL. The amount is B TultEsHBEREHSR
interest-bearing at Hong Kong Prime rate of 5.00% (2021: 1,819,00078 7t (& = —%F : 3,121,000
5.00%) per annum and repayable within one year. BT cBRAMEREEREZRENX
5.00% (ZEZ—F :5.00%) st 2B
R—FREE
Compensation of key management personnel FEEBABZEHM
The remuneration of Directors during the year were as follows: FRAEEZME0T ¢
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Short-term benefits e HRfE R 9,519 8,592
Post-employment benefits BIREH 104 93
9,623 8,685
The remuneration of Directors is determined by the EEMEHRFNZESHENALTZRIR
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of KRG HBBETE -

individuals and market trends.
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46. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

46. MEEZBFIEEZAEZHIR

TRV FEBMEIBEEZEEZ
25 (ORREEhIFRCES) -MEDD
FREEZBRNDBETRKRERETEBIR
EREMNEBRDEARERELTINERS

=

IMEE °

Amounts
Lease due to Corporate Convertible
liabilities Directors bonds bonds Borrowings Total
HERE  EUESNE NEESH ABRES B&E& B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER TER TER
At 1 January 2021 RZE-_—f5—F—H 4,084 143,578 30,176 = 395,082 572,920
Changes from financing HERERELY
cash flows
Additions R - 80,055 - 20,000 57,000 157,055
Redemption/Repayments B8 2,712) - (11,000) - (66,500) (80,212)
Other changes: Hits .
Exchange adjustments EREE 16 - - - 2,305 2321
Interest expenses FERY 166 2,364 1972 842 43921 49,265
Interest paid BAFE (166) B (3,666) - @1,192) (45,024)
Recognition of equity component BEsRE R4 = = = (2,996) - (2,99)
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ-F
1 January 2022 +ZA=+-8%k
-t Sy =R 1,388 225,997 17,482 17,846 390,616 653,329
Changes from financing MERERELEH
cash flows
Redemption/Repayments LY (2,226) (149,440) (11,000) (10,613) (42,500) (215,779)
Additions B = = - - 75970 75970
Other changes: Hithgs .
Additions R 3,030 = - = = 3,030
Exchange adjustments ERAE (15) - - - (6,217) (6,232)
Interest expenses FEME 106 2528 1,181 1,494 51,941 57,250
Debt settlement expenses EREERY - - - 193 - 193
Settlement via subscriptionof ~ BRRBRHLER
shares - - - - (23,249) (23,249)
Interest paid Eﬁ?F'J (106) = (669) - (35,820) (36,595)
Recognition of borrowings RMEE = - - (8,920) 10,419 1,499
At 31 December 2022 -
+ZA=+—H 2177 79,085 6,994 = 421,160 509,416
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

47.

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Name
et

Karl Thomson
Financial Group Limited
BiEEHERERAF

Karl-Thomson Securities
Company Limited
BiEESERAE

Karl-Thomson Commodities
Company Limited
BEERBERRAR
Karl Thomson
Finance Limited

BiEMHERAT

Karl Thomson Credit Limited
SEEHBRATE

Karl Thomson Investment
Consultants Limited

BEREEMBRAT

Country/
place of
incorporation
Bt
EX/

British Virgin
Islands ("BVI")
HBRUEE
(EBEUHE)
Hong Kong
&%
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong

L

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong

Principal
place of
business

TREENY

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

A

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong

&R

Hong Kong
¥

Hong Kong

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

registered capital

B&TR
BRRE/
HMES

HK$10

1087

HK$11,000,000
11,000,000%7¢
HK$5,000,000
5,000,000/ 7t
HK$20,000,000
20,000,000 7T

HK$10,000
10,0007

HK$5,000,000

5,000,000%7¢

= .AH
ARE

FEMBAT

TR EER AN EAERARENEESR
EBREZARATNBAT - é%m,
RHAMMBARZFBEECRBBNTT

Eo
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEERE
ERTRAAELH
2022 2021
—E°C BT -F
% %
Batt BAL
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities
TEER

Investment holding

REER

Securities dealing
and broking
EHFEERLK

Futures and
options broking
HERHAREL

Securities margin
financing
FARELHE

Money lending

&8

Broking of mutual funds
andinsurance-linked
investment plans
and products

REES FipH
REEIREDLL
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Name
41

Karl Thomson Financial
Advisory Limited
SERERKERAT

Hong Kong Finance Energy
International Trading
Company Limited

Hong Kong Finance Resource
Group Limited
EACEEREEBRAT

Shiny Future Holdings Limited
BEERERAR

Hong Kong Finance Universal
Investment Group Limited
BASERHRESEBRAR
Madagascar Northern Petroleum
Company Limited
SENSEMLSRAERAT

Zhen Hua Company Limited

REBRAA

Country/
place of
incorporation
AR
HR/ 8%

Hong Kong
s

BVI
EBRUEE
BVI
EBRUHE

Hong Kong
s

BVI
EERUEE
BVI
EERUEE
Kenya

BEZ

47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Principal
place of
business
FTESENY

Hong Kong
aA
Hong Kong
&k
Hong Kong
&k

Hong Kong
B3

Hong Kong
&8
Madagascar
REMEM
Kenya

BRED

47. FEMB AT &

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
B&TR
BRRE/
FHEE

HK$600,000
600,000 7
US$100
100% 7T
US$100
100E7T

HK§100
1007

US$100
100% 7T
US$100
100% 7T
KES100,000

100,008 B %%

R

—F ]
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Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEENE
BRTRAEELP

2022 2021
——

%

Aot ER

51

100

100

100

100

100

60
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Principal activities
TEEE

Corporate finance advisory
PEREER

Trading in natural resources
RAERES

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

SEER

Investment holding

RERR

Ol and gas exploration
and production

BARARREEREE

Minerals exploration and

production
BERFREE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Name
et

Societe Hoteliere Tananarivienne

Beijing Yinghe Real Estate
Comprehensive Development
Co, Ltd*

IRBARME
FEREBRAR

Shenzhen Qianhai Jiameijing
Industrial Co,, Ltd. *
AT EEEHERAT

Guangdong Hong Kong
Guangdong Financial Holdings

Real Estate Development Co,, Ltd.#

EREESHENE
REERAA

Country/
place of
incorporation
B4
R/

Madagascar

FEM&HM

PRC

e

PRC

e

PRC
o

iR e M B HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Principal
place of
business
TEEEME

Madagascar

SEMA

PRC
hE

PRC

hE

PRC
PE

47.

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BETK
BRRE/
HREE

MGAG00,000,000
600,000,000
SEMAM

MEGE

RMB22,000,000
AE22,000,0007

RMB5,000,000

R 5,000,007

RMB100,000,000
A 1100,000,0007T

The Company directly holds the interest in Karl Thomson
Financial Group Limited and Hong Kong Finance Resource
Group Limited. All other subsidiaries shown above are indirectly

held by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at
end of the year or at any time during the year.

* Wholly foreign owned enterprises

o Private Limited Liability companies

# English names of these PRC companies are for identification purpose only

FEMBRT (&

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Group
rEERE
BRTREEEL
2022 2021
—E°C _EC-F
% %
AL BAL

Principal activities
TEEK

100 100 Property holding
NERE

100 100 Property investment
MERE

60 60 Trading of electronic products
and equipment
BFEMRREES

100 100 Property investment
MELE

AADEEFASEERERERAAK
ERATEHERERARAR 2w ML
B EMM B AR 2 R BARATMH
SR

B 7S AL R B B FE AR BRF 8] 0 B9 B
B EE MR RBFEZEFES

3 SEEERE

> MABRRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_"ZE " "F+_H=+—HIEEE

BT ERRMIEE

48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Convertible bonds

On 9 March 2023, the Company has announced the
issuance of convertible bonds with a total principal
amount of HK$100,000,000 for a cash inflow of
HK$100,000,000 for repayment of liabilities and general
working capital of the Group. The effective interest rate
is 5.625%. The exercise price of the conversion option
is HK$0.25 and exercisable anytime on or before the
maturity date. The coupon will be paid on the maturity
date. The convertible bonds will be matured on 8 March
2024. The convertible bond is under the approval by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and will be issued once the
approval is confirmed.

Termination of sale and purchase
agreement

On 5 November 2021, the Group entered into the sale
and purchase agreement to dispose of the entire issued
capital of Millhaven Holdings Limited which held the
properties located at Beijing.

Due to the prolonged delay of the due diligence on
the disposal transaction and the changes in market
conditions of the property market in the PRC since the
date of the sales and purchase agreement, the Company
and the potential buyer have entered into a termination
agreement subsequently on 16 February 2023 to
terminate the sale and purchase agreement (Note 32).

Subscription of new shares under general
mandate

On 23 February 2023, the Company has entered into a
subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue 116,000,000
shares at a subscription price of HK$0.127 per share
with gross proceeds of HK$14,732,000 and the net
proceeds, after deduction of the expenses related to the
subscription of approximately HK$150,000, is estimated to
be approximately HK$14,582,000, which is intended to be
used wholly for general working capital of the Group.

48. HREHIREIR

AR &S

RIZ2EZ=F=ZANAB XREE
B2 1T AN & 48 %8 23100,000,0007%
TTHAMKRES  URERERA
100,000,000 Tt B FEEAEEDN
BER—HREEE - BEREANXSA
5.625% © R R R TT B2 40.25
BT RPN EHAS 2 AIBERF 1T
ZERRIBEHEZN IR ESE
NZEZHE=A/N\BEH TG
ﬁ%lEﬁé*%HﬁﬁxFﬁ%?ktﬂP  FFEE#HE
BEBAHPET

RIELEBWE

N_Z2_—F+—AHEHBH &XxE&E
M 573 5 & % LU EMillhaven
Holdings LimitedBy 2 &8 B 81T h& 4 >
ZABFEURIERNYE-

HRHHEXGETERAENE
FﬁL%M&EEETﬁ%a&EH}%MﬁﬂP

,\@T_ iﬁféfﬁﬁ\_v_z il
BH/NBsTuURIEHEUKRILES
& (MIsE32) ©

RIE— AR SR IE R AR 9

RIBEZ=FZAZ+=H'£&QH
SURBEmE BRI ARBEEK
HRRZEIDBESR0127E A E
K2 &47116,000,0008 B2 17 > FR 18 =X
TE48%E 214,732,000 75 ° M FT 18 &0
B35 (RO BEEEEREEYN
150,000 7t 18) & 51494 14,582,000
B R AEAER 2 —REE
BEEo

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z"Z-""F+_F=+—HIFE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49. AT ZMFHARRER
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
—E=-= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets EREEE
Investment in subsidiaries RBRABZIRE 539,830 539,830
539,830 539,830
Current assets MEBIEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a)  FEWT B AT BRI (Hf5ta) 1,311,167 1,232,584
Other amounts receivable, HAEWRR AN RIB RIS
prepayments and deposits 24,275 24,275
Bank balances (general accounts) RITHEEF (—RERP) RIRE
and cash 64 29
1,335,506 1,256,888
Current liabilities mEAaE
Amount due to subsidiaries (note a) FE{SB B A BIFRIE (Hiata) 554,069 570,584
Other payables and accrued expenses HnE AL EE B 18,207 16,175
Amount due to Directors (note b) FETEERIB (BiaED) 71,849 92,664
Corporate bonds NEMES 3,278 13,350
Borrowings =yt 300,620 277,472
948,023 970,245
Net current assets MEEERE 387,483 286,643
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHERE 927,313 826,473
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Corporate bonds NEES 3,716 3,958
Convertible bonds AIHRES = 17,846
3,716 21,804
Net assets BEEFE 923,597 804,669
Capital and reserves % s Bz fek 1
Share capital (1% 580,428 400,000
Reserves (note ¢) &1 (Hatc) 343,169 404,669
Total equity HEmADRE 923,597 804,669
The Company's statement of financial position was approved ARBHBRRERKR_—_FT_=F=H
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March “tHUREESESHAERRETE, WH
2023 and are signed on its behalf by: MTFREREE
Dr. Hui Chi Ming, 6Bs., JP. Mr. Cao Yu
HEgEtoss, P EFLE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BZ -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_"ZE " "F+_H=+—HIEEE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49. AT ZEBIERAR &)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: Hist -

(a) The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free, and (@) FEW () M@ AT IBEAEKR  RERRE
recoverable/(repayable) on demand. Kigel, (Ei8) ©

(b) The amount due to a Director of which HK$51,092,000 (2021: (b FE(E EFIE51,092,0008 T (ZE - —4F !

HK$48,564,000) is unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong Prime Rate
quoted by Bank (2021: Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted by Bank) per annum
and are repayable on demand. The remaining balance is unsecured,

48,564,000/ 7T) 7 HIKIF - BIRTAARNEER
BEMEX (CE—F RIIMBRNEERER
X BESFERBREBREE BT EHAER

interest-free and repayable on demand. R EREREREEE
(c) Movement in reserves (c) HEEH
Convertible
Capital bonds
Share  Contributed redemption equity  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
ARRES
AR 18 BHRE SXBERRG it REtE58 aft
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TET TET
At 1January 2021 RZE-—%—F—H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 - (1,248,654) 707,281
Lossand total comprehensive  EEBBRE2ES HEE
expenses for the year - - - - (305,608) (305,608)
Recognition of equity component SRR ES 2 B HH
of convertible bonds - - - 2,99 - 2,99
At 31 December 2021 and RZ2-_—#+"A=+-8
1 January 2022 rh—_E-__F—HA—H 1,578,317 372,031 5,587 2,996 (1,554,262) 404,669
Lossand total comprehensive  FEFBREES HAE
expenses for the year - - - - (63,199) (63,199)
Early redemption of convertible 1R R EBLI AR K ES
bonds = = = (1,497) 1,497
Allotment of rights issue HiRfce (676) = = = = (676)
Subscription of shares iR 3,874 - - - - 3,874
Derecognition of & R B
convertible bonds - - - (1,499) - (1,499)
At 31 December 2022 RIE-ZZ#+-R=+—H 1,581,515 372,031 5,587 = (1,615,964) 343,169

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAR



Five Years Financial Summary

hFIHHHE

Year ended 31 December
HE+-_A=+—HULt=EE

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“E2-N\F E-NF BIEF B4 ZE”_C
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TFHET TFHET TFAET FAT
RESULTS e
Revenue W= 942,475 538,006 1,013,168 522,404 511,537
Profit/(loss) before taxation B2 H(
wA (B518) 253,301 930,436 (251,346) 392,602 356,315

Taxation Mg (73,665) (252,953) 38,429 (116,399) (116,740)
Profit/(loss) for the year FTRSEEBZ

from continuing FERA (B18)

operations 179,636 677,483 (212,917) 276,203 239,575
Loss for the year BRIEREERE

from discontinued FEEE

operation (20,905) - - - -
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (B18) 5F) 158,731 677,483 (212,917) 276,203 239,575
Earnings/(oss) per share  SRZ&F, (E518)
From continuing and FRERREER R

discontinued operations BRI E R

— Basic —EK HK$0.0455 HK$0.1694 HK$(0.0530) HK$0.0670  HK$0.0474

0.0455%7m  0.1694%7t (0053087 0067087  0.0474%7T

From continuing operations ¥ @&48%& 255

— Basic —EK HK$0.0514 HK$0.1694 HK$(0.0530) HK$0.0670  HK$0.0474

0.0514%87m  0.1694%7c (0053087 006707  0.0474%7T
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Five Years Financial Summary

As at 31 December

w+=-BA=+—H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
“E-N\E ZE-hEF EIZHg -5 T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BER&E
Total assets BEMEE 4,033,416 4,672,065 4,975,812 5,513,382 5,597,291
Total liabilities =R (963,645) (999,740)  (1,279,182)  (1,409,517) (1,451,986)
3,069,771 3,672,325 3,696,630 4,103,865 4,145,305
Equity attributable to ZiN/NSTEZF DN
owners of the Company FE(LRE 3,066,684 3,667,376 3,692,454 4,091,298 4,143,602
Non-controlling interests  JEIZER#E = 3,087 4,949 4,176 12,567 1,703
Total equity 48T 3,069,771 3,672,325 3,696,630 4,103,865 4,145,305

WISDOM WEALTH RESOURCES INVESTMENT HOLDING GROUP LIMITED « HEZRIGEIEREBMBRAR
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